Wayzata City Council Workshop Meeting Agenda
Wayzata City Hall, 600 Rice Street
Meeting Held Remotely
TUESDAY, MAY 18, 2021

Click HERE to join the Zoom meeting.
Pursuant to Minnesota Statute Sec. 13D.015, and the Executive Orders and Emergency Declarations related to
the COVID19 pandemic, this City Council meeting is being conducted by electronic means using the audio and
video conferencing platform, Zoom. Members of the public may watch and listen to the meeting by logging into
Zoom, or by calling 3126266799 on a phone, and entering Zoom Meeting ID 952 3668 3972 and Passcode
594773. The meeting will also be shown on Channel 8, WCTV, and streamed on the City's website at
www.wayzata.org/WCTV.
To speak during the meeting you can use Zoom or a phone. When using Zoom, indicate you’d like to speak by
using Zoom's "raise hand" function. As a reminder, this means to electronically raise your hand, not physically
raise your hand. When using a phone, press *9. In each case, you will be muted until you have been recognized
and invited to speak.
The City encourages comments or questions about items on the agenda and, when possible, requests that you
submit them in advance by emailing PublicComment@wayzata.org, calling City staff at 9524045300, or mailing
Wayzata City Hall at 600 Rice St E, Wayzata, MN 55391 (Attn: Public Comment).
WORKSHOP TOPICS FOR DISCUSSION:
•

Review of Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) and Discussion of Excess Fund Reserves (5:006:30 p.m.)
7:00 PM  CITY COUNCIL MEETING

1.

Call to Order

2.

Pledge of Allegiance

3.

Roll Call

4.

Approve Agenda

5.

Public Forum (3min/person)
a.

Introduction of Adrian Contreras, Wayzata High School Compass Student

6.

New Agenda Items

7.

Consent Agenda
a.

Approval of City Council Workshop and Regular Meeting Minutes of May 4, 2021

b.

Approval of Check Register

c.

Approval of Municipal Licenses

d.

Receipt of Police Activity Report

e.

Receipt of Building Activity Report

f.

Approval of 20212022 Assessing Contract with Southwest Assessing

g.

Adoption of Resolution 172021 Authorizing Submittal of Grant Application to Hennepin County and
Execution of Associated Grant Agreements for Wayzata Boulevard Corridor Planning

h.

Approval of Agreement with Hennepin County Sheriff’s Office for Regionwide Public Safety Radio
Communications System

i.

Approval of Agreement with Hennepin County for Nearmap Imagery Software System
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j.
8.

Approval of Professional Services Agreement with SourceGroup for 9/11 Memorial Construction
Management Services

New Business
a.

Consider Acceptance of City's 2020 Audited Financial Reports

b.

Consider Approval of Cooperative Agreement for a Police Mental Health Program with Hennepin County
Human Services Department

c.

Consider Approval of First Reading of Amendments to Ordinance 805 (Chapter 203) Fire Department

d.

Consider Adoption of Resolution 192021 Establishing AdHoc Downtown Advisory Committee and
Appointments

9.

City Manager's Report and Discussion Items

10.

Public Forum (as necessary)

11.

Adjournment
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City of Wayzata
City Council Agenda Report

MEETING DATE: May 18, 2021
AGENDA ITEM: 7.a
TITLE: Approval of City Council Workshop and Regular Meeting Minutes of May 4, 2021
PROPOSED MOTION: To Approve the City Council Workshop and Regular Meeting Minutes of May 4, 2021
PREPARED BY: Kathy Leervig, City Clerk
REVIEWED BY: Jeff Dahl, City Manager
ACTION REQUESTED:
Staff recommends approval of the minutes as attached.
FINANCIAL OR BUDGET CONSIDERATION:
N/A
BACKGROUND:
N/A
ATTACHMENTS:
1.
May 4, 2021 Workshop Minutes (Draft)
2.
May 4, 2021 CC Minutes (Draft)
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WAYZATA CITY COUNCIL
WORKSHOP MEETING MINUTES - DRAFT
May 4, 2021
4:45 p.m. Discussion of Ordinance Amendment to Allow Keeping of Chickens
Mayor Mouton called the meeting to order at 4:45 p.m. Pursuant to Minnesota Statute Sec. 13D.015 and
because of the COVID-19 pandemic, the City Council Workshop was being held remotely by electronic
means using the audio conferencing platform, Zoom. Council Members present: Plechash, Buchanan,
Iverson and MacDonald. Also present: City Manager Jeff Dahl, Community Development Director Emily
Goellner, Public Works Director/City Engineer, Mike Kelly, and Assistant Planner, Nick Kieser.
Mr. Dahl provided background that the topic of allowing chickens within the City. It had been brought up
several times over the past year and most recently, the Council directed staff to do some due diligence and
come back with some more info at a Council Meeting. Chicken Ordinance options discussed at the
meeting were:
Option 1, Keep the existing Code language which would not allow any chickens in the City. Option 2,
Allow chickens on properties zoned R-1A, R-1, and any single-family properties zoned PUD and over
40,000 square feet in area. Option 3, Allow chickens on all residential properties. 3(a) Use the accessory
structure setback requirements of the applicable zoning district for the location of the chicken coop and
run. 3(b) Require the chicken coop and run to be located 50 feet from adjacent principal structures.
The council discussed the options and determined that staff should come forward with a recommendation
for Option 2 or 3, but ensure that there are adequate rules and regulations in place that protect neighboring
properties from any nuisance or unsanitary conditions and also consider lot size. A neighborhood notice
was suggested as one way to ensure neighboring properties are aware and approve of any chickens on
neighboring property.
Staff indicated that they will complete more research into the possibilities and will come back to the
Council in the next few months with a recommendation.
5:00 p.m. Discussion of Community Gardens Consideration
Mr. Dahl stated that the topic of community gardens was recently discussed at a Council Meeting and
staff was directed to come back with additional information for consideration
Mr. Dahl reviewed why communities offer community gardens, including the following reasons:
opportunity for residents currently without adequate growing space, community building, education and
promotion of wellness and nutrition, and charity benefit. He also talked about important considerations
prior to moving forward with any kind of initiative would be: community engagement, determination of
available land, review of administration and staff workload demands and cost of utility connections and
operations. Council Member Iverson said she was interested in this initiative and would help explore with
staff. Council Member MacDonald recommended talking with the City of Plymouth to see if Wayzata
could partner with their garden program. There was consensus to explore the initiative further by
discussing it as a priority with the Parks and Trails Board and then moving forward with some community
engagement.
5:15 p.m. Discussion of GreenStep Cities Membership
Assistant Planner Kieser noted one of the energy initiatives of Wayzata's Energy Action Plan (EAP) is
exploration and implementation of the GreenStep Cities. Diana Mckeown provided a presentation on the
GreenStep Cities Program. Following the presentation, the Council discussed the program and how the
City of Wayzata and broader community could benefit. These voluntary actions are tailored to all
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Minnesota cities, focus on cost savings and energy use reduction, and encourage civic innovation. 143
cities participate in the Program which covers 49% of Minnesota's population.
There was general consensus from the Council to explore entering into the program with more
information on priorities, staff workload implications, and alignment with the Strategic Plan. The next
step will be to have the Energy and Environment Committee to discuss the notes from the Council
workshop at their next meeting and determine when to bring a recommendation to join GreenStep Cities
to the City Council.
5:45 p.m. Discussion of Parks & Trails Board Work Plan for 2021
Mr. Dahl introduced the topic as a desire from the Parks and Trails Board to introduce itself, discuss
priorities for the year, and develop a plan to stay aligned in the future.
Parks and Trails Chair, Tory Schalkle, walked through a presentation that included their overall purpose,
the upcoming work plan for 2021, and general park statistics. There was then discussion about
prioritization of work plan items including Project Management (playgrounds, signs, Wayzata
Community Ed programming), Reviewing Sources and Uses of Parks and Trails CIP, Exploring
alternative revenue generating ideas for parks, Structural Enhancements (creation of bylaws), and making
sure Parks and Trails Board/City Council are aligned (liaisons, updates, etc.).
After the discussion, Mr. Dahl summarized that next steps would be that the bylaws and reaffirmation of
the Board’s Purpose and Goals would be brought back to both bodies for approval. Over the summer, the
board would be gathering community and Council feedback regarding the park playground projects, and
would potentially look at alternative revenue sources.
The workshop meeting was adjourned at 6:40 pm.
Respectfully submitted,
Kathy Leervig
City Clerk
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WAYZATA CITY COUNCIL
DRAFT - MEETING MINUTES
May 4, 2021
AGENDA ITEM 1. Call to Order.
Mayor Mouton called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. Pursuant to Minnesota Statute Sec.
13D.015 and because of the COVID-19 pandemic, the City Council Meeting was being
held remotely by electronic means using the audio and video conferencing platform, Zoom.
Mayor Mouton shared the multiple options for members of the public to submit comments
or questions.
AGENDA ITEM 2. Pledge of Allegiance.
AGENDA ITEM 3. Roll Call.
Council Members present: Buchanan, Iverson, MacDonald, and Plechash. Also present:
City Manager Dahl, Administrative Services Director Yager, Public Works Director/City
Engineer Kelly, and City Attorney Schelzel.
AGENDA ITEM 4. Approve Agenda.
Mr. Buchanan made a motion, seconded by Ms. MacDonald, to approve the agenda, as
presented. Upon roll call vote, the motion carried 5/0.
AGENDA ITEM 5. Public Forum.
a.
Update of Hennepin County Board and Introduction of Commissioner Chris
LaTondresse
Mr. Dahl introduced Hennepin County Commissioner Chris LaTondresse.
Commissioner LaTondresse said he was the newly elected Commissioner for
Hennepin County District 6. He explained that he was there to continue his predecessor’s
tradition of visiting each City’s Council meeting annually. He talked about the challenges
of leading local government during a Pandemic and the COVID-19 response. Mr.
LaTondresse also discussed the CARES Act, Climate Action Plan, and his top priorities.
Ms. Iverson asked about invasive species on Lake Minnetonka. Mr. LaTondresse
said he was still learning about this very important topic. He said there was lots of
intersecting interest, funding streams, and different priorities. The biggest challenge was
creating a cohesive strategy.
Ms. MacDonald said she had a very positive experience working with the County
and applying for the grant program. She was excited to look into the Elevate Business
program and Climate Action Plan.
Mayor Mouton appreciated Mr. LaTondresse’s attendance at the meeting and
thanked him for the assistance to small businesses.
b.
Presentation of Greater Wayzata Chamber of Commerce Exceptional Service
Award to Benedict’s Wayzata & Patty Kewitsch
Mr. Dahl introduced Sarah Kaelberer, Chamber Board of Directors, to present the award
to one of Wayzata’s thriving businesses.
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Ms. Kaelberer said it was her delight to share the first ever establishment to be
nominated twice. She talked about Patty Kewitsch and her hospitality. Ms. Kaelberer
displayed the plaque and congratulated Ms. Kewitsch.
Ms. Kewitsch said she had been in the community for over 40 years and loved what
she did. She expressed her thanks for the award.
c.
Yelvgeniy Ogranovich, 15610 Holdridge Road E
Mr. Ogranovich said he wished to address two topics. First, he received an order to move
his boat from his property in early April. He stated that he had complied, but wanted to
appeal the order. Since moving his boat, he noticed numerous residents parking boats,
recreational vehicles, etc. on their properties. He felt like the City was enforcing this rule
selectively.
Mayor Mouton said those citations come from the Police Department and the
Council was not privy to those records. She suggested that he work with staff, but stated
that the Council was not the appropriate place for a formal appeal. Mr. Ogranovich said
the order said it could be appealed to the City Council.
Mr. Dahl said there was not a current violation to appeal because he had complied
with the order. He explained that the City reactively enforces most of its code due to
staffing limitations.
Mr. Ogranovich said they also had their neighbor’s water draining into his yard.
He stated he had erosion issues, washed away trees, and driveway damage. The City was
supposed to fix some of the issues, but had not done so. He wanted to bring it to the
Council’s attention.
Mayor Mouton said the issue fell under the Public Works Department and asked
Mr. Kelly to follow up with Mr. Ogranovich.
AGENDA ITEM 6. New Agenda Items.
None.
AGENDA ITEM 7. Consent Agenda.
Mayor Mouton read the items on the consent agenda and asked if any Council member
wished to pull an item for further discussion. Hearing no such request, she asked for a
motion to approve the Consent Agenda as presented. Mr. Buchanan made a motion,
seconded by Ms. Iverson, to approve the consent agenda:
a.
Approval of City Council Workshop, Reconvene of Local Board of Appeal and
Equalization, and Regular Meeting Minutes of April 20, 2021
b.
Approval of Check Register
c.
Approval of Municipal Licenses
d.
Approval of Amendment to the 2020-2022 Public Works Union Contract with the
American Federation of State, County, and Municipal Employees
e.
Adoption of Resolution 16-2021 Delegating Authority for Electronic Fund
Transfers and Online Banking for the City of Wayzata
f.
Approval of Proposal from AEM Financial Solutions, LLC to Update the City’s
Utility Rate Study
Upon roll call vote, the motion carried 5/0.
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AGENDA ITEM 8. New Business.
a.
Consider Approval of First Reading of Amendments to Ordinance Chapter
203 Fire Department
Mr. Dahl said this item needed to be tabled because of an update.
Ms. Yager explained the proposed action was to update the ordinance to reflect that
the Fire Department was moving away from bylaws and elections. However, the Fire
Department noted some errors in the First Reading. Ms. Yager said it was important to get
it right the first time and recommended tabling the item to the next Council meeting.
Mayor Mouton ensured that any amendments would be ready by the following
Council meeting and asked for a motion to table. Mr. Plechash made a motion, seconded
by Ms. MacDonald, to table the First Reading of Ordinance No. 805, Amending Wayzata
City Code Ch. 203 (Fire Department). Upon roll call vote, the motion carried 5/0.
b.

Consider Approval of the Site Plan for the Lake Street and Barry Avenue
Parking Lot
Mr. Kelly presented the Site Plan for the Lake Street and Barry Avenue Public Parking
Lot. He discussed the site location, plan review, parking layout, lighting plan, monument
sign, future electric vehicle charging stations, wetland enhancements, and staff
recommendation.
Ms. Iverson asked if the landscaping surrounding the monument sign would impend
driver’s ability to see. Mr. Kelly said the sign and landscaping would not be within sight
lines.
Mr. Buchanan said thank you for the charging stations and asked about the ability
to expand in the future. Mr. Kelly talked about the challenges including the transformer
and placement.
Mr. Plechash asked if there would be a parking sign on Barry Avenue as well. Mr.
Kelly answered that there would be the standard blue P for parking on Barry Avenue. Mr.
Plechash asked if the City would charge to use the electric charging stations. Mr. Kelly
said the City planned to implement the same policy as the charging stations by The Muni.
Mr. Plechash asked if they were marked so that only electric vehicles could park there. Mr.
Kelly said yes.
Ms. MacDonald also questioned the number of potential charging stations. Mr.
Kelly said he was happy to look at it, but the stations at The Muni were always
underutilized.
Mayor Mouton asked if the monument sign would be on the sidewalk. Mr. Kelly
said it was on the bump out.
Mayor Mouton asked for a motion on the proposed Site Plan. Mr. Plechash made
a motion, seconded by Mr. Buchanan, to Approve the Site Plan for the Lake Street and
Barry Avenue Parking Lot.
Mr. Kelly said he would have a conversation with the development team about
upsizing the cabinetry in order to have more capacity in the future.
Upon roll call vote, the motion carried 5/0.
AGENDA ITEM 9. City Manager's Report and Discussion Items.
a.
Upcoming Events/Announcements
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Mr. Dahl congratulated David Gesch, Redeemer Christian Academy teacher, who won
National Teacher of the Year for the Lutheran Teacher Association. Wayzata was proud
and lucky to have educators like him.
Mr. Dahl also announced that Panoway on Wayzata Bay won one of the best new
project awards from Finance and Commerce Magazine. He offered congratulations to the
Council and the community.
b.
Council Member Updates/Announcements
Mayor Mouton mentioned a complaint from a resident concerning noise from vehicular
traffic along Lake Street. She said as downtown got busier during the summer months, the
City would have to find that balance. She also noted the Council was getting ready for its
Strategic Planning Retreat. Last, she was saddened to report that Mr. Jerry Johnson had
passed on April 17th. He and his wife had both been recognized by the Council for decades
of service. Mayor Mouton offered her condolences to his wife, Nancy.
AGENDA ITEM 10. Public Forum Continued (if necessary).
There were no comments.
AGENDA ITEM 11. Adjournment.
There being no further business, Mayor Mouton asked for a motion to adjourn. Ms. Iverson
made a motion, seconded by Ms. MacDonald to adjourn. Mayor Mouton adjourned the
meeting at 8:17 p.m.
Respectfully submitted,

Kathy Leervig
City Clerk
Drafted by Sarah Peterson
TimeSaver Off Site Secretarial, Inc.
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City of Wayzata
City Council Agenda Report

MEETING DATE: May 18, 2021
AGENDA ITEM: 7.b
TITLE: Approval of Check Register
PROPOSED MOTION: To Approve the Payment of Checks and Electronic Funds Transferred April and May
2021
PREPARED BY: Kathy Ovshak, Senior Accountant
REVIEWED BY: Jeff Dahl, City Manager, Aurora Yager, Administrative Services Director
ACTION REQUESTED:
Staff recommends the approval of checks and EFT's.
FINANCIAL OR BUDGET CONSIDERATION:
N/A
BACKGROUND:
N/A
ATTACHMENTS:
1.
Detail Check Register - April & May 2021
2.
EFT Register - May 2021
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CITY OF WAYZATA

*Check Detail Register©
Batch: 050421PAY,051121PAY,051221PAY

Check #

Check Date

Vendor Name

Amount

Invoice

Comment

10100 Old National
05/05/21
120104
E 640-47000-252

BREAKTHRU BEVERAGE MN
Wine For Resale

E 640-47000-259

Freight

E 640-47000-251

Liquor For Resale

E 640-47000-259
E 640-47000-252

Freight
Wine For Resale

E 640-47000-259

Freight

E 640-47000-252
E 640-47000-259

Wine For Resale
Freight

$517.23

339184792

$6.76

339184792

WINE
FREIGHT

$2,026.36

339184793

LIQUOR

$12.56
$68.00

339184793
339184794

FREIGHT
WINE

$1.45

339184794

FREIGHT

$71.39
$1.21

339184795
339184795

WINE
FREIGHT

$180.00

339184796

MISC.MDSE.

$1.45

339184796

FREIGHT

E 640-47000-254

Soft Drinks/Mix For Resal

E 640-47000-259

Freight

E 640-47000-252
E 640-47000-259

Wine For Resale
Freight

$297.30
$2.90

339184797
339184797

WINE
FREIGHT

E 640-47000-252

Wine For Resale

$76.00

339184798

WINE

E 640-47000-259
E 640-48000-251

Freight
Liquor For Resale

$1.45
$211.00

339184798
339270038

FREIGHT
LIQUOR

E 640-48000-252

Wine For Resale
Total

$113.80

339270038

WINE

$3,588.86

BREAKTHRU BEVERAGE
Beer For Resale

$5,524.20

339186335

BEER

$60.10

339186336

BEER

$321.00

339271716

BEER

05/05/21
120105
E 640-47000-253
E 640-47000-253

Beer For Resale

E 640-48000-253

Beer For Resale
Total

05/05/21
120106
E 640-48500-210
E 640-48500-217

CINTAS CORPORATION
Operating Supplies (GEN
Uniforms
Total

$5,905.30

$112.21

4082774709 KITCHEN SUPPLIES

$27.28

4082774709 KITCHEN UNIFORMS

$139.49

05/05/21
120107
E 640-48000-253

DAHLHEIMER DISTRIBUTING CO.
Beer For Resale
$483.00
Total
$483.00

1386471

05/05/21
120108
E 640-48000-415

DIRECTV
Other Equipment Rentals
Total

050852385X SERVICE

$325.96

BEER

$325.96

05/05/21
120109
E 640-47000-253

FALLING KNIFE BREWING COMPANY
Beer For Resale
$140.00
Total
$140.00

3190

BEER

05/05/21
120110
E 640-48500-404

HARNELL REFRIGERATION
Repairs/Maint - Machin/Eq
Total

2128

GRIDDLE REPAIRS

$554.19

HOBART SERVICE
Repairs/Maint - Machin/Eq
Total

34689720

DISHWASHER DISPOSAL REPAIRS

$303.39

05/05/21
120111
E 640-48500-404

$554.19

$303.39
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CITY OF WAYZATA

*Check Detail Register©
Batch: 050421PAY,051121PAY,051221PAY

Check #

Check Date

Vendor Name

Amount

Invoice

05/05/21
120112
E 640-48000-253

JJ TAYLOR DISTRIBUTING OF MN_
Beer For Resale
$531.00
Total
$531.00

05/05/21
120113
E 640-47000-251
E 640-47000-253

JOHNSON BROS.-ST.PAUL
Liquor For Resale
Beer For Resale

E 640-47000-259

Freight

E 640-47000-252

Wine For Resale

E 640-47000-259

Freight
Total

05/05/21
120114
E 640-47000-404

LOFFLER COMPANIES, INC.
Repairs/Maint - Machin/Eq

$8,555.81
$565.00

Comment

3187030

BEER

1784440
1784440

LIQUOR
BEER
FREIGHT

$85.04

1784440

$2,749.85

1784441

WINE

$42.83

1784441

FREIGHT

$11,998.53

$177.76

3649818

COMPUTER SUPPORT

E 640-47000-404

Repairs/Maint - Machin/Eq

$2.67

3685652

COMPUTER SUPPORT

E 640-47000-404

Repairs/Maint - Machin/Eq
Total

$2.67

3712082

COMPUTER SUPPORT

$183.10

MAIN STREET BAKERY
FOODIngredients For Res

$166.70

401374

FOOD RESALE

$127.50

401471

FOOD RESALE

05/05/21
120115
E 640-48500-255
E 640-48500-255

FOODIngredients For Res
Total

$294.20

PHILLIPS WINES & SPIRITS
Liquor For Resale

$104.00

6188810-1

LIQUOR

E 640-47000-251

Liquor For Resale

$993.08

6191588

LIQUOR

E 640-47000-259

Freight

$11.34

6191588

FREIGHT

E 640-47000-252
E 640-47000-259

Wine For Resale
Freight

$1,040.00
$11.34

6191589
6191589

WINE RESALE
FREIGHT

E 640-48000-251

Liquor For Resale
Total

$622.13

6193796

LIQUOR

$2,781.89

REINHART FOODSERVICE
FOODIngredients For Res

$2,216.65

576665

FOOD

$176.67
$112.97

576665
576665

KITCHEN SUPPLIES
MISC.BEV.
LIQUOR

05/05/21
120116
E 640-47000-251

05/05/21
120117
E 640-48500-255
E 640-48500-210
E 640-48000-254

Operating Supplies (GEN
Soft Drinks/Mix For Resal

E 640-48000-251

Liquor For Resale

E 640-48500-255

FOODIngredients For Res

E 640-48500-210
E 640-48000-254

Operating Supplies (GEN
Soft Drinks/Mix For Resal

E 640-48000-251

Liquor For Resale

E 640-48500-255
E 640-48500-210

FOODIngredients For Res
Operating Supplies (GEN

$25.79

576665

$3,719.89

579029

FOOD

$14.57
$187.57

579029
579029

KITCHEN SUPPLIES
MISC.BEV.

$68.65

579029

LIQUOR

$2,772.93
$176.67

581218
581218

FOOD
KITCHEN SUPPLIES

E 640-48000-254

Soft Drinks/Mix For Resal

$66.16

581218

MISC.BEV.

E 640-48000-251

Liquor For Resale

$50.48

581218

LIQUOR

E 640-48500-255
E 640-48000-254

FOODIngredients For Res
Soft Drinks/Mix For Resal

$3,936.39
$93.33

584121
584121

FOOD
MISC.BEV.

E 640-48000-251

Liquor For Resale
Total

$13.32

584121

LIQUOR

$13,632.04
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CITY OF WAYZATA

*Check Detail Register©
Batch: 050421PAY,051121PAY,051221PAY

Check #

Check Date

05/05/21
120118
E 640-47000-251
E 640-47000-251

Vendor Name

Amount

SOUTHERN GLAZER`S
Liquor For Resale
Liquor For Resale

E 640-47000-259

Freight

E 640-47000-251

Liquor For Resale

E 640-47000-259
E 640-47000-252

Freight
Wine For Resale

Invoice

Comment

($215.90) 2068786
$215.90 2068786

LIQUOR
LIQUOR

$1.28

2068786

FREIGHT

$514.77

2071335

LIQUOR

$4.16
$1,140.00

2071335
2071336

FREIGHT
WINE

E 640-47000-259

Freight

$20.48

2071336

FREIGHT

E 640-47000-254
E 640-47000-259

Soft Drinks/Mix For Resal
Freight

$115.00
$6.40

2071337
2071337

MIX
FREIGHT

$104.00

2071338

WINE

$1.28

2071338

FREIGHT

$5,346.01
$40.96

2071339
2071339

LIQUOR
FREIGHT

0481574

KITCHEN SUPPLIES

E 640-47000-252

Wine For Resale

E 640-47000-259

Freight

E 640-47000-251
E 640-47000-259

Liquor For Resale
Freight
Total

05/05/21
120119
E 640-48500-210

05/05/21
120120
E 640-48500-210

SUNBURST CHEMICALS, INC.
Operating Supplies (GEN
Total
TRIO SUPPLY COMPANY
Operating Supplies (GEN

$7,294.34

$538.66
$538.66

$42.76

675416

KITCHEN SUPPLIES

E 640-48500-210

Operating Supplies (GEN

$1,339.57

675525

KITCHEN SUPPLIES

E 640-48000-210
E 640-48500-210

Operating Supplies (GEN
Operating Supplies (GEN
Total

$57.44
$1,240.70

675525
676303

BAR SUPPLIES
KITCHEN SUPPLIES

05/05/21
120121
E 640-48500-255

$2,680.47

US FOODS
FOODIngredients For Res

$666.32

4595861

FOOD

E 640-48000-251

Liquor For Resale

$121.95

4595861

LIQUOR

E 640-48500-255
E 640-48500-255

FOODIngredients For Res
FOODIngredients For Res
Total

$877.55
$44.85

4735991
4738434

FOOD
FOOD

$267.66

132381

WINE

$307.66

7326832

WINE

1108

9/11 MEMORIAL

$69.67

486304

TOOLS

$39.49

486950

TOOLS

441780

PAYROLL RFP

05/05/21
120122
E 640-48000-252
E 640-48000-252

05/11/21
120123
E 233-40000-309

05/11/21
120124
E 101-45200-240
E 101-45200-240

05/11/21
120125
E 409-40000-540

WINE MERCHANT
Wine For Resale
Wine For Resale
Total
42 | DESIGN FAB STUDIO, INC
Contractual Services
Total
A-1 OUTDOOR POWER, INC.
Small Tools and Minor Eq
Small Tools and Minor Eq
Total
AEM FINANCIAL SOLUTIONS
Equipment

$1,710.67

$575.32

$1,500.00
$1,500.00

$109.16

$4,400.00
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CITY OF WAYZATA

*Check Detail Register©
Batch: 050421PAY,051121PAY,051221PAY

Check #

Check Date

E 101-41500-301

05/11/21
120126
E 437-40000-309
E 437-40000-309

05/11/21
120127
E 101-43300-433

05/11/21
120128
E 101-42200-323
E 101-41940-321

05/11/21
120129
E 101-45200-229

05/11/21
120130
E 101-41500-301

05/11/21
120131
E 101-41940-383

Vendor Name

Amount

Auditing and Acct g Servic
Total
AIRTECH
Contractual Services
Contractual Services
Total
AM.PUBLIC WORKS ASSOC.
Dues, Licensing & Semina
Total

Invoice

$4,000.00

Comment

443402

FINANCE DIR.SERVICES

$8,400.00

$428.50

40983

LIBRARY REPAIRS

$1,500.00

72556

LIBRARY MAINT.

15569-2021

MIKE KELLY MEMBERSHIP RENEWAL

$1,928.50

$450.00
$450.00

AT&T - FIRSTNET
Radio Units
Telephone
Total

$708.46

BARTON SAND & GRAVEL CO.
Dirt, Sand and gravel
Total

$220.50

$319.22
$389.24

$220.50

BRAKKE, GARY R.
Auditing and Acct g Servic
Total

$5,950.00

CENTERPOINT ENERGY
Fuel, oil and natural gas

$5,950.00

28729411044 FD SERVICE
28729845852 PW SERVICE

210430

SAND

04/27/2021

FD RELIEF AUDIT

$1,110.44

SERVICE

E 610-40000-383

Fuel, oil and natural gas

$50.48

SERVICE

E 640-47000-383
E 640-48000-383

Fuel, oil and natural gas
Fuel, oil and natural gas

$174.02
$696.06

SERVICE
SERVICE

E 101-41940-383

Fuel, oil and natural gas

$60.93

SERVICE

E 101-42200-383

Fuel, oil and natural gas
Total

$439.52

SERVICE

$2,531.45

CORE & MAIN
Maint services & Improv
Total

$186.76

05/11/21
120132
E 670-40000-409

05/11/21
120133
E 101-41940-499

05/11/21
120134
E 101-43100-226

05/11/21
120135
E 101-42200-241

05/11/21
120136
E 101-42200-200

CULLIGAN-BOTTLED WATER
Miscellaneous
Total
DIAMOND VOGEL PAINTS
Sign Repair Materials
Total
EMC
Safety equip/testings
Total
EXCEL DOCUMENT MGMT.
Office Supplies (GENERA

$186.76

$53.92

0141632

STORM WATER MAINT.

2601966

SUPPLIES

802199808

TRAFFIC PAINT

59044

FD EQUIP.

45324

FD BUS.CARDS

$53.92

$2,500.00
$2,500.00

$870.00
$870.00

$93.26
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CITY OF WAYZATA

*Check Detail Register©
Batch: 050421PAY,051121PAY,051221PAY

Check #

Check Date

Vendor Name

Amount
Total

05/11/21
120137
E 101-43100-240

05/11/21
120138
E 101-41500-306

05/11/21
120139
E 408-40000-560

05/11/21
120140
E 404-40000-499

FASTENAL
Small Tools and Minor Eq
Total

Invoice

$93.26

$31.42

MNPLY1290 TOOLS

$31.42

FSSOLUTIONS
Personnel Expense
Total

$274.93

GOELLNER, EMILY
Furniture and Fixtures
Total

$610.39

GOPHER ACE TRU VALUE
Miscellaneous

Comment

$274.93

FL00438020 RANDOM DRUG/ALCOHOL TESTING

$610.39

CITY HALL REMODEL HISTORIC PICTURES

$15.39

5984

E 101-45200-210

Operating Supplies (GEN

$4.20

6009

SUPPLIES
SUPPLIES

E 404-40000-499
E 404-40000-499

Miscellaneous
Miscellaneous

$9.33
$9.18

6017
6031

SUPPLIES
SUPPLIES

E 670-40000-409

Maint services & Improv

$9.59

6070

SUPPLIES

E 670-40000-409
E 101-41940-499

Maint services & Improv
Miscellaneous

$5.40
$9.59

6071
6086

SUPPLIES
SUPPLIES
SUPPLIES

E 610-40000-210

Operating Supplies (GEN

$37.98

6111

E 404-40000-309

Contractual Services

$8.59

6116

SUPPLIES

E 404-40000-309
E 101-41940-210

Contractual Services
Operating Supplies (GEN
Total

$8.28
$7.99

6134
6198

SUPPLIES
SUPPLIES

$125.52

GOPHER STATE ONE CALL
Permit Fees/Gopher State

$108.68

1040827

MONTHLY LOCATES

$108.67

1040827

MONTHLY LOCATES

05/11/21
120141
E 610-40000-313
E 620-40000-313

05/11/21
120142
E 101-43100-240

05/11/21
120143
E 610-40000-216
E 610-40000-216

05/11/21
120144
E 233-40000-309

05/11/21
120145
G 101-21721

Permit Fees/Gopher State
Total

$217.35

GRAINGER, INC.
Small Tools and Minor Eq
Total

$60.99

HAWKINS, INC
Chemicals and Chem Pro
Chemicals and Chem Pro
Total
HEDBERG AGGREGATES
Contractual Services
Total
HEIDER, NICK
Flex Plan

05/11/21

$1,962.42
$2,411.75

9888662146 TOOLS

4920533
4920540

CHEMICALS
CHEMICALS

$4,374.17

$279.73

108445315-0 PANAWAY GARDENS

$279.73

$680.00
Total

120146

$60.99

DEP.CARE - FLEX SPENDING

$680.00

HENN.CNTY.INFO.TECH.DEPT.
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CITY OF WAYZATA

*Check Detail Register©
Batch: 050421PAY,051121PAY,051221PAY

Check #

Check Date

Vendor Name

Amount

Invoice

Comment

E 101-43100-323

Radio Units

$270.05

1000165516 RADIO LEASE

E 101-45200-323

Radio Units

$270.05

1000165516 RADIO LEASE

E 610-40000-323
E 620-40000-323

Radio Units
Radio Units

$122.75
$122.75

1000165516 RADIO LEASE
1000165516 RADIO LEASE

E 409-42100-540

Equipment

$786.89

1000165516 PD RADIOS

Total

$1,572.49

05/11/21
120147
G 650-20818

HENNEPIN COUNTY TREASURER
Garbage Tax - Cnty 15.5
$2,826.63
Total
$2,826.63

05/11/21
120148
E 101-45200-210

HIRSHFIELD'S
Operating Supplies (GEN
Total

$19.78

HOLIDAY
Motor Fuels
Motor Fuels

$54.34
$15.01

FUEL
FUEL

$117.15

FUEL

05/11/21
120149
E 101-42100-212
E 640-47000-212
E 101-42100-212

Motor Fuels
Total

05/11/21
120150
E 101-41940-210

05/11/21
120151
E 101-41940-409

J.H. LARSON COMPANY
Operating Supplies (GEN
Total

KNOX COMPANY
Operating Supplies (GEN
Total

33231243

SUPPLIES

$186.50

$379.62

S102478317. SUPPLIES

$379.62

JEFF`S S.O.S. DRAIN & SEWER CL
Maint services & Improv
$500.00
Total

05/11/21
120152
E 101-42200-210

$19.78

COUNTY REFUSE TAX - APRIL 2021

82975

SANITARY SEWER CLEANING SERVICE BEACH HOUSE

02409725

FD SUPPLIES

$500.00

$459.00
$459.00

05/11/21
120153
E 101-49200-365

LEAGUE OF MN CITIES INS.TRUST
Workers Comp Ins
$13,856.00
Total
$13,856.00

40002941

W/C AUDIT PREMIUM ADJUSTMENT

05/11/21
120154
E 409-40000-540

LOFFLER COMPANIES, INC.
Equipment
Total

CW119120

CABLING

P34425
P34499

PARTS
PARTS

$2,016.00

06/18/2020

DOCK MAINT.

$5,344.00

SPRING2021 DOCK INSTALLATION

05/11/21
120155
E 101-43100-220
E 101-43100-220

05/11/21
120156
E 404-40000-409
E 404-40000-309

MACQUEEN EQUIPMENT
Repair/Maint Supply (GEN
Repair/Maint Supply (GEN
Total
MARINE DOCK & LIFT
Maint services & Improv
Contractual Services
Total

$195.00
$195.00

$33.65
$96.49
$130.14

$7,360.00
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CITY OF WAYZATA

*Check Detail Register©
Batch: 050421PAY,051121PAY,051221PAY

Check #

Check Date

05/11/21
120157
E 610-49100-499

Vendor Name

Amount

MEDIACOM
Miscellaneous

Comment

$1,620.00
Total

05/11/21
120158
E 620-40000-386

Invoice

METROPOLITAN COUNCIL
Other Utilities
Total

SERVICE

$1,620.00

$43,988.86

0001124364 SEWER SERVICE

$43,988.86

05/11/21
120159
E 404-40000-409

MINNETONKA GOPHER ACE HARDWARE
Maint services & Improv
$27.54
Total
$27.54

754

SUPPLIES

05/11/21
120160
E 101-42400-309

MINNETONKA, CITY OF
Contractual Services
Total

2021.05.01

PERMIT TECH

$981.06
$981.06

05/11/21
120161
E 101-41500-433

MN CITY/COUNTY MANAGEMENT ASSO
Dues, Licensing & Semina
$199.38
Total
$199.38

05/11/21
120162
E 101-43100-216

NAPA AUTO PARTS-LONG LAKE
Chemicals and Chem Pro
Total

05/11/21
120163
E 101-43100-226

05/11/21
120164
E 101-42400-200

NEWMAN TRAFFIC SIGNS
Sign Repair Materials
Total

$7.31

A.YAGER MEMBERSHIP

3270-504805 SUPPLIES

$7.31

$967.83

TRFINV0305 TRAFFIC SIGNS

$967.83

OFFICE DEPOT
Office Supplies (GENERA

$45.61

E 630-40000-200

Office Supplies (GENERA

$28.10

16855331900 SUPPLIES

E 101-42400-200
E 101-41500-200

Office Supplies (GENERA
Office Supplies (GENERA

$9.23
$48.14

16855332300 SUPPLIES
16885146700 SUPPLIES

E 101-41500-200

Office Supplies (GENERA
Total

$6.63

16888750500 SUPPLIES

$137.71

05/11/21
120165
E 101-41940-321
E 101-41940-321

05/11/21
120166
E 630-40000-431

05/11/21
120167
E 101-45200-210

05/11/21
120168
E 430-40000-302

16853878400 SUPPLIES

POPP TELECOM
Telephone

$65.00

162689

PHONE FORWARDING REPAIRS

Telephone

$65.00

162781

PHONE FORWARDING REPAIRS

Total

$130.00

REMIEN, CHARLES
Cash Over/Short
Total

$127.25

MV REFUND

$127.25

SITEONE LANDSCAPE SUPPLY
Operating Supplies (GEN
Total

$9.45

SRF CONSULTING GROUP, INC.
Consultants

$667.60

$9.45

108917505-0 SUPPLIES

14636.00-1

WAYZATA QUIET ZONE
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CITY OF WAYZATA

*Check Detail Register©
Batch: 050421PAY,051121PAY,051221PAY

Check #

Check Date

05/11/21
120170
E 101-42100-217

05/11/21
120171
E 101-41940-404

05/11/21
120172
E 101-45200-210

Vendor Name

Amount

Invoice

Total

$667.60

Total

$159.99

STREICHER'S
Uniforms

$159.99

SUMMIT FIRE PROTECTION
Repairs/Maint - Machin/Eq
Total

$293.22

SUPPLY SOLUTIONS LLC
Operating Supplies (GEN

$293.22

Comment

I1499230

PD UNIFORM

130014061

PARTS

BLDG.SUPPLIES

$110.59

32445

E 101-45200-210

Operating Supplies (GEN

$59.67

32497

PARKS SUPPLIES

E 101-41940-210

Operating Supplies (GEN
Total

$70.00

32510

BLDG.SUPPLIES

M26415

MTG.MINUTES

05/11/21
120173
E 101-41100-302

TIME SAVER
Consultants

$531.20
Total

05/11/21
120174
E 101-43100-220
E 101-43100-220

$240.26

TITAN MACHINERY
Repair/Maint Supply (GEN
Repair/Maint Supply (GEN
Total

$531.20

$61.73

15436136

PARTS

$152.32

15458828

PARTS

$214.05

05/11/21
120175
E 101-42100-309

TRANSUNION RISK AND ALTERNATIV
Contractual Services
$100.00
Total
$100.00

05/11/21
120176
E 101-43100-229

TRI-K SERVICES
Dirt, Sand and gravel

E 101-45200-229

05/11/21
120177
E 101-41940-210

Dirt, Sand and gravel
Total
ULINE
Operating Supplies (GEN
Total

$16.00

9066

DIRT

$320.00

9066

DIRT

133227555

BLDG.SUPPLIES

$336.00

$422.99
$422.99

05/11/21
120178
E 101-45200-409

UNIVERSAL ATHLETIC SERVICE INC
Maint services & Improv
$139.99
Total
$139.99

05/11/21
120179
E 404-40000-499

UPS STORE
Miscellaneous

$48.72
Total

55918512021 PD SERVICE

150-0054663 TENNIS COURT NET

3473

SPRING SPLASH POSTER

$48.72

05/11/21
120180
E 408-40000-302

VAN METER WILLIAMS POLLACK, LL
Consultants
$2,994.90
Total
$2,994.90

05/11/21
120181
E 101-42100-404

WAYZATA CHEVROLET
Repairs/Maint - Machin/Eq

$135.03

2030-202102 ZONING STUDY

843964-1

SQUAD REPAIRS
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CITY OF WAYZATA

*Check Detail Register©
Batch: 050421PAY,051121PAY,051221PAY

Check #

Check Date

Vendor Name

Amount
Total

05/11/21
120182
E 408-40000-302
E 408-40000-302

E 101-41940-381
E 101-42200-381

Comment

$135.03

WSB & ASSOCIATES
Consultants

$820.00

R -016906-00 ZONING STUDY

Consultants

$123.00

R-016906-00 ZONING STUDY

Total
05/11/21
120183
E 101-45203-381

Invoice

$943.00

XCEL ENERGY
Electric Utilities

$5,903.82

SERVICE

Electric Utilities
Electric Utilities

$4,358.77
$543.56

SERVICE
SERVICE

E 610-40000-381

Electric Utilities

$4,784.89

SERVICE

E 640-47000-381

Electric Utilities

$1,221.00

SERVICE

E 640-48000-381
E 620-40000-381

Electric Utilities
Electric Utilities

$2,849.00
$508.98

SERVICE
SERVICE

E 101-41940-381

Electric Utilities

$21.55

SERVICE

05/12/21
120184
E 640-47000-253

05/12/21
120185
E 640-47000-254
E 640-47000-259
E 640-48000-251

Total

$20,191.57

56 BREWING LLC
Beer For Resale
Total

$68.00

$68.00

5614133

BEER

BREAKTHRU BEVERAGE MN
Soft Drinks/Mix For Resal

$109.04

339270080

MIX

Freight
Liquor For Resale

$4.35
$212.45

339270080
339366494

FREIGHT
LIQUOR

$90.97

339366551

LIQUOR

E 640-47000-251

Liquor For Resale

E 640-47000-259
E 640-47000-254

Freight
Soft Drinks/Mix For Resal

$0.24 339366551
($44.28) 408432253

FREIGHT
MIX

E 640-48000-252

Wine For Resale
Total

($37.45) 408535283

WINE

05/12/21
120186
E 640-47000-253
E 640-48000-253
E 640-48000-253

05/12/21
120187
E 640-48000-253

05/12/21
120188
E 640-48500-210

05/12/21
120189
E 640-47000-254

120190

05/12/21

BREAKTHRU BEVERAGE
Beer For Resale
Beer For Resale
Beer For Resale
Total

$335.32

$3,185.05

339271769

BEER

$300.00
$331.00

339365484
339365485

BEER
BEER

2544123

BEER

$3,816.05

CAPITOL BEVERAGE SALES
Beer For Resale
Total

$396.00

CINTAS CORPORATION
Operating Supplies (GEN
Total

$139.49

COCA-COLA
Soft Drinks/Mix For Resal
Total

$396.00

$139.49

$871.28

4083429079 KITCHEN SUPPLIES

3609209431 MISC MIX

$871.28

DAHLHEIMER DISTRIBUTING CO.
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CITY OF WAYZATA

*Check Detail Register©
Batch: 050421PAY,051121PAY,051221PAY

Check #

Check Date

Vendor Name

Amount

Invoice

Comment

E 640-47000-253

Beer For Resale

$448.25

1388526

BEER

E 640-48000-253

Beer For Resale
Total

$502.00

1389992

BEER

$950.25

JOHNSON BROS.-ST.PAUL
Liquor For Resale
Freight

$100.75
$1.26

1789720
1789720

LIQUOR
FREIGHT

$128.00

1789721

WINE

$2.52

1789721

FREIGHT

05/12/21
120191
E 640-47000-251
E 640-47000-259
E 640-47000-252

Wine For Resale

E 640-47000-259

Freight

E 640-47000-251
E 640-47000-259

Liquor For Resale
Freight

$148.00
$5.04

1792213
1792213

LIQUOR
FREIGHT

E 640-47000-251

Liquor For Resale

$741.78

1792588

LIQUOR

E 640-47000-259
E 640-47000-252

Freight
Wine For Resale

$8.82
$4,559.64

1792588
1792589

FREIGHT
WINE

E 640-47000-259

Freight

E 640-47000-251

Liquor For Resale

E 640-47000-259

Freight

05/12/21
120192
E 640-47000-252
E 640-47000-259

05/12/21
120193
E 640-47000-256

05/12/21
120194
E 640-48000-409

$68.04

1792589

FREIGHT

$916.45

1794774

LIQUOR

$3.99

1794774

FREIGHT

35155
35155

WINE RESALE
FREIGHT

320124

CIGARETTES

Total

$6,684.29

LIBATION PROJECT
Wine For Resale
Freight
Total

$300.00
$4.50
$304.50

M.AMUNDSON LLP
MISC.MDSE.RESALE
Total

$1,261.40

$1,261.40

MINNEHAHA BLDG.MAINT.INC.
Maint services & Improv

$29.03

180176634

BLDG.MAINT.

E 640-48000-409

Maint services & Improv

$68.82

180178430

BLDG.MAINT.

E 640-47000-409

Maint services & Improv
Total

$47.31

180178431

BLDG.MAINT.

$145.16

MODIST BREWING CO. LLC
Beer For Resale
Total

21481

BEER

$165.00

$1,052.00

0011327

LIQUOR

$5.04

0011327

FREIGHT

$84.00

0011328

WINE

$1.26

0011328

FREIGHT

122333-1

WINE RESALE

22032

BEER

05/12/21
120195
E 640-48000-253

05/12/21
120196
E 640-47000-251

ORIGIN WINE & SPIRITS
Liquor For Resale

E 640-47000-259

Freight

E 640-47000-252

Wine For Resale

E 640-47000-259

Freight

05/12/21
120197
E 640-47000-252

05/12/21
120198
E 640-47000-253

$165.00

Total

$1,142.30

PAUSTIS & SONS
Wine For Resale
Total

$120.00

$120.00

PRYES BREWING COMPANY LLC
Beer For Resale
$318.00
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CITY OF WAYZATA

*Check Detail Register©
Batch: 050421PAY,051121PAY,051221PAY

Check #

Check Date

Vendor Name

Amount
Total

05/12/21
120199
E 640-47000-252
E 640-47000-259

E 640-47000-259

Comment

$318.00

SMALL LOT MN
Wine For Resale

$159.96

MN42347

WINE

$5.00

MN42347

FREIGHT

$187.00

2074152

LIQUOR

$1.28

2074152

FREIGHT

Freight
Total

05/12/21
120200
E 640-47000-251

Invoice

$164.96

SOUTHERN GLAZER`S
Liquor For Resale
Freight
Total

$188.28

05/12/21
120201
E 640-47000-254

SUMMER LAKES BEVERAGE LLC
Soft Drinks/Mix For Resal
$630.00
Total
$630.00

2138

MISC.BEV

05/12/21
120202
E 640-48000-409

T.D. ANDERSON INC.
Maint services & Improv
Total

017326

BEER LINE SERVICE

40136070

SUPPLIES

05/12/21
120203
E 640-48000-210

05/12/21
120204
E 640-47000-252
E 640-47000-254

$120.00
$120.00

TOLL GAS & WELDING SUPPLY
Operating Supplies (GEN
Total
WINE MERCHANT
Wine For Resale

$64.88
$64.88

$2,464.00

7327830

WINE

$23.00

7327830

MIX

$25.20

7327830

FREIGHT

$1,477.52

7328805

WINE

Soft Drinks/Mix For Resal

E 640-47000-259

Freight

E 640-48000-252

Wine For Resale
Total

$3,989.72

10100 Old National

$210,791.87

Fund Summary
10100 Old National
101 GENERAL FUND
233 LAKFRONT IMPROVE

$49,496.51
$1,779.73

404 PARK AND TRAIL CIP

$7,487.03

408 GENERAL CIP

$4,548.29

409 EQUIP REVOLVING
430 STREET CIP

$5,381.89
$667.60

437 LIBRARY/COMM.ROOM CIP
610 WATER FUND
620 SEWER FUND
630 MOTOR VEHICLE
640 LIQUOR
650 SOLID WASTE
670 STORMWATER

$1,928.50
$11,098.95
$44,729.26
$155.35
$80,490.38
$2,826.63
$201.75
$210,791.87
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CITY OF WAYZATA
EFT

*Check Detail Register©
May 2021

Check #

Check Date

Vendor Name

Amount

Invoice

Comment

10100 Old National
05/05/21
1134 e
G 630-20300

05/05/21
1135 e
G 630-20300

05/06/21
1136 e
G 630-20300

05/07/21
1137 e
G 630-20812

05/07/21
1138 e
G 630-20812

05/07/21
1139 e
G 630-20300

05/11/21
1140 e
G 630-20300

STATE OF MINNESOTA
Deposits Payable
Total

$412,085.20

STATE OF MINNESOTA
Deposits Payable
Total

$301,026.90

STATE OF MINNESOTA
Deposits Payable
Total

$183,144.89

$412,085.20

$301,026.90

$203.00
Total

$203.00

Total

$10,416.76

$10,416.76

STATE OF MINNESOTA
Deposits Payable
Total

$277,186.94

STATE OF MINNESOTA
Deposits Payable
Total

$359,318.81

10100 Old National

DMV05/03/2021 TRANSFER

$183,144.89

MN DNR
DNR REG

MN DNR
DNR REG

DMV 05/04/2021 STATE TRANSFER

$277,186.94

$359,318.81

DMV STATE 05/05/2021

05/07/21

DNR EFT PAYMENT

DNR 05/07/2021

STATE DMV 05/06/2021

STATE DMV 05/10/2021

$1,543,382.50

Fund Summary
10100 Old National
630 MOTOR VEHICLE

$1,543,382.50
$1,543,382.50
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City of Wayzata
City Council Agenda Report

MEETING DATE: May 18, 2021
AGENDA ITEM: 7.c
TITLE: Approval of Municipal Licenses
PROPOSED MOTION: To Approve the Municipal Licenses as Attached
PREPARED BY: Kathy Leervig, City Clerk
REVIEWED BY: Jeff Dahl, City Manager
ACTION REQUESTED:
Staff recommends approval of the Municipal Licenses.
FINANCIAL OR BUDGET CONSIDERATION:
N/A
BACKGROUND:
N/A
ATTACHMENTS:
1.
List of Municipal Licenses for City Council Approval and Municipal Licenses Which Received
Administrative Approval (informational only).
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5/18/2021
LIST OF MUNICIPAL LICENSES FOR CITY COUNCIL APPROVAL
Recommended for approval, pending staff review for completeness of application materials
WERE APPROVED ADMINISTRATIVELY
Lakefront Pedi Cab LLC (Company)

John Lura (Pedicab Driver)
Air Mechanical, Inc.
Angell Aire, Inc.

2021 Pedicab License
Wayzata MN
Wayzata MN
2021 Gas Fitters License
Ham Lake, MN
Burnsville, MN
2021 Tree Removal & Treatment License
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City of Wayzata
City Council Agenda Report

MEETING DATE: May 18, 2021
AGENDA ITEM: 7.d
TITLE: Receipt of Police Activity Report
PROPOSED MOTION: N/A
PREPARED BY: Heather McKown, Police Records Supervisor
REVIEWED BY: Jeff Dahl, City Manager, Marc Schultz, Interim Police Chief
ACTION REQUESTED:
The attached April 2021 Police Activity Report is for informational purposes only.
FINANCIAL OR BUDGET CONSIDERATION:
N/A
BACKGROUND:
N/A
ATTACHMENTS:
1.
April 2021 Police Activity Report

Page 25 of 255

WAYZATA POLICE DEPARTMENT
ACTIVITY REPORT – APRIL 2021

-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Warrant
Reported: 04-30-2021 1838
26 year old male from Shakopee arrested on an outstanding warrant. Transported to jail.
Addresses Involved
Hwy 12 & Brown Rd, Long Lake, MN 55356
Names Involved
(Arrested)Shirwa, Sade Abdirahman (Age: 26)
-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Theft
Reported: 04-30-2021 0309
Report of a theft. Loss $67.
Addresses Involved
1300 block of Wayzata Blvd E, Wayzata, MN 55391
-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------DWI
Reported: 04-28-2021 2259
49 year old female from Woodland arrested for driving under the influence of alcohol. Tested
.11
Addresses Involved
Bushaway Rd & McGinty Rd, Wayzata, MN 55391
Names Involved
(Arrested)Evenstad, Shannon Mahoney (Age: 49)
-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Burglary-Residential
Reported: 04-27-2021 0707
Report of a burglary. Loss amount $550.
Addresses Involved
100 block of Gleason Lake Rd, Wayzata, MN 55391
-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Theft
Reported: 04-24-2021 2107
Report of a theft. Loss $1038.
Addresses Involved
1100 block of Wayzata Blvd E, Wayzata, MN 55391
-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------DWI
Reported: 04-13-2021 2020
51 year old male from Minnetonka arrested for driving under the influence of alcohol. Tested
.24
Addresses Involved
700 block of Lake St E, Wayzata, MN 55391
Carlson Pkwy & Twelve Oaks Center Dr, Minnetonka, MN 55391
Names Involved
(Arrested)Husfeldt, Daniel Scott (Age: 51)
-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Theft from Vehicle
Reported: 04-13-2021 0711
Report of a theft from a vehicle. Loss over $1000.
Addresses Involved
200 block of Central Ave N, Wayzata, MN 55391
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
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----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Warrant
Reported: 04-08-2021 1944
21 year old male arrested for an outstanding warrant. Released with a new court date.
Addresses Involved
200 block of Central Ave N, Wayzata, MN 55391
Names Involved
(Arrested)Graham, Dylan Blackwell (Age: 21)
-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Theft by Swindle
Reported: 04-05-2021 1539
Report of a theft. Loss $450.
Addresses Involved
1000 block of Wayzata Blvd E, Wayzata, MN 55391
-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Damage to Property
Reported: 04-04-2021 2237
Report of damage to property. Loss $350.
Addresses Involved
500 block of Willow Dr, Long Lake, MN 55356
-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Theft
Reported: 04-03-2021 2059
Report of a theft. Loss $45.
Addresses Involved
600 block of Lake St E, Wayzata, MN 55391
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

TRAFFIC – APRIL, 2021
CITATIONS
WRITTEN WARNINGS
VERBAL WARNINGS

Description

106
9
53

Apr 2021

MISSING PERSON

2

MISSING/LOST PROPERTY

1

FOUND PROPERTY

5

ABANDONED VEHICLE

3

RECOVERED STOLEN PROPERTY

2

PIMV

2

PDMV

5

H & R PDMV

3

Other Fire/Smoke

1
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FIRE ALARM

6

GAS LEAK/SMELL

3

HAZ ROAD CONDITION

12

SUICIDE THREAT

1

SUDDEN DEATH

1

OTHER MEDICAL

41

72 Hour Hold/Emergency Admission
WELFARE CHECK - ADULT

2
15

WELFARE CHECK - JUV

1

MENTAL HEALTH ISSUE

1

INFO REC'D

7

VERBAL DOMESTIC

2

CIVIL MATTER

5

DISTURBANCE/FIGHT/LOUD PARTY/HARASSMENT

9

RECEIVE COURT ORDER/OFP

1

SUSPICION

21

OPEN DOOR/WINDOW

2

SCAM/FRAUD ATTEMPT

1

MISC. JUVENILE PROBLEM

1

DRIVING/TRAFFIC COMPLAINT
PARKING COMPL

14
7

HOUSE/BUSINESS CHECKS

75

RECORD CHECKS

11

FIREARM PERMIT

4

HC SHERIFFS PERMIT TO CARRY

15

PARKING PERMIT

4

OTHER ORD VIOL (JUNK CARS, ETC)

3

NOISE VIOLATION

1

ANIMAL COMPLAINT/CHECK

9

DOG LICENSE ISSUED

4

POLICE ESCORT/STAND-BY

1

ADULT PROTECTION ASSIST

2

ASSIST CHILD PROTECTION

3

MOTORIST ASSIST/STALL
UTILITY PROBLEM
PUBLIC ASSIST
LOCKOUT
BUSINESS ALARM

18
4
28
5
20

HOME ALARM

3

911 HANG-UP

6

Park Violation - Verbal Warning

1

ASSIST OTHER DEPT
WARRANT/ATTEMPT/ARREST
TRAFFIC CONTROL / DIRECT ENFORCEMENT

15
3
21
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VEHICLE FORFEITURE/IMPOUND

1

CRIME PREV/OID

1

BURG 2-OCC BUILDING NOFRC-N-UNK WEAP-COM THEFT

1

FORGERY-FE-UTT POSSESS PLACE-OTH TYPE-PERSON

1

DRUGS-DRUG PARAPH-POSSESS-UNK-UNK

1

TRAF-ACC-MS-UND AGE DRINK DRIVE-UNK-MOTOR VEH

1

TRAF-AC-GM-2ND DEG DWI-UI ALCOHOL-MV

1

TRAF-AC-GM-2ND DEG DWI-10 OR MORE WIN 2 HRS-MV

1

TRAF-ACC-M-4TH DEG DWI-UI ALCOHOL-MV

1

TRAF-ACC-M-4TH DEG DWI-10 OR MORE

1

DISTURB PEACE-MS-DISORDERLY CONDUCT

1

MS-VIOL ORDER FOR PROTECTION

1

PROP DAMAGE-MS-PRIVATE-REDUCE VALU 250 LESS

1

PROP DAMAGE-MS-BUSINESS-UNK INTENT

1

THEFT-1001-5000 DLRS FE-BLDG-OTHER PROPERTY

1

THEFT-1001-5000 DLRS FE-MTR VEHICLE-OTH PROP

1

THEFT-500 OR LESS MS-BLDG-OTH PROP

1

THEFT-500 OR LESS MS-MAIL-OTHER PROPERTY

1

THEFT-500 OR LESS MS-SELF SERVE GAS-GAS ONLY

1

THEFT-500 OR LESS MS-MTR VEHICLE-OTH PROP

1

FRAUD-UNK-FIN-TRAN-CARD-NO-CONSENT-UNK-LOSS

1

THEFT-UNK LVL-IDENTITY THEFT-UNK LOSS

5

THEFT-FE-FALSE REPRESENTATN-2501-19999

1

THEFT-FE-BY SWINDLE-TRICK-501-2500

1

FRAUD-FE-MAIL THEFT-UNKNOWN NA

1

VEH-UNKNOWN-MS-TAMPER WITH-ENTER-AUTO

1

WEAPONS-UNK LVL-POSSESS-OTHER TYPE-NO CHAR

1

CRIM AGNST GOVN-GM-ESCAPE TAX-MTR VEH

1
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City of Wayzata
City Council Agenda Report

MEETING DATE: May 18, 2021
AGENDA ITEM: 7.e
TITLE: Receipt of Building Activity Report
PROPOSED MOTION: N/A
PREPARED BY: Jason Wagner, Building Official
REVIEWED BY: Emily Goellner, Community Development Director, Jeff Dahl, City Manager
ACTION REQUESTED:
The attached April 2021 Building Report is for informational purposes only.
FINANCIAL OR BUDGET CONSIDERATION:
N/A
BACKGROUND:
N/A
ATTACHMENTS:
1.
Building Activity Report
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2021
Jan-21

Feb-21

Mar-21

Apr-21

2021-YTD

BUILDING
NUMBER OF BLDG. PERMITS

19

54

$1,337,913.00

$964,800.00

$11,351,717.00

$3,192,683.00

$16,847,113.00

BUILDING PERMIT FEE

$8,620.50

$8,848.75

$52,593.00

$20,794.00

$90,856.25

PLAN CHECK FEE

$5,212.19

$4,813.59

$32,909.77

$12,058.53

$54,994.08

PROJECT VALUE

9

11

15

EXTERIOR
NUMBER OF PERMITS

1

PROJECT VALUE
PERMIT FEE

3

$3,895.00
$

103.25

4

$51,483.00
$

898.50

$552,700.00
$

4,483.50

$

18

26

$287,513.00

$895,591.00

4,801.75

$10,287.00

MECHANICAL
NUMBER OF PERMITS
PROJECT VALUE
PERMIT FEE

12

8

15

11

46

206,482.00

242,992.00

142,301.00

903,172.00

$1,494,947.00

3,909.64

4,091.34

2,862.02

14,683.44

$25,546.44

PLUMBING
NUMBER OF PERMITS

9

PROJECT VALUE
PERMIT FEE

14

6

40

$359,103.00

$408,302.49

$76,193.00

$211,505.00

$1,055,103.49

$5,958.06

$6,970.25

$1,591.86

$3,750.10

$18,270.27

TOTAL # OF PERMITS

11

31

33

48

54

166

$23,803.64

$25,622.43

$94,440.15

$56,087.82

$199,954.04

BUILDING

52

53

52

57

214

EXTERIOR

0

0

0

6

6

HVAC

33

16

28

28

105

PLUMBING

14

16

22

25

77

99

85

102

116

402

0

17

5

22

TOTAL INCOME

INSPECTIONS

OTHER
TOTAL # OF INSPECTIONS

RENTAL
INSPECTIONS

0

2020
Jan-20

Feb-20

Mar-20

Apr-20

2020-YTD

BUILDING
NUMBER OF BLDG. PERMITS

12

PROJECT VALUE

12

15

8

47

$742,400.00

$3,405,270.00

$8,337,359.00

$5,072,023.00

$17,557,052.00

BUILDING PERMIT FEE

$6,419.50

$22,306.75

$37,880.50

$23,124.25

$89,731.00

PLAN CHECK FEE

$3,705.85

$12,028.75

$24,163.91

$14,177.25

$54,075.76

EXTERIOR
NUMBER OF PERMITS

0

PROJECT VALUE
PERMIT FEE

1

$0.00
$

-

7

$24,063.00
$

413.00

1

$165,393.00
$

2,363.25

$

9

$3,000.00

$192,456.00

88.50

$2,864.75

MECHANICAL
NUMBER OF PERMITS
PROJECT VALUE
PERMIT FEE

16

14

13

10

53

261,066.25

165,938.00

769,445.00

637,475.00

$1,833,924.25

5,061.34

3,334.76

12,335.02

9,982.00

$30,713.12

PLUMBING
NUMBER OF PERMITS
PROJECT VALUE
PERMIT FEE

TOTAL # OF PERMITS

16

8

19

7

50

$103,299.00

$29,609.00

$111,053.48

$28,450.00

$272,411.48

$2,099.98

$670.18

$2,301.08

$629.00

$5,700.24

44

35

54

26

159

$17,286.67

$38,753.44

$79,043.76

$48,001.00

$183,084.87

BUILDING

61

61

68

33

223

EXTERIOR

2

1

3

1

7

HVAC

51

53

53

18

175

PLUMBING

28

24

22

13

87

142

139

146

65

557

0

0

42

0

42

TOTAL INCOME

INSPECTIONS

OTHER
TOTAL # OF INSPECTIONS

RENTAL
INSPECTIONS
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City of Wayzata
City Council Agenda Report

MEETING DATE: May 18, 2021
AGENDA ITEM: 7.f
TITLE: Approval of 2021-2022 Assessing Contract with Southwest Assessing
PROPOSED MOTION: To Approve the 2021-2022 Residential Assessor Contract with Southwest Assessing
PREPARED BY: Kathy Leervig, City Clerk
REVIEWED BY: Jeff Dahl, City Manager
ACTION REQUESTED:
Staff recommends approval of the residential assessing contract with Southwest Assessing for the 2021-2022
assessing year.
FINANCIAL OR BUDGET CONSIDERATION:
The proposed annual base proposed is an increase from $53,232 to $57,720. The proposed increase is based
on the additional workload for the new system required of all assessor's in Hennepin County. There is no
proposed increase for the materials allowance from 2020.
This amount is budgeted as its own category and is combined with commercial appraising services.
BACKGROUND:
Five years ago, the City utilized the services of contractor Dan Distel for over a decade to provide residential
assessing services. After soliciting bids through an RFP process in 2016, the City selected Southwest
Assessing to take over the annual assessment of residential properties and lead the subsequent Local Board
of Appeal and Equalization.
Rather than have an internal assessing department, the City contracts out for these services.
This is an annual contract. Hennepin County is still utilized for assessing commercial properties. Their contract
is valid until 2024.
ATTACHMENTS:
1.
Wayzata Requested Fee for 2022 Assessment
2.
2021 Residential Assessor Contract
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TO: Jeff Dahl, Wayzata City Manager
Kathy Leervig, Wayzata City Clerk
For Wayzata Mayor and City Council
FROM: Rolf Erickson, City Assessor (763)473-3978
DATE: April 28, 2021
RE: 2022 Assessment Assessing Contract
Term of Contract

June 1, 2021 through May 31, 2022

Current Contract Amount

$53,232.00

Requested Amount for 2021-2022 Contract

$57,720.00

Current Monthly Fee

$4,436.00

Requested Monthly Fee

$4,810.00

Materials and Supplies in Current Contract Not to Exceed

$4,600.00

Requested Materials and Supplies in Proposed Contract Not to Exceed

$4,600.00

The entire increase is requested due to increased workload to meet Hennepin County's "Expectations of
Assessors" as outlined in their 40 plus page document of what is required to complete an assessment.
There are only two independent assessors of cities with a population of less than 30,000 people in
Hennepin County: Dan Distel and me. Both Dan and I are required to use Hennepin County's Vision and
One Homestead system to complete an assessment. The systems have some good features and several
drawbacks. The good features include the report writing ability, having all data in one place and having
complete data on a parcel. The drawbacks are that the systems are cumbersome and require a great
deal of repetitive labor to use. The main problem for Dan Distel and me is that we have little control
over our workflow and processes. The end result is that it just takes more time to do the job than it
previously did. And this is in a time period (Covid era) when we are not even routinely doing field visits
to properties as required by law in normal times. Hennepin County's procedures result in a more fair
and equitable assessment for all property owners. The cost of the more fair and equitable assessment is
increased time required to complete the work.
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5/4/21
INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT
CITY ASSESSOR SERVICES
This contract (the “Agreement”) is made and entered into as of the first day of June 2020,
by and between the City of Wayzata, Minnesota (the “City”), and Rolf Erickson Enterprises,
Inc., (the “Contractor”), (collectively, the “Parties”).
WHEREAS, Contractor has been appointed assessor pursuant to Section 29(a) of the
Wayzata City Charter; and
WHEREAS, the City and Contractor wish to confirm and memorialize certain terms
related to Contractor’s appointment and the services Contractor will be rendering to the City in
his capacity as assessor.
NOW THEREFORE, the City and Contractor agree as follows:
1.

Appointment as Assessor; Scope of Services. The Contractor accepts the appointment as
assessor for the City of Wayzata for all properties in the City, excluding commercial,
industrial and apartment building properties. Contractor shall serve at the will of the City
Council and shall perform such services as are customary and required of an assessor for
the City of Wayzata under Minnesota law and the standards set forth by the Hennepin
County Assessor’s Office, in accordance with the professional standards associated with
the position.

2.

Compensation. The City agrees to pay the Contractor the aggregate sum of fifty-three
seven thousand two seven hundred thirty-twotwenty dollars ($53,23257,720.00) payable
in twelve (12) monthly installments of four thousand four hundred thirty-six dollars
($4,436$4,810) (see attached Schedule for Assessing). The City shall not withhold
monies for the payment of any federal or state income taxes, social security benefits, or
other taxes.

3.

Costs. The City agrees to pay the Contractor for the cost of all materials and supplies
used or purchased by the Contractor to perform the assessment services, which amount
the Contractor agrees shall not exceed four thousand six hundred dollars ($4,600) during
the term of this Agreement.

4.

Term. This Agreement shall be in effect for one year, commencing on June 1, 2020 2021
and ending on May 31, 2021 2022 unless terminated earlier by the City upon at least 30
days prior written notice to the Contractor. Itand may be renewed annually by May 31 of
each year by mutual agreement.

5.

Independent Contractor Relationship. It is expressly understood that the Contractor is an
“independent contractor” and not an employee of the City. The Contractor shall have
control over the manner in which the services are performed under this Agreement. The
Contractor shall supply, at his own expense, all transportation, equipment and tools
required to accomplish the work contemplated by this Agreement. The Contractor shall
1
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5/4/21
not be entitled to any benefits from the City, including, without limitation, Contractor
shall not be entitled to, nor will Contractor receive, insurance benefits, sick and vacation
leave, workers’ compensation benefits, unemployment compensation, disability,
severance pay, or retirement benefits from the City.
6.

Tax Exempt Property. This agreement shall not cover assessment of tax-exempt property
within the City. During those assessment years in which tax-exempt values must be
determined and submitted to Hennepin County, the City and Contractor shall negotiate a
supplemental agreement for the provision of such service.

7.

Insurance Requirements.
A. Liability. The Contractor agrees to have and maintain commercial general liability
(“CGL”) insurance, with a limit of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence. If the
CGL insurance contains a general aggregate limit, the general aggregate limit shall be
not less than $2,000,000. The CGL insurance shall be issued by an insurance
company acceptable to the City, and shall cover liability arising from the Contractor’s
operations for the City, including liability arising from premises, operations,
independent contractors, products-completed operations, personal injury, advertising
injury and contractually assumed liability. The City shall be named as an additional
insured under the Contractor’s CGL policy, which coverage shall be primary
coverage for the City. The Contractor acknowledges and agrees that coverage under
the July, 2004 or April, 2013 additions of ISO Additional Insured Endorsement
CG2010 is not acceptable, and if additional insured coverage is provided under ISO
Additional Insured Endorsement CG2010, it will be provided under a pre-2004
edition of that endorsement.
B. Automobile Liability. If the Contractor operates a motor vehicle in performing the
services under this Agreement, the Contractor shall maintain automobile liability
insurance, including owned, hired, and non-owned automobiles, with a minimum
liability limit of $300,000, combined single limit.
C. Workers’ Compensation. The Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable
workers’ compensation laws in Minnesota.
D. Professional Liability Insurance. The Contractor agrees to use commercially
reasonable best efforts to obtain and maintain professional liability insurance that will
provide coverage for the services provided by the Contractor under this Agreement,
with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per claim or occurrence, and $1,000,000 in the
aggregate.
E. Certificate of Insurance and Policy. The Contractor shall, prior to commencing
services, deliver to the City a Certificate of Insurance as evidence that the above
coverages are in full force and effect. In addition, the Contractor shall provide a copy
of the additional insured provisions and/ or additional insured endorsements for the
policies in a form acceptable to the City. The Certificate and required policies shall
2
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contain a provision that the coverage afforded under this Agreement will not be
cancelled or allowed to expire until at least 30 days prior written notice has been
given to the City.
8.

Indemnification. The Contractor agrees to defend and indemnify the City, and its
employees, officials, volunteers and agents from and against all claims, actions, damages,
losses and expenses arising out of the Contractor’s ongoing operations for the City in the
performance of his work under this Agreement.

9.

Meeting Attendance. The Contractor will attend monthly meetings of all Hennepin
County assessors, and additional “residential assessment” meetings, the annual
“Assessment Information and Communication” meeting and other information sessions
or training sessions offered by the Hennepin County Assessor’s Office. The Contractor
further agrees to attend the meetings of the Local Board of Appeal and Equalization and
perform all necessary review appraisals.

10.

General Provisions.
A. Entire Agreement. This Agreement supersedes any prior or contemporaneous
representations or agreements, whether written or oral, between the Parties and
contains the entire agreement.
B. Assignment. The Contractor may not assign this Agreement to any other party.
C. Amendments. Any modification or amendment to this Agreement shall require a
written agreement signed by both Parties.
D. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and interpreted in accordance
with the laws of the State of Minnesota. Contractor agrees to abide by the applicable
provisions of the Minnesota Government Data Practice Act, Minnesota Statutes,
Chapter 13.
E. Waivers. The waiver by either party of any breach or failure to comply with any
provision of this Agreement by the other party shall not be construed as, or constitute
a continuing waiver of such provision or a waiver of any other breach of or failure to
comply with any other provision of this Agreement.
F. Savings Clause. If any court finds any portion of this Agreement to be contrary to
law or invalid, the remainder of the Agreement will remain in full force and effect.
G. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of
which shall be deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and
the same document. Facsimile and scanned copies shall be deemed originals for all
purposes.
[Signature Page Follows]
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5/4/21

Accepted and Agreed To:
CONTRACTOR

CITY OF WAYZATA

Rolf Erickson Enterprises, Inc.
By _______________________________
Jeffrey Dahl, City Manager

By _________________________
Rolf Erickson, President

By _______________________________
Johanna Mouton, Mayor
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City of Wayzata
City Council Agenda Report

MEETING DATE: May 18, 2021
AGENDA ITEM: 7.g
TITLE: Adoption of Resolution 17-2021 Authorizing Submittal of Grant Application to Hennepin County and
Execution of Associated Grant Agreements for Wayzata Boulevard Corridor Planning
PROPOSED MOTION: To Adopt Resolution 17-2021 Authorizing Submittal of Grant Application to Hennepin
County and Execution of Associated Grant Agreements for Wayzata Boulevard Corridor Planning
PREPARED BY: Nick Kieser, Assistant Planner
REVIEWED BY: Emily Goellner, Community Development Director, Jeff Dahl, City Manager
ACTION REQUESTED:
Staff recommends adoption of Resolution 17-2021.
FINANCIAL OR BUDGET CONSIDERATION:
The proposed grant would help to fund the Wayzata Boulevard Corridor Study, which has been allocated
$103,000 in the 2021 CIP.
BACKGROUND:
In 2020, staff was planning on applying for the Hennepin County Corridor Grant, but this program was
cancelled for 2020 due to COVID-19. The County recently notified staff that the grant program would be
available for 2021. Staff is now proposing to apply for the grant program and to start the corridor study and
engagement process if the City is granted funding.
Wayzata Boulevard is a vital transportation route and economic center that stretches across the city from east
to west but lacks a long-term plan for the future. In order to respond to increased interest in the real estate
market and changes in transportation, safety, and walkability preferences, the City has a unique opportunity to
work with stakeholders to create a detailed plan for the corridor.
Currently, there is not an encompassing vision for the Wayzata Boulevard corridor. Existing zoning regulations
are not conducive to developments along the corridor that are envisioned in the 2040 Comprehensive Plan.
There are gaps in the pedestrian and bicycle networks, the transit line is underutilized, transportation safety is
an issue in some areas, and developments are disconnected and lack integration along the corridor.
ATTACHMENTS:
1.
RES 17-2021 Authorizing Hennepin County Corridor Planning Application and Agreements
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CITY OF W AYZATA

Resolution No. 17-2021
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RESOLUTION NO. 17-2021
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING SUBMITTAL OF GRANT APPLICATION TO
HENNIPEN COUNTY AND EXECUTION OF ASSOCIATED GRANT AGREEMENTS
FOR WAYZATA BOULEVARD CORRIDOR PLANNING
WHEREAS Hennepin County offers the Corridor Planning Program to provide cities and
other agencies with resources for plans, studies, or preliminary designs focused on
public improvements or redevelopment around Hennepin County transportation
corridors that would otherwise not be fully realized; and
WHEREAS the Hennepin County Housing and Economic Development aims to drive
meaningful improvements, catalytic economic opportunity, and a shared prosperity
where all communities enjoy a sustainably high quality of life, equitable access to
economic opportunity and disparities by race, place, and income; and
WHEREAS the program provides funding with a monetary match of 0% if population is
less than 5,000; and
WHEREAS in the Wayzata 2040 Comprehensive Plan, Wayzata Boulevard is stated to
play an important role in vehicular mobility within the City of Wayzata and its location
creates a barrier between neighborhoods to the north and downtown Wayzata to the
south; and
WHEREAS in the Wayzata 2040 Comprehensive Plan, redevelopment opportunities
were identified along the Wayzata Boulevard corridor where existing commercial uses
are identified for future mixed use; and
WHEREAS in the Wayzata 2040 Comprehensive Plan, walkability is a cornerstone of
the vision for the community; and
WHEREAS in the Wayzata 2019-2022 Strategic Plan, a Wayzata Boulevard Corridor
Study is included as a strategic initiative; and
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the City of Wayzata act as legal sponsor for the
project contained in the Hennepin County 2021 Corridor Planning application to be
submitted by June 8, 2021 and that the Wayzata City Manager is hereby authorized to
apply to Hennepin County for funding of this project on behalf of the City of Wayzata.
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City of Wayzata has the legal authority to apply
for financial assistance, and it has the financial capability to meet the match requirement
(if any); and
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that, upon approval of its application by the County,
the City of Wayzata may enter into an agreement with the County for the abovereferenced project, and that the City of Wayzata certifies that it will comply with all
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CITY OF W AYZATA

Resolution No. 17-2021

Page 2

applicable laws and regulations as stated in the grant consistent with the funding grant
program into perpetuity.
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Wayzata City Manager is hereby
authorized to apply for the Hennepin County Corridor Planning Grant Program and
execute such agreements as are necessary to implement the proposed study.
Adopted by the Wayzata City Council this 18th day of May, 2021.

ATTEST:

Mayor Johanna Mouton

City Manager Jeffrey Dahl
ACTION ON THIS RESOLUTION:
Motion for adoption:
Seconded by:
Voted in favor of:
Voted against:
Abstained:
Absent:
Resolution adopted.
I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by
the City Council of the City of Wayzata, Minnesota, at a duly authorized meeting held on
May 18, 2021.
__________________________________
Kathy Leervig, City Clerk
SEAL
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City of Wayzata
City Council Agenda Report

MEETING DATE: May 18, 2021
AGENDA ITEM: 7.h
TITLE: Approval of Agreement with Hennepin County Sheriff’s Office for Regionwide Public Safety Radio
Communications System
PROPOSED MOTION: To Approve the Communications Systems Subscriber Agreement between the City
and the Hennepin County Sheriff's Office Communications Division.
PREPARED BY: Marc Schultz, Interim Police Chief
REVIEWED BY: Jeff Dahl, City Manager
ACTION REQUESTED:
Staff recommends approval of the Communications System Subscriber Agreement.
FINANCIAL OR BUDGET CONSIDERATION:
Use of the Regionwide Public Safety Radio Communications System has been budgeted in the past through
the Radio Unit Expenditure Accounts. There would be no new expenses with the approval of this agreement
other than the budgeted annual increase.
BACKGROUND:
The purpose of this agreement is to define the rights and obligations of both Hennepin County and the City of
Wayzata with respect to the cooperative and coordinated purchase, lease, maintenance, technical and
administrative support and use of portable, mobile, desktop and other end user radios and mobile data centers
by the City of Wayzata on the Hennepin County system.
ATTACHMENTS:
1.
Hennepin Co Agreement
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CONTRACT No. A2110657

Hennepin County Sheriff’s Office
Communications Division
1245 Shenandoah Ln
Plymouth, MN 55447
Regionwide Public Safety Radio
Communications System

Communications System
Subscriber Agreement

Between Hennepin County and Authorized Users Regarding:
Use of the Regionwide Public Safety Radio Communications System,
Lease, Maintenance and Repair of Subscriber Radios,
Administrative and Operational Support of the Subscriber Radio Fleet
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THIS AGREEMENT made and entered into by and between the COUNTY OF HENNEPIN, a body
politic and corporate, under the laws of the STATE OF MINNESOTA, hereinafter referred to as the
"COUNTY," A-2303 Government Center, Minneapolis, Minnesota 55487, the City of Wayzata, 600 Rice
Street East, Wayzata, Minnesota 55391, acting by and through its duly authorized officers, hereinafter
referred to as the "USER".
WITNESSETH:
WHEREAS, the COUNTY operates a Local Subsystem as part of the Regionwide Public Safety Radio
Communications System, hereinafter referred to as “System”; and
WHEREAS, the COUNTY has provided for the capability of Cities, Agencies, Districts and Other
Authorized Users within the County to have access to the System; and
WHEREAS, the COUNTY bears primary responsibility for the health, security and integrity of the System
and other communications systems;
WHEREAS, the USER has elected to participate as a subscriber with end user radios operating on the
System; and

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual undertakings and agreements hereinafter set forth,
the COUNTY and the USER agree as follows:

1. PURPOSE AND INTRODUCTION
The purpose of this Agreement is to define the rights and obligations of the COUNTY and the USER with
respect to the cooperative and coordinated purchase, lease, maintenance, technical and administrative
support and use of portable, mobile, desktop and other end user radios by the USER on the COUNTY’s
System.
The System is a multi-site general purpose wireless communications system designed to provide, among
other things, 95% area coverage reliability for portable radio operation above ground level in light to
medium buildings throughout most of the County. Other USER benefits and services include, access to
a statewide public safety radio communications system, multiple system redundancies with backup
power, a wide range of talk groups, electronic identification of all radios on all transmissions, 99.999%
microwave system reliability, encryption availability, system security, radio interoperability, 24 hour a day
system monitoring and repair response, access to a pool of special event radios and USER radio user
training.
2. DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF USER
2.1 Conformance to Statewide Emergency Communications Board (SECB), Metropolitan Emergency
Services Board (MESB) and COUNTY Standards
USER agrees to be aware of and conform to all applicable standards, policies, procedures and protocols
established or amended by the SECB, MESB and COUNTY related to use of the System including but
not limited to System supported radios and equipment, radio user training requirements, radio operating
guidelines, audit, monitoring and compliance.
2.2 Conformance to Federal Laws and Regulations
USER agrees to be aware of and conform to all applicable Federal Rules, Regulation and Laws
pertaining to use of the System including but not limited to the Communications Act of 1934 as Amended
and Part 90 of the Federal Communications Commission Rules and Regulations.
2
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2.3 Response to Improper Use
In the event COUNTY informs USER that statistical analysis of System usage or other information
indicates that USER personnel may have inappropriately used the System, or may have violated
standards, policies, procedures, rules, regulations or laws regarding proper operation of the System, or
may have violated the provisions of this Agreement, USER agrees to take immediate and appropriate
investigative and corrective action to stop the violation and eliminate any reoccurrence.
2.4 Radio and Equipment Lease Fees
USER agrees to pay to COUNTY all lease fees assessed to USER by COUNTY throughout the lease
term in accordance with a lease policy established by the Board of Hennepin County Commissioners for
end user radios or other related equipment furnished to USER by COUNTY under this Agreement. The
specific lease fee schedule established by COUNTY and the list of equipment leased by USER shall be
detailed in Appendix A attached hereto, and such Appendix A shall be made a part of this agreement.
2.5 Subscriber Fleet Support Fees
USER agrees to pay COUNTY all Subscriber Fleet Support Fees assessed to USER by COUNTY in
accordance with a cost recovery policy established by the Board of Hennepin County Commissioners for
costs including but not limited to programming, software updates, technical support, administrative
support, configuration support, access to the special event shared pool of radios, training support and
other costs attributable to USER’s participation under this Agreement. The Subscriber Fleet Support
Fees as stated in Appendix A.
2.6 Maintenance and Repair Fees
USER agrees to pay COUNTY all fixed fees for Tier 1 maintenance and repair services; time and
material charges for consumables and repairs not covered under Tier 1 service. The Tier 1 Maintenance
and Repair Fees as stated in Appendix A.
2.7 Pass Through Metropolitan Emergency Services Board User Fees
USER agrees to pay to COUNTY all user fees attributable to USER assessed to the COUNTY by the
MESB, or its successor entity if applicable. The MESB user fees are set forth in Appendix A.
2.8 Invoicing and Payment Terms
COUNTY will invoice USER monthly, or at other intervals as mutually agreed to in writing, for all fees
specified herein. Principal charges for leased equipment will commence when the COUNTY is invoiced
by the equipment supplier. All other fees specified in this Agreement will commence as follows: For
radios activated on or before the 15th of the month, USER will be charged for the entire month. For
radios activated after the 15th of the month, the fees will commence on the first day of the following
month. Payment of all fees herein shall be made directly to the COUNTY in accordance with state and
federal law governing the payment of claims and/or invoices.
2.9 Flow Down Metropolitan Emergency Services Board Contract Provisions
USER agrees to comply with all applicable flow down provisions set forth in Appendix A.
2.10 Provisional Use of USER Purchased and Owned Radios and Radio Software
USER may utilize radios purchased and owned by USER on the System provided that such USER’s
radios and equipment shall be pre-approved for support by COUNTY. COUNTY shall have no obligation
to support, maintain, or repair radios or equipment that are not pre-approved. Non-certified radios, or
radios operating with non-certified software versions will not be allowed to access or use the System. If
USER acquires radios or equipment that are not pre-approved, either party may immediately terminate
this Agreement.
2.11 De-certification and Disposition of Obsolete Radios
The SECB (Statewide Emergency Communications Board), MESB and/or COUNTY may de-certify
3
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previously pre-approved radios, equipment, and/or radio operating software versions which become
obsolete for reasons including but not limited to: become unsafe to use, impair System performance, are
no longer supported by the radio Manufacturer, are no longer supported by the COUNTY, exhibit
substantial defects, exhibit performance deficiencies, impair implementation of System upgrades,
become unreliable, become economically unfeasible to maintain, etc. De-certified radios, equipment, or
radios operating with de-certified software versions will not be allowed to access or use the System.
USER agrees to dispose of obsolete radios, batteries and other equipment in accordance with applicable
laws and rules regarding disposal of hazardous materials.
2.12 Limitation of Radio Programming, Radio Code Plug Programming Files and System Key File
Regardless of ownership, all radios on the System shall be programmed only by the COUNTY, and the
COUNTY shall retain an archived electronic copy of all radio code plug programming files and encryption
keys files installed in all USER radios covered under this Agreement. The configuration of all radio code
plug programming files and radio templates shall be subject to approval by the COUNTY before the
radios will be activated on the System. All radio code plug programming files, system key files and
encryption key files are the sole property of the COUNTY, and contain information that is classified as
security information and non-public government data. Unless specifically authorized by the COUNTY in
writing, USER may not directly or indirectly, or permit any third party to: view, read, print, extract, copy,
archive, edit, create, clone, transfer, tamper with or otherwise compromise the security of any radio code
plug programming file, system key file or encryption key file for any radio on the System. In the event
USER learns that any party has improperly or fraudulently obtained radio code plug programming file
information, system key file or encryption key file, USER will immediately notify COUNTY of the security
breech.
2.13 Payment for Damaged Radios
USER agrees to promptly pay COUNTY for all costs incurred to repair radios damaged for any reason,
excluding normal wear and tear which is included in the COUNTY’s maintenance program, and also
excluding damage which occurs while the radios are in the possession of COUNTY.
2.14 Risk of Loss for Lost, Stolen or Destroyed Radios
USER assumes full risk of loss for COUNTY provided radios assigned to USER including special event
and repair loaner radios temporarily assigned to USER which are lost, stolen, physically un-repairable or
destroyed for any reason excluding damage which occurs while the radios are in the possession of
COUNTY. USER will be invoiced, and agrees to pay, the remaining amount of the non-depreciated lease
balance, for any lost, stolen or destroyed radios. Assessment of subscriber fleet support fees and Tier 1
fixed maintenance fees will be terminated upon such payment.
2.15 Notification to COUNTY of Lost or Stolen Radios
USER agrees to immediately notify COUNTY of any missing, lost or stolen radios, so the radio can be
deactivated on the system.
2.16 Radios Not Economical to Repair
A USER radio which is covered under the annual Tier 1 fixed fee maintenance and repair services
program listed in Appendix A which has malfunctioned, broken or failed, excluding a radio that is
damaged, lost, stolen, destroyed or physically un-repairable as described in sections 2.13 and 2.14
above, and which the COUNTY determines cannot be economically repaired, by mutual agreement shall
(1) be considered an obsolete radio, deactivated and terminated from the maintenance program with no
additional fees payable by USER except the outstanding balance of fees due for services rendered
before the radio was deemed not economical to repair (2) Considered an obsolete radio, deactivated and
terminated from the lease program with no additional frees payable by USER. In the event the
replacement option is chosen, the used replacement radio may, at COUNTY’s option, be reconditioned
or rebuilt from salvaged parts and the COUNTY shall retain or assume ownership of the original failed
radio and such radio may be salvaged for spare parts, rebuilt or otherwise disposed of by COUNTY.
Further, if the failed radio is a COUNTY owned radio leased to USER, and the deactivate and terminate
lease option is chosen, the COUNTY shall also retain ownership and disposition rights of the failed radio.
4
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2.17 Assignment of Leased Equipment
USER may terminate in whole or part the lease of radios or other equipment under this Agreement
provided USER assigns the leased equipment in writing to another authorized user who has a subscriber
agreement in effect with the County and further provided that the Assignee agrees in writing to make all
applicable payments to COUNTY including the remaining lease payments.
2.18 Prepayment of Leased Equipment
USER may pay off the remaining amount of the non-depreciated lease balance, at any time during the
lease term without any additional prepayment penalty. Title to the leased equipment shall transfer to the
USER upon such payoff subject to the provisions of Section 3.2.
3. DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF COUNTY
3.1 Furnishing of End User Radios
COUNTY will periodically solicit orders for new, additional and replacement radios from USER. This will
normally occur on an annual basis, however USER may request radios at any time. Subject to budget
availability and approval by the Board of Hennepin County Commissioners, on USER’s behalf COUNTY
will purchase radios, receive, inventory, inspect, test, program and install radios as requested by USER.
COUNTY will assist USER in selecting and ordering radios that are purchased directly by USER for use
on the System.
3.2 Financing of End User Radios and Transfer of Title
Subject to budget availability and approval by the Board of Hennepin County Commissioners, COUNTY
will finance the purchase of radios for USER’s Public Safety operations (police, fire, EMS or Emergency
Management) as requested by USER. The equipment lease period shall be for the expected useful life of
the equipment, as determined by COUNTY and listed in Appendix A. The combined equipment will be
depreciated over the lease period. Upon completion of payment of all principal to COUNTY, and
execution by USER of any applicable Software License Agreements or Assignment of Rights
Agreements regarding use of embedded software, COUNTY shall transfer title to the leased equipment
to USER.
3.3 Radio Maintenance and Repair Services
In accordance with the provisions herein, COUNTY will provide one tier of maintenance and repair
services for USER radios. Tier 1 service will be provided at a fixed annual fee determined by the
COUNTY and may be based on the model and age of the radio. Tier 1 service includes access to the
shared pool of repair loaner radios. The fixed annual fee for Tier 1 service includes all parts, labor and
other costs to provide maintenance and repair for internally malfunctioning radios and normal wear and
tear. Normal wear and tear is anticipated degradation which normally occurs to the equipment in the
regular course of work for the job position, assuming the user takes reasonable care and precaution.
Tier 1 service excludes consumables such as batteries and antennas, and excludes radio accessories.
Repairs beyond internal malfunctions and normal wear and tear including damage caused by negligence
or accidental damage such as fire, water immersion, crushing, dropping from a moving vehicle, etc., and
consumables will be assessed on a time and materials basis in addition to the fixed annual Tier 1
maintenance fee. Unless specifically excluded by COUNTY, all radios assigned for public safety
operations on the System under this Agreement, regardless of ownership, will be provided with Tier 1
maintenance service by COUNTY and will be allocated the annual fixed costs.
3.4 Repair Loaner and Special Event Radios
COUNTY will maintain a fleet of radios which will be made available to USER, generally on a first come
first serve basis, for temporary assignment for special events, response to emergencies, or other similar
events. USER may receive a temporary loaner radio to replace a radio taken out of service for
maintenance or repair if the failed radio is covered under the Tier 1 annual fixed fee maintenance and
repair services program listed in Appendix A. If there are more requests for loaner radios than can be
accommodated, the COUNTY will prioritize allocations and may require that USER return repair loaner
5
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and special event radios early.
3.5 Allocation of System Resources
COUNTY will allocate to USER, by mutual agreement, sufficient System resources including but not
limited to; Talk Groups, Radio Unit IDs, Alias IDs, etc. in order to provide USER with an equivalent grade
of service afforded to other comparable System users.
3.5 Monitoring of USER Talk Groups
COUNTY will periodically monitor talk groups allocated to USER for USER’s internal use for system
management purposes including but not limited to maintenance, troubleshooting, system performance
assessments, unusual traffic patterns (sudden jump in usage), policy and procedure compliance checks,
etc. COUNTY monitoring of USER’s talk groups may occur at any time, for any duration, may be without
notice and is subject to recording.
3.7 Radio Operator Training
COUNTY will provide USER with access to end user radio training instructional materials provided to
COUNTY from the SECB, MESB or other sources. For the deployment of immediate and near term
radios as defined in the COUNTY’s Radio Purchasing and Deployment Plan adopted by Board
Resolution No. 01-622R2, attached as Appendix B, COUNTY will assist USER in training USER’s
personnel by providing a COUNTY radio trainer (or trainers) to work in conjunction with a USER provided
trainer (or trainers) to deliver training to USER’s radio operators. Once the near term deployment is
completed, USER will have primary responsibility for training new employees and for providing refresher
training.
3.8 Database Administration
COUNTY will manage and administer the System database records containing the information related to
inventory, configuration, programming history, software version control, radio IDs, service levels,
statistical usage analysis, etc. for USER’s subscriber radios used on the System.
3.9 Radio Station Licenses
COUNTY shall hold and administer all FCC licenses on behalf of all users of the System. USER shall
operate as authorized mobile, portable and control station units under the COUNTY’s FCC radio station
licenses.
4. TERM AND CANCELLATION
4.1 Term of Agreement
This Agreement shall be for an initial term of five (5) years beginning on the date executed by the
COUNTY through December 31, 2025. After the initial term and any subsequent extensions thereto, this
Agreement will automatically be extended for an additional one (1) year term, for up to a maximum of
three (3) of one (1) year terms beyond the initial term of the five (5) years (“Renewal Term”), unless
either party gives written notice of intent not to extend to the other party, at least one hundred twenty
(120) days prior to the expiration of the then current term.

4.2 Cancellation of Agreement
This Agreement may be canceled with or without cause by either party upon one hundred eighty (180)
days’ written notice, provided that any such cancellation by COUNTY shall require action by the Board of
Hennepin County Commissioners.
4.3 Actions Upon Termination
Upon expiration or cancellation of this Agreement as provided for herein, USER shall cease all use of the
System including using the system with radios owned by USER.
5. MERGER AND MODIFICATION
6
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5.1 Entire Agreement
It is understood and agreed that the entire Agreement between the parties is contained herein and that
this Agreement supersedes all oral agreements and negotiations between the parties relating to the
subject matter hereof. All items referred to in this Agreement are incorporated or attached and are
deemed to be part of this Agreement.
5.2 Amendments to Agreement
Any alterations, variations, modifications, or waivers of provisions of this Agreement, except for revisions
to Appendix A as provided for below, shall only be valid when they have been reduced to writing as an
amendment to this Agreement signed by the parties hereto.
6. DEFAULT
6.1 If either party fails to perform any material term of this Agreement, this failure shall be addressed in
accordance with the Contract Disputes Act.
6.2 The failure to insist upon strict performance of any provision or to exercise any right under this
Agreement shall not be deemed a relinquishment or waiver of the same, unless consented to in writing.
Such consent shall not constitute a general waiver or relinquishment throughout the entire term of the
Agreement.
6.3 If either party terminates agreement due to default, USER shall return all equipment for
deprogramming. Following deprogramming activities COUNTY shall return all equipment to USER. User
shall pay COUNTY the remainder of the balance of the original cost of the leased equipment which has
not been recovered under lease payments. USER shall cease all use of COUNTY’s System.
7. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS
7.1 Independent Parties
It is mutually understood that this Agreement does not create an employment relationship between the
parties, nor does it create a partnership or joint venture, nor does it constitute a cooperative agreement
or joint powers agreement.
7.2 Liability
Each party agrees that it will be responsible for its own acts and the results thereof, to the extent
authorized by law, and shall not be responsible for the acts of the other party and the results thereof.
7.3 Data Privacy
To the extent applicable under federal and state law, USER, its officers, agents, owners, partners,
employees, volunteers or subcontractors agree to abide by the provisions of the Minnesota Government
Data Practices Act, Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 13, and all other applicable state and federal laws,
rules, regulations and orders relating to data privacy or confidentiality, and as any of the same may be
amended.
7.4 Records – Availability/ Access
To the extent applicable under federal and state law, subject to the requirements of Minnesota Statutes
Section 16C.05, Subd. 5 (as may be amended), the USER agrees that the COUNTY, the State Auditor,
the Legislative Auditor or any of their duly authorized representatives at any time during normal business
hours, and as often as they may reasonably deem necessary, shall have access to and the right to
examine, audit, excerpt, and transcribe any books, documents, papers, records, etc., which are pertinent
to the accounting practices and procedures of the USER and involve transactions relating to this
Agreement. Such materials shall be maintained and such access and rights shall be in force and effect
during the period of the contract and for six (6) years after its termination or cancellation.
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7.5 Contract Administration
In order to coordinate the services of the USER with the activities of the COUNTY so as to accomplish
the purposes of this contract, the party(s) named on the Delegation of Authority for Contracting Officers
Technical Responsibilities as provided by User, shall manage this contract on behalf of the USER and
serve as liaison between the COUNTY and the USER.
7.6 Notices
Any notice or demand which must be given or made by a party hereto under the terms of this Agreement
or any statute or ordinance shall be in writing, and shall be sent registered or certified mail. Notices to
the COUNTY shall be sent to the County Administrator with a copy to the Office of the County Sheriff at
the address given below. Notice to the USER shall be sent to the address stated below.

To COUNTY:

Hennepin County Administrator
A-2303 Government Center
Minneapolis, MN 55487

Copy to:

Radio Systems Manager
Hennepin County Sheriff’s Office
Communications Division
1245 Shenandoah Ln
Plymouth, MN 55447

USER:

City of Wayzata
600 Rice Street East
Wayzata, MN 55391
ATTN: Chief Kevin Klapprich

This Portion of Page Intentionally Left Blank
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COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR APPROVAL

USER, having signed this contract, and the County having duly approved this contract on the
____ day of _____________, ______, and pursuant to such approval, the proper County officials having
signed this contract, the parties hereto agree to be bound by the provisions herein set forth.

Reviewed by County Attorney’s Office

COUNTY OF HENNEPIN
STATE OF MINNESOTA

By:
Michael Bernard
Date:

By:
David Hough
County Administrator

Apr 28, 2021

Date:

May 5, 2021

Hennepin County Sheriff’s Office

By:
Sheri Selton
County Administration Clerk

By:
Tracey A. Martin
Chief Deputy
Date:

Date:

Apr 29, 2021

May 5, 2021

Document Assembled by:
By:
Kristine Urbowicz

USER

Mar 25, 2021
Date:

By:

Jeffrey Dahl
Jeffrey Dahl (Apr 27, 2021 12:07 CDT)

Jeffrey Dahl
City Manager
Date:

Apr 27, 2021
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Hennepin County Sheriff’s Office
Communications Division

Appendix A

Communications System Subscriber Agreement
Appendix A: 2021 Annual Subscriber Fees

Device Type & Support Level
Tier 1 – All Radios

HC Subscriber
Fleet Support Fee1
$286.32

Admin Only – All Radios

MESB
Fee2
$8.28

$18.60

$8.28

Mobile Data Computer

$537.24

$0.00

Tri-Tech Software License fee (Field Ops)

$180.00

Tri-Tech Software License fee (Desktop)

$35.00

State
PTID Fee3

$360.00

$360.00

Note: Currently billed as “Radio Fleet Fee” or “MDC Support Fee.” Tier 1
Subscriber Fleet Support Fee includes programming, maintenance, repair,
software updates, technical support, database and configuration support,
access to the special event shared pool of radios, repair loaners, training
support, and other costs attributable to supporting the radio fleet. Fleet
Support Fee for Consolettes (base radios) only covers maintenance and
repair on the radio unit, it does not include parts for or repair of desktop
remotes, wiring for remotes, antennas or antenna feedline.
Tier 2 is no longer available. Admin only is available only when specifically
authorized through cooperative agreement.
The annual fixed price MDC fleet support fee includes: (1) All Core Software
Support services described in the MDC Fleet Support Amendment to the
Subscriber Agreement; (2) Diagnosis of hardware failures, including GPS
receivers and commercial air cards. (3) Switching to repair loaner hardware;
(4) Processing of hardware covered under manufacturer’s warranty or
extended service plan; (5) Software setup for new and replacement MDCs
(excluding installation in vehicle).
1

2

MESB Fee is a pass-through fee assessed by the Metropolitan Emergency
Services Board for its radio related administrative expenses.
3

State PTID Fee is a pass-through fee assessed by the State of
Minnesota for access to State Criminal Justice Database. This fee is
ONLY charged for MDCs and desktops requiring this access.
10
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Hennepin County Sheriff’s Office
Communications Division
Communications System Subscriber Agreement Appendix A:
2021 Time and Materials Charges

Hourly Rates
Communications Technician

$50.00

Software Technician

$105.00

Lead Communications Technician

$60.00

Communications Engineer

$69.00

Parts, Accessories, Batteries and Other Equipment
Cost Plus 10% Markup for Administrative Costs

External Contractor Repair Services
Cost Plus 10% Markup for Administrative Costs

11
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City of Wayzata
City Council Agenda Report

MEETING DATE: May 18, 2021
AGENDA ITEM: 7.i
TITLE: Approval of Agreement with Hennepin County for Nearmap Imagery Software System
PROPOSED MOTION: To Approve the Agreement with Hennepin County for Nearmap Imagery Software
System
PREPARED BY: Kathy Leervig, City Clerk
REVIEWED BY: Jeff Dahl, City Manager
ACTION REQUESTED:
Staff recommends approval of the Agreement with Hennepin County for Nearmap Imagery Software System.
FINANCIAL OR BUDGET CONSIDERATION:
There is no fee associated with the use of the software.
BACKGROUND:
Hennepin County recently acquired a three-year Nearmap subscription to access ortho and oblique imagery.
As with past County funded aerial imagery products, access to this valuable resource is being offered to
sublicensed city partners at no cost. Nearmap collects, organizes, stores, displays and allows access to a
collection of ortho images, oblique images, metadata, data layers, and other geographic or structural
visualizations or embodiments.
The software will provide aerial photography and GIS data from the County for staff to utilize on an ongoing
basis.
In general, Hennepin County’s Nearmap subscription includes:







Partner access to all Nearmap’s previously captured ortho/oblique imagery through their online viewer.
Partner access to future spring and fall ortho imagery through Nearmap’s online viewer, 2021-2023.
Partner access to future spring oblique imagery through Nearmap’s online viewer, 2021-2023.
Partner access to spring/fall 3” ortho copy, 2021-2023.
Public access to 6” ortho via open data and public applications. 6” ortho can be made public 12 months
after capture.
No public access to oblique imagery.

ATTACHMENTS:
1.
HC User Agreement Nearmap
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Contract No. A2110759

HENNEPIN COUNTY USER AGREEMENT
This Hennepin County User Agreement (“HCUA”) is between Hennepin County, State
of Minnesota, (“COUNTY”) and City of Wayzata, (“USER”).
WITNESSETH:
WHEREAS, COUNTY and Nearmap US, Inc. (“Nearmap”) executed AGREEMENT,
Contract No. PR00002983, as amended, for the licensing of oblique images and
related systems (the “Nearmap Agreement”);
WHEREAS, Nearmap’s hosted software system, except the Footprint module,
(collectively the “System”) collects, organizes, stores, displays and allows access to a
collection of ortho images, oblique images, metadata, data layers, and other
geographic or structural visualizations or embodiments (collectively “Delivered
Content”);
WHEREAS, by the terms of the Nearmap Agreement, Nearmap granted COUNTY the
right to allow duly authorized political units or political subdivisions located totally or
substantially within the boundaries of Hennepin County, including cities or townships,
to access the System and Nearmap Delivered Content.
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual undertakings and agreements set
forth herein, COUNTY and USER agree as follows:
1. Term.
This Agreement shall commence upon March 12, 2021 and shall continue for one (1)
year unless terminated earlier in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement.
Subject to the provisions herein and unless COUNTY otherwise notifies USER within
thirty (30) days prior to the expiration of a term of this Agreement, this Agreement
shall then automatically renew for another two (2) year term. However, in no event
shall this Agreement continue beyond March 11, 2024.
2. Licenses.
Subject to the provisions herein, COUNTY grants USER a limited, revocable,
non-exclusive, royalty-free license to access and use the System and Delivered
Content exclusively for the performance of USER’s public responsibilities in the
-1-
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ordinary course of government business. The rights granted in this paragraph
may be referred to as the “License”. For clarification and not limitation, the
License permits access or use by USER’s employees and contracted personnel
performing USER’s public responsibilities in the ordinary course of USER’s
business (said employees or contracted personnel may be referred to as
“Eligible Personnel” and, as applicable throughout this HCUA, the term “USER”
shall include and apply to Eligible Personnel). However, subject to the
foregoing, upon a third-party (e.g., public) request to USER for the right to
inspect, copy or otherwise access Delivered Content pursuant to the MGDPA
(as defined herein), USER shall 1) direct the request to the COUNTY Contract
Administrator (identified herein); 2) explain to the requesting party that the
request has been directed to the COUNTY and communicate appropriate
COUNTY contact information; and 3) perform any other reasonable tasks
necessary to expedite fulfillment of the request.
USER is solely responsible for implementing the technology necessary to access
the System, to retrieve Delivered Content and to use, control and safeguard
the Delivered Content pursuant to the obligations set forth herein.
Except as expressly set forth herein, USER shall acquire no right, title or
interest in or to the System or Delivered Content.
USER shall strictly comply with the following:
(i) USER shall access the System and access, use, control and safeguard
Delivered Content in compliance with the terms of this HCUA;
(ii) USER shall only access the System and Delivered content by and
through a computer workstation or server (i) that is owned or leased by
USER; (ii) that is under the exclusive control of USER; and (iii) that is
exclusively available for use by USER (an “Authorized System”);
(iii) USER shall not share or distribute System authentication
information, usernames or passwords (“Authentication”) with any
unauthorized third-party;
(iv) USER shall secure and safeguard the System, Authentication and
Delivered Content in USER’s possession or control in the same manner
that USER secures and safeguards its own critical or confidential
systems, software, data, passwords or other information. If there is a

-2-

Page 55 of 255

Contract No. A2110759
conflict between USER’s security requirements and COUNTY’s security
requirements, COUNTY’s security requirements shall prevail;
(v) USER shall not access the Delivered Content by any means other
than the System including but not limited to scraping, robots,
wanderers, crawlers, spiders, etc (as those terms are commonly used
and understood in the information technology industry);
(vi) USER shall be solely responsible for accessing, using and otherwise
supporting the System including but not limited to paying all costs,
expenses and communication charges associated with the same;
(vii) USER shall use, control and safeguard the Delivered Content in
compliance with the terms of this HCUA and with applicable law
including but not limited to the Minnesota Government Data Practices
Act, Minnesota Statutes, chapter 13;
(viii) Except as expressly provided herein, USER shall not use, disclose,
sell, market, distribute or otherwise make available the Delivered
Content during the term of this HCUA or at any time thereafter except
as required by law or with COUNTY’s express written consent;
(ix) USER shall not allow third-party access to Delivered Content;
(x) USER shall not create derivative works, including but not limited to
any new work for USER, COUNTY, or any other party, that incorporates,
embeds, or includes all or part of any Delivered Content, without
COUNTY’s express written consent; and
(xi) USER shall not remove, delete, alter or otherwise modify any
copyright messages on or associated with the System or Delivered
Content, including but not limited to copyright notices from COUNTY or
Nearmap.
3. Disclaimers and Limitations of Liability.
COUNTY, BY AND THROUGH NEARMAP, IS PROVIDING THE SYSTEM AND
DELIVERED CONTENT ON AN AS-IS BASIS WITH NO SUPPORT WHATSOEVER.
THERE IS NO WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY, NO WARRANTY OF FITNESS
FOR PARTICULAR USE, NO WARRANTY OF NON-INFRINGEMENT, NO
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WARRANTY REGARDING THE USE OF THE INFORMATION OR THE RESULTS
THEREOF AND NO OTHER WARRANTY OF ANY KIND, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED.
WITHOUT LIMITING THE FOREGOING, COUNTY DOES NOT WARRANT THE
PERFORMANCE OF THE SYSTEM OR RELATED AND NECESSARY
COMMUNICATIONS OR CONNECTIONS TO THE SYSTEM, THAT THE SYSTEM
WILL BE UNINTERRUPTED OR ERROR FREE, THAT DEFECTS WILL BE CORRECTED,
OR THAT THE SYSTEM IS FREE OF HARMFUL CODE. USER fully understands and
agrees that (i) the System is subject to errors, omissions, delays or
interruptions; and (ii) COUNTY, by and through Nearmap, may modify or
change the System in a manner that may impact or restrict USER’s access. In
any such event, the COUNTY will not be liable for the cost of such changes,
damages or other liability which may be sustained by USER.
WITHOUT LIMITING THE FOREGOING, COUNTY DOES NOT WARRANT THE
ACCURACY, COMPLETENESS OR TIMELINESS OF THE DELIVERED CONTENT NOR
DOES COUNTY WARRANT THAT DEFECTS IN THE SAME WILL BE CORRECTED.
USER fully understands and agrees that (i) the Delivered Content is provided by
third-parties, including but not limited to Nearmap; and (ii) COUNTY does not
directly control and is not responsible for the Delivered Content. USER fully
understands and agrees that the Delivered Content is subject to errors,
omissions, delay or interruptions, including but not limited to (i) delays, errors
or omissions in the receipt of the Delivered Content, (ii) changes, adjustments,
corrections or modifications of the Delivered Content and (iii) that COUNTY
may make modifications, changes and/or adjustments to the Delivered
Content at any time and without notice to USER.
At the point of initial contact with any Delivered Content provided to the
public, USER shall include the disclaimer set forth in the preceding three
paragraphs, in the same or substantially similar format with necessary
adjustments for accuracy and applicability, including but not limited to defining
“Delivered Content”.
IN NO EVENT SHALL COUNTY BE LIABLE FOR ACTUAL, DIRECT, INDIRECT,
SPECIAL, INCIDENTAL, CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES OR LOSS OF PROFIT, LOSS
OF BUSINESS OR ANY OTHER FINANCIAL LOSS OR ANY OTHER DAMAGES EVEN
IF THE COUNTY HAS BEEN ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGE.
COUNTY’S SOLE LIABILITY AND USER’S SOLE AND EXCLUSIVE REMEDY FOR ANY
DAMAGES RELATED TO THIS HCUA OR FOR ANY BREACH OF THIS HCUA,
INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO LIABILITY FOR SYSTEM OR DELIVERED
CONTENT NONPERFORMANCE, ERRORS OR OMISSIONS, SHALL BE LIMITED TO
-4-

Page 57 of 255

Contract No. A2110759
RESTORING OR CORRECTING THE SYSTEM OR DELIVERED CONTENT TO THE
EXTENT AND DEGREE COUNTY IS CAPABLE OF PERFORMING THE SAME AND AS
IS REASONABLY POSSIBLE UNDER THE PERTINENT CIRCUMSTANCES.
4. Royalty Free License.
The License is royalty free. COUNTY is not providing any implementation,
maintenance, support or other services hereunder and, as such, USER shall not
pay COUNTY any amount for services pursuant to this HCUA.
5. Compliance with Applicable Law and Data.
USER and COUNTY shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local
statutes, regulations, rules and ordinances currently in force or later enacted.
Subject to the provisions set forth in Section 2 above, the parties, their officers,
agents, owners, partners, employees, volunteers and subcontractors shall
abide by the provisions of the Minnesota Government Data Practices Act,
Minnesota Statutes, chapter 13 (MGDPA) and all other applicable state and
federal laws, rules, regulations and orders relating to data privacy or
confidentiality. USER shall promptly notify COUNTY if USER becomes aware of
any potential claims, or facts giving rise to such claims, under the MGDPA.
6. Termination.
If COUNTY reasonably believes that USER is not complying with any terms of
this HCUA, including but not limited to the license or related limitations,
COUNTY may immediately terminate this HCUA and thereby terminate the
License and USER’s access to and use of the System and Delivered Content.
Either party may terminate this HCUA without cause at any time by upon thirty
(30) day written notice to the other party.
Notwithstanding the term set forth herein, the parties expressly agree that
COUNTY may (i) terminate the license granted herein for Nearmap Delivered
Content; or (ii) terminate this HCUA upon the expiration or termination, for
any reason, the Nearmap Agreement.
7. Liability.
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USER agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the COUNTY, their
officials, officers, agents, volunteers and employees from any liability, claims,
causes of action, judgments, damages, losses, costs, or expenses, including
reasonable attorney’s fees, resulting directly or indirectly from USER’s use of or
access to the System or Delivered Content, from USER’s failure to comply with
the terms of this HCUA or from failure to perform any duties and obligations
required by applicable law and/or this HCUA.
As applicable, a party’s liability shall be governed by the provisions of
applicable law including but not limited to the Municipal Tort Claims Act,
Minnesota Statutes Chapter 466, and other applicable law. The statutory
limits of liability for some or all of the parties may not be added together or
stacked to increase the maximum amount of liability for any party. This
paragraph shall not be construed to bar legal remedies one party may have for
the other party’s failure to fulfill its obligations under this HCUA. Nothing in
this HCUA constitutes a waiver by the USER or COUNTY of any statutory or
common law defenses, immunities, or limits on liability.
8. Miscellaneous Provisions.
The Hennepin County Geographic Information Systems Manager, or his/her
designee, shall manage this HCUA on behalf of the COUNTY and perform the
other duties expressly set forth herein.
Except as directed by COUNTY, USER shall not use the term “Hennepin
County”, or any derivative thereof in USER’s advertising, external facing
communication and/or marketing, including but not limited to advertisements
of any type or form, promotional ads/literature, client lists and/or any other
form of outreach, without the written approval of the Hennepin County Public
Affairs/Communications Department, or their designees.
USER and COUNTY intend that this HCUA will not benefit or create any right or
cause of action in or on behalf of any person or entity other than the parties.
The laws of the state of Minnesota shall govern all questions and
interpretations concerning the validity and construction of this HCUA and the
legal relations between the parties and their performance.
The remainder of this page is blank.
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COUNTY AUTHORIZATION

Reviewed by the County
Attorney's Office

COUNTY OF HENNEPIN
STATE OF MINNESOTA

By:
Hennepin County Administrator
Date:

USER warrants that the person who
executed this Agreement is authorized to
do so on behalf of USER as required by
applicable articles, bylaws, resolutions or
ordinances.*

USER
By:
Printed Name: ______________________
Printed Title: _______________________
Date:

*USER shall submit applicable documentation (articles, bylaws, resolutions or
ordinances) that confirms the signatory’s delegation of authority. This documentation
shall be submitted at the time USER returns the Agreement to COUNTY.
Documentation is not required for a sole proprietorship.
-7-
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City of Wayzata
City Council Agenda Report

MEETING DATE: May 18, 2021
AGENDA ITEM: 7.j
TITLE: Approval of Professional Services Agreement with SourceGroup for 9/11 Memorial Construction
Management Services
PROPOSED MOTION: To Approve the Professional Services Agreement with SourceGroup
PREPARED BY: Jeff Dahl, City Manager
REVIEWED BY: N/A
ACTION REQUESTED:
Staff recommends approval of the Professional Services Agreement with Source Group.
FINANCIAL OR BUDGET CONSIDERATION:
The estimated cost for Construction Management Services for the 9/11 Memorial Project is $12,000. The
overall budget for the project is approximately $150,000. The Wayzata Conservancy will be reimbursing the
City for all of the expected expenditures.
BACKGROUND:
Earlier this year, the City approved a site plan for the 9/11 Memorial that has been planned to be a part of the
the Panoway Plaza along Lake Street at Broadway Avenue.
While a City-led initiative, the City's advocacy and funding partner for Panoway, the Wayzata Conservancy,
has led funding efforts. In order to ensure the project will both be complete by the 20th Anniversary of 9/11
and not take away from other previously planned Public Works Projects, a construction manager will be
needed similar to all other components of the Panoway project.
Staff and the Conservancy received three Construction Management quotes, including Stahl Construction,
and the local firm SourceGroup was the lowest cost. Staff expects to continue its relationship with Stahl for
most other future components of the projects.
ATTACHMENTS:
1.
SourceGroup Contract
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City of Wayzata
City Council Agenda Report

MEETING DATE: May 18, 2021
AGENDA ITEM: 8.a
TITLE: Consider Acceptance of City's 2020 Audited Financial Reports
PROPOSED MOTION: To Accept the 2019 Audit Report from MMKR
PREPARED BY: Aurora Yager, Administrative Services Director
REVIEWED BY: Jeff Dahl, City Manager
ACTION REQUESTED:
Staff recommends acceptance of the 2020 Audit Report.
FINANCIAL OR BUDGET CONSIDERATION:
The City budgets approximately $30,000 on auditing services annually.
BACKGROUND:
State Statutes require that the City's financials are audited annually by June 30th of the following year. In
addition to the attached 2020 Financial Report which is prepared by the City's financial advisor AEM and the
Management Report and Special Purpose Report, which is prepared by the City's Auditor MMKR, Bill Lauer of
MMKR will be presenting a summary of the City's financials along with reported findings. The reports will be
available for the public to review on the City's website.
ATTACHMENTS:
1.
2020 Management Report
2.
2020 Special Purpose Report
3.
2020 Financial Statements
4.
Wayzata Audit Presentation 2020
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City of Wayzata, Minnesota
December 31, 2020
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PRINCIPALS
Thomas A. Karnowski, CPA
Paul A. Radosevich, CPA
William J. Lauer, CPA
James H. Eichten, CPA
Aaron J. Nielsen, CPA
Victoria L. Holinka, CPA/CMA
Jaclyn M. Huegel, CPA
Kalen T. Karnowski, CPA

C E R T I F I E D PUBLIC
A C C O U N TA N T S

To the City Council and Management
City of Wayzata, Minnesota

We have prepared this management report in conjunction with our audit of the City of Wayzata,
Minnesota’s (the City) financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2020. We have organized
this report into the following sections:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Audit Summary
Governmental Funds Overview
Enterprise Funds Overview
Government-Wide Financial Statements
Legislative Updates
Accounting and Auditing Updates

We would be pleased to further discuss any of the information contained in this report or any other
concerns that you would like us to address. We would also like to express our thanks for the courtesy and
assistance extended to us during the course of our audit.
The purpose of this report is solely to provide those charged with governance of the City, management,
and those who have responsibility for oversight of the financial reporting process comments resulting
from our audit process and information relevant to city finances in Minnesota. Accordingly, this report is
not suitable for any other purpose.

Minneapolis, Minnesota
May 4, 2021

M a l l o y, M o n t a g u e , K a r n o w s k i , R a d o s e v i c h & C o . , P. A .
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AUDIT SUMMARY
The following is a summary of our audit work, key conclusions, and other information that we consider
important or that is required to be communicated to the City Council, administration, or those charged
with governance of the City.
OUR RESPONSIBILITY UNDER AUDITING STANDARDS GENERALLY ACCEPTED IN THE UNITED
STATES OF AMERICA AND GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS
We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the
discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of
the City as of and for the year ended December 31, 2020. Professional standards require that we provide
you with information about our responsibilities under auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and Government Auditing Standards, as well as certain information related to the
planned scope and timing of our audit. We have communicated such information to you verbally and in
our audit engagement letter. Professional standards also require that we communicate the following
information related to our audit.
PLANNED SCOPE AND TIMING OF THE AUDIT
We performed the audit according to the planned scope and timing previously discussed and coordinated
in order to obtain sufficient audit evidence and complete an effective audit.
AUDIT OPINION AND FINDINGS
Based on our audit of the City’s financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2020:
•

We have issued an unmodified opinion on the City’s basic financial statements.

•

We reported one matter involving the City’s internal control over financial reporting that we
consider to be a significant deficiency. Due to the limited size of the City’s finance department
staff, the City has limited segregation of duties in certain areas.

•

The results of our testing disclosed no instances of noncompliance that are required to be reported
under Government Auditing Standards.

•

We reported no findings based on our testing of the City’s compliance with Minnesota laws and
regulations.

FOLLOW-UP ON PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS
As a part of our audit of the City’s financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2020, we
performed procedures to follow-up on the findings and recommendations that resulted from our prior year
audit. In fiscal 2019, 2 of 40 claims for payment selected for testing were not paid within 35 days of the
receipt of goods or services, or the invoice for goods or services, as required by Minnesota Statutes. We
are happy to report that all claims for payment tested for fiscal 2020 were paid within the 35-day period
required by state statutes.
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OTHER OBSERVATIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS
Electronic Funds Transfers Policy
Minnesota Statutes § 471.38 allows home rule charter cities to pay certain claims using electronic funds
transfers, provided the home rule charter city has enacted all of the following policy controls:
•
•
•
•
•
•

The governing body shall annually delegate the authority to make electronic funds transfers to a
designated business administrator or chief financial officer or the officer’s designee;
The disbursing bank shall keep on file a certified copy of the delegation of authority;
The initiator of the electronic transfer shall be identified;
The initiator shall document the request and obtain an approval from the designated business
administrator, or chief financial officer or the officer’s designee, before initiating the transfer as
required by internal control policies;
A written confirmation of the transaction shall be made no later than one business day after the
transaction and shall be used in lieu of a check, order check, or warrant required to support the
transaction;
A list of all transactions made by electronic funds transfers shall be submitted to the governing
body at its next regular meeting after the transaction.

While in practice, the City is following most of these control procedures, it has not adopted a formal
policy requiring them. We recommend that the City adopt such a policy.
Electronic Funds Transfers Fraud
As the use of electronic funds transfers and payment methods has become more prevalent, we have seen
increases in both the incidences of fraud related to these transactions and the dollar amounts involved.
Operational changes related to the COVID-19 pandemic, including greater reliance on technology and
more employees working remotely, have tended to increase risk in this area. We urge cities to carefully
review controls over these transactions, and consider best practices to address these risks, such as:
•
•

•

•
•

Ensuring segregation of duties over these transactions by involving more than one employee in
the process.
Requiring multi-factor authentication of requests for electronic payments from new vendors or for
changes in wiring instructions for existing vendors. It is recommended that changes for existing
vendors be verified through trusted contact information used previously for that vendor, not as
provided in the change request, to verify the accuracy of the change.
Educate employees on the controls in place to protect the organization’s financial assets and
ensure management is supportive and accepting of the processes in place. Attempted fraudulent
transactions are often initiated using the profile of a supervisor. Employees must be comfortable
questioning unusual transactions or requests, and instructed not to circumvent internal control
procedures regardless of whom they believe initiated the transaction.
Recommended cyber security measures, such as limiting network access and requiring robust
passwords that are changed regularly, should be implemented and followed by all city employees,
not just those directly involved with financial transactions.
Review insurance policies to understand the coverage provided for financial losses due to
cybersecurity risks and evaluate whether they provide adequate coverage based on management’s
assessment of these risks.
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Payroll Claims
Minnesota Statutes § 412.271 requires that “Whenever work for which wages are to be paid on an hourly
or daily basis is done by employees of a city, the clerk shall keep a payroll giving the name of each
employee and the number of hours or days worked by each and the timekeeper, supervisor, or other
officers or employee having knowledge of the facts shall sign a declaration that the facts recited on the
payroll are correct to the best of the declarant’s information and belief; and when any claim for wages
listed on a payroll is paid, the employee shall sign a declaration, which may be a part of the payroll, to the
effect that the employee has received the wages and done the work for which wages have been paid.”
When the City changed payroll vendors in 2020, the method previously used by the City to obtain the
required declarations could not be incorporated into the new vendor system. We recommend the City
consider implementing alternative methods to obtain these declarations for applicable payroll claims.
Uniform Guidance Written Controls and Micro-Purchase Threshold
Federal Uniform Guidance (UG) requires that nonfederal entities must have and use documented
procurement procedures consistent with 2CFR § 200.317-320 for the acquisition of property or services
required under a federal award or sub-award. Effective August 31, 2020, the federal micro-purchase
threshold, which is the threshold that allows for procurements without soliciting competitive price or rate
quotations given certain conditions, was increased from $3,500 to $10,000 in the Federal Acquisition
Regulations (FAR).
Effective November 12, 2020, the UG was also revised to allow nonfederal entities to establish a
micro-purchase threshold higher than the $10,000 threshold established in the FAR under certain
circumstances. The nonfederal entity may self-certify a micro-purchase threshold up to $50,000 if the
requirements in 2CFR § 200.320(a)(1)(iv) are followed. Requirements include an annual
self-certification and clear documentation of the justification to support the increase in the threshold.
Acceptable reasons for justification must meet one of the following criteria:
•
•
•

A qualification as a low-risk auditee, in accordance with the criteria in §200.520 for the most
recent audit,
An annual internal institutional risk assessment to identify, mitigate, and manage financial risks,
or,
A higher threshold consistent with state law.

This flexibility would allow Minnesota local governments to increase and align their federal procurement
procedures, specifically the micro-purchase threshold, with state law, which allows for procurements
below $25,000 to be made without competitive price or rate quotations.
We recommend that the City review its current federal procurement policy. If the micro-purchase
threshold in your currently adopted policy is below the allowable FAR limit of $10,000, you would need
to make a one-time amendment to the policy to adopt the $10,000 FAR limit before using it. If you prefer
to increase your federal micro-purchase threshold to $25,000 to align it with state law, in addition to
amending your federal procurement policy, you would need to annually certify the higher threshold and
the justification for using the higher threshold.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant
accounting policies used by the City are described in Note 1 of the notes to basic financial statements. No
new accounting policies were adopted and the application of existing policies was not changed during the
year ended December 31, 2020.
We noted no transactions entered into by the City during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative
guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial statements in the
proper period.
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND MANAGEMENT JUDGMENTS
Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are
based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about
future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the
financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ
significantly from those expected. The most sensitive estimates affecting the financial statements were:
•

The City has recorded liabilities and activity for pension benefits and other post-employment
benefits (OPEB). These obligations are calculated using actuarial methodologies described in
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement Nos. 68 and 75. These actuarial
calculations include significant assumptions, including projected changes, healthcare insurance
costs, investment returns, retirement ages, proportionate share, and employee turnover.

•

The City has recorded a liability for compensated absences payable. Management’s estimate is
based on current rates of pay, compensated absence balances, and the likelihood that sick leave
will ultimately be paid at termination.

•

The depreciation of capital assets involves estimates pertaining to useful lives.

We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used by management to develop these estimates in
determining that they are reasonable in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.
Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to financial
statement users. The disclosures included in the notes to the basic financial statements related to OPEB
and pension benefits are particularly sensitive, due to the materiality of the liabilities, and the large and
complex estimates involved in determining the disclosures.
The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear.
DIFFICULTIES ENCOUNTERED IN PERFORMING THE AUDIT
We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our
audit.
CORRECTED AND UNCORRECTED MISSTATEMENTS
Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the
audit, other than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of
management. There were no misstatements detected as a result of audit procedures that were material,
either individually or in the aggregate, to each opinion unit’s financial statements taken as a whole.
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DISAGREEMENTS WITH MANAGEMENT
For purposes of this report, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or
auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial
statements or the auditor’s report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the
course of our audit.
MANAGEMENT REPRESENTATIONS
We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management
representation letter dated May 4, 2021.
MANAGEMENT CONSULTATIONS WITH OTHER INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS
In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting
matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves
application of an accounting principle to the City’s financial statements or a determination of the type of
auditor’s opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the
consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our
knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants.
OTHER AUDIT FINDINGS OR ISSUES
We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing
standards, with management each year prior to retention as the City’s auditors. However, these
discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a
condition to our retention.
OTHER MATTERS
We applied certain limited procedures to the management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A) and the
pension and OPEB-related required supplementary information (RSI) that supplements the basic financial
statements. Our procedures consisted of inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic
financial statements. We did not audit the RSI and do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on
the RSI.
We were engaged to report on the supplemental information accompanying the financial statements,
which is not RSI. With respect to the supplemental information, we made certain inquiries of
management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the information to determine that
the information complies with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America,
the method of preparing it has not changed from the prior period, and the information is appropriate and
complete in relation to our audit of the financial statements. We compared and reconciled the
supplemental information to the underlying accounting records used to prepare the financial statements or
to the financial statements themselves.
We were not engaged to report on the introductory section, which accompanies the financial statements,
but is not RSI. Such information has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on
it.
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GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS OVERVIEW
This section of the report provides you with an overview of the financial trends and activities of the City’s
governmental funds, which includes the General, special revenue, debt service, and capital project funds.
These funds are used to account for the basic services the City provides to all of its citizens, which are
financed primarily with property taxes. The governmental fund information in the City’s financial
statements focuses on budgetary compliance and the sufficiency of each governmental fund’s current
assets to finance its current liabilities.
PROPERTY TAXES
Minnesota cities rely heavily on local property tax levies to support their governmental fund activities.
For the 2019 fiscal year, local ad valorem property tax levies provided 40.8 percent of the total
governmental fund revenues for cities over 2,500 in population, and 37.6 percent for cities under 2,500 in
population. Total property taxes levied by all Minnesota cities for taxes payable in 2020 increased
6.1 percent from the prior year.
The total tax capacity value of property in Minnesota cities increased about 6.5 percent for the 2020 levy
year. The tax capacity values used for levying property taxes are based on the assessed market values for
the previous fiscal year (e.g., tax capacity values for taxes levied in 2020 were based on assessed market
values as of January 1, 2019), so the trend of change in these tax capacity values lags somewhat behind
the housing market and economy in general.
The City’s taxable market value increased 5.1 percent for taxes payable in 2019 and 6.9 percent for taxes
payable in 2020. The following graph shows the City’s changes in taxable market value over the
past 10 years:

Taxable Market Value
$2,400,000,000
$2,000,000,000
$1,600,000,000

$1,200,000,000
$800,000,000
$400,000,000

$–
2011

2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

2017

2018

2019

2020

-6Page 81 of 255

Tax capacity is considered the actual base available for taxation. It is calculated by applying the state’s
property classification system to each property’s market value. Each property classification, such as
commercial or residential, has a different calculation and uses different rates. Consequently, a city’s total
tax capacity will change at a different rate than its total market value, as tax capacity is affected by the
proportion of its tax base that is in each property classification from year-to-year, as well as legislative
changes to tax rates. The City’s tax capacity increased 5.3 percent and 7.0 percent for taxes payable in
2019 and 2020, respectively.
The following graph shows the City’s change in tax capacities over the past 10 years:
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The following table presents the average tax rates applied to city residents for each of the last three levy
years:
Rates Expressed as a Percentage of Net Tax Capacity

2018

City of Wayzata
2019

2020

Average tax rate
City

21.7

21.7

21.1

County

42.8

41.9

41.1

School

25.5

24.8

26.7

Special taxing

10.7

10.1

9.7

Total

100.7

98.5

98.6

The City’s portion of the tax capacity rates for Wayzata residents, as well as the total tax capacity rate,
have slowly been declining in recent years. This is due to the City’s relatively low annual tax levies,
coupled with its high property values and strong commercial tax base.
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GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCES
The following table summarizes the changes in the fund balances of the City’s governmental funds during
the year ended December 31, 2020, presented both by fund balance classification and by fund:
Governmental Funds Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balance
as of December 31,
2020
2019
Fund balances of governmental funds
Total by classification
Nonspendable
Restricted
Committed
Assigned
Unassigned
Total governmental funds
Total by fund
General
Debt Service
Lakefront Improvement Capital Projects
Developer Financed Capital Projects
Nonmajor funds
Total governmental funds

$

754,668
1,757,102
127,334
8,069,035
3,278,984

540,681
1,300,874
112,726
10,001,324
3,261,720

$

213,987
456,228
14,608
(1,932,289)
17,264

$ 13,987,123

$ 15,217,325

$

(1,230,202)

$

$

4,074,455
694,534
3,159,573
–
7,288,763

$

242,238
439,193
(2,456,011)
–
544,378

$ 15,217,325

$

(1,230,202)

4,316,693
1,133,727
703,562
–
7,833,141

$ 13,987,123

$

Change

In total, the fund balances of the City’s governmental funds decreased $1,230,202 during the year ended
December 31, 2020. The majority of the decrease was in assigned fund balance in the Lakefront
Improvement Capital Projects Fund, which was utilized for construction of the Panoway on Wayzata Bay
Project in 2020. This decrease was partially offset by increases in fund balances restricted for debt
service, assigned for various capital purposes in the nonmajor capital projects funds, and nonspendable
fund balances related to long-term receivables in the General Fund.
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GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS REVENUE AND EXPENDITURES
The following table presents the per capita revenue of the City’s governmental funds for the
past three years, along with state-wide averages for cities with comparable populations.
We have included the most recent comparative state-wide averages available from the Office of the State
Auditor to provide a benchmark for interpreting the City’s data. The amounts received from the typical
major sources of governmental fund revenue will naturally vary between cities based on factors such as a
city’s stage of development, location, size and density of its population, property values, services it
provides, and other attributes. It will also differ from year-to-year, due to the effect of inflation and
changes in its operation. Also, certain data on these tables may be classified differently than how they
appear in the City’s financial statements in order to be more comparable to the state-wide information,
particularly in separating capital expenditures from current expenditures.
We have designed this section of our management report using per capita data in order to better identify
unique or unusual trends and activities of the City. We intend for this type of comparative and trend
information to complement, rather than duplicate, information in the MD&A. An inherent difficulty in
presenting per capita information is the accuracy of the population count, which for most years is based
on estimates.
The per capita information presented in this report excludes the Wayzata Housing and Redevelopment
Authority (HRA), the City’s discretely presented component unit.
Governmental Funds Revenue per Capita
With State-Wide Averages for Population Class

Year
Population
Property taxes
Tax increments
Franchise and other taxes
Special assessments
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental revenues
Charges for services
Other
Total revenue

State-Wide
2018
2019
2,500–10,000 2,500–10,000

2018
4,719

City of Wayzata
2019
4,672

2020
4,672

$

495
28
41
53
38
303
130
97

$

514
30
45
54
40
342
135
89

$

982
–
33
53
188
122
338
99

$

1,018
–
34
53
145
118
302
228

$

1,062
–
34
105
155
471
324
582

$

1,185

$

1,249

$

1,815

$

1,898

$

2,733

The City’s total governmental funds revenue for 2020 was $12,766,149, an increase of $3,900,586
(44.0 percent), or about $835 per capita, from the previous year. The majority of the increase was in
intergovernmental revenues ($353 per capita) and other revenues ($354 per capita). The increase in
intergovernmental revenues was primarily due to the City receiving $355,531 from a federal Coronavirus
Relief Fund (CRF) grant in 2020, along with HRA contributions of $1,613,297 for administrative support,
debt service, and the Panoway on Wayzata Bay Project. The increase in the “other” category was
primarily due to contributions of $1,290,412 received from private sources for the Panoway on Wayzata
Bay Project, and $469,800 contributed by developers for the use of the City-owned parking ramp during
construction.
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The expenditures of governmental funds will also vary from state-wide averages and from year-to-year,
based on the City’s circumstances. Expenditures are classified into three types as follows:
•

Current – These are typically the general operating-type expenditures occurring on an annual
basis, and are primarily funded by general sources, such as taxes and intergovernmental revenues.

•

Capital Outlay and Construction – These expenditures do not occur on a consistent basis, more
typically fluctuating significantly from year-to-year. Many of these expenditures are
project-oriented, which are often funded by specific sources that have benefited from the
expenditure, such as special assessment improvement projects.

•

Debt Service – Although the expenditures for debt service may be relatively consistent over the
term of the respective debt, the funding source is the important factor. Some debt may be repaid
through specific sources, such as special assessments or redevelopment funding, while other debt
may be repaid with general property taxes.

The City’s expenditures per capita of its governmental funds for the past three years, together with
state-wide averages for cities with comparable populations, are presented in the following table:
Governmental Funds Expenditures per Capita
With State-Wide Averages for Population Class

Year
Population
Current
General government
Public safety
Public works
Culture and recreation
All other
Total
Totalcurrent
expenditures

State-Wide
2018
2019
2,500–10,000 2,500–10,000

$

150
286
135
96
75
742

$

152
300
146
103
74
775

2018
4,719

$

322
497
157
250
57
1,283

City of Wayzata
2019
4,672

$

356
506
194
259
59
1,374

2020
4,672

$

354
591
205
233
65
1,448

Capital outlay
and construction

417

438

247

689

2,311

Debt service
Principal
Interest and fiscal
Total
Totaldebt
expenditures
service

178
41
219

168
43
211

71
73
144

74
84
158

135
116
251

Total expenditures

$

1,378

$

1,424

$

1,674

$

2,221

$

4,010

The City’s total governmental funds expenditures for 2020 were $18,734,278, an increase of $8,354,258
(80.5 percent) from the prior year, or $1,789 per capita. The majority of this increase was in capital
outlay, which was $1,622 per capita higher than last year, primarily due to construction of the City’s
Panoway on Wayzata Bay Project in 2020.
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GENERAL FUND
The City’s General Fund accounts for the financial activity of the basic services provided to the
community. The primary services included within this fund are the administration of the municipal
operation, police and fire protection, building inspection, streets and highway maintenance, and culture
and recreation. The graph below illustrates the change in the General Fund financial position over the last
five years. We have also included a line representing annual expenditures and transfers out to reflect the
change in the size of the General Fund operation over the same period.

General Fund Financial Position
Year Ended December 31,
$8,000,000
$7,000,000
$6,000,000
$5,000,000
$4,000,000
$3,000,000
$2,000,000
$1,000,000
$–
Fund Balance
Cash Balance
Exp & Trans Out

2016
$2,835,183
$2,792,940
$6,056,578

2017
$4,258,409
$3,306,531
$5,902,131

2018
$4,095,409
$3,308,723
$6,843,803

2019
$4,074,455
$3,482,533
$6,816,402

2020
$4,316,693
$3,770,875
$7,069,679

The City’s General Fund cash and investments balance at December 31, 2020 was $3,770,875, an
increase of $288,342 from the previous year. Total fund balance at year-end was $4,316,693, which was
an increase of $242,238 from the prior year, as compared to a break-even budget. The unassigned portion
of fund balance was $3,278,984 at year-end, which represents 46.4 percent of the City’s annual General
Fund expenditures and transfers out based on 2020 levels.
The City has generally been able to maintain healthy cash and fund balance levels as the volume of
financial activity has grown. This is an important factor because a government, like any organization,
requires a certain amount of equity to operate. A healthy financial position allows the City to avoid
volatility in tax rates; helps minimize the impact of state funding changes; allows for the adequate and
consistent funding of services, repairs, and unexpected costs; and is a factor in determining the City’s
bond rating and resulting interest costs.
A trend that is typical to Minnesota local governments, especially the General Fund of cities, is the
unusual cash flow experienced throughout the year. The City’s General Fund cash disbursements are
made fairly evenly during the year other than the impact of seasonal services, such as snowplowing, street
maintenance, and park activities. Cash receipts of the General Fund are quite a different story. Property
taxes comprise about 65.5 percent of the fund’s total annual revenue. Approximately half of these
revenues are received by the City at mid-year and the rest at year-end. Consequently, the City needs to
have adequate cash reserves to finance its everyday operations between these payments.
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The following chart reflects the City’s General Fund revenue sources for 2020 compared to budget:

General Fund Revenue
Budget to Actual
Taxes
Intergovernmental
Fines and Forfeits
Charges for Services
Licenses and Permits
All Other

Budget

Actual

General Fund revenue for 2020 totaled $6,978,129, which was $558,506 (8.7 percent) higher than budget.
Intergovernmental revenue exceeded budget by $398,465, mainly due to the unanticipated federal CRF
grant received. Charges for services were $106,365 over budget, and licenses and permits were $107,247
over budget, both mainly due to more development related fees and permits than anticipated.
The following graph presents the City’s General Fund revenues by source for the last five years. The
graph reflects the City’s reliance on property taxes and other local sources of revenue.
General Fund Revenue by Source
Year Ended December 31,
$5,000,000
$4,500,000
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$3,500,000
$3,000,000
$2,500,000
$2,000,000
$1,500,000
$1,000,000
$500,000
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2016
2017
2018
2019
2020

Taxes

Intergovernmental

Fines and Forfeits

$4,211,953
$4,312,130
$4,263,785
$4,385,718
$4,569,159

$200,025
$1,306,099
$276,372
$260,846
$629,065

$77,268
$81,423
$100,118
$77,810
$56,402

Charges for
Services
$862,230
$716,702
$837,538
$817,871
$924,715

Licenses and
Permits
$769,641
$595,372
$683,900
$676,426
$724,557

All Other
$62,829
$141,912
$81,915
$171,990
$74,231

Total General Fund revenues increased $587,468 (9.2 percent) from the previous year. Taxes revenue was
$183,441 higher than the previous year, due to an increase in the levy. Intergovernmental revenue
increased $368,219, mainly due to the federal CRF grant. Charges for services were $106,844 higher than
last year, and licenses and permits were $48,131 higher, both mainly due to increased development
activity within the City in 2020. Revenues from all other sources, as presented above, decreased by
$97,759, due in part to a decline in market conditions and available interest rates on investments.
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The following graph illustrates the components of General Fund spending for 2020 compared to budget:
General Fund Expenditures
Budget to Actual
General Government

Public Safety
Public Works
Culture and Recreation
All Other

Budget

Actual

Total General Fund expenditures for 2020 of $5,909,888 were under the final budget by $194,255
(3.2 percent). This variance was spread across several areas, with the largest savings in culture and
recreation ($100,082), due to a decrease in recreation program activities because of
COVID-19 restrictions, and public works ($71,491), due to lower than expected street maintenance
salaries and supplies.
The following graph presents the City’s General Fund expenditures by function for the last five years:

General Fund Expenditures by Function
Year Ended December 31,
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General
Government
$1,110,852
$1,251,354
$1,374,287
$1,548,038
$1,580,956

Public Safety

Public Works

$2,198,112
$2,234,630
$2,311,503
$2,344,625
$2,731,967

$782,691
$703,182
$740,013
$738,012
$722,549

Culture and
Recreation
$469,516
$530,460
$566,137
$577,613
$579,740

All Other
$150,633
$214,831
$214,552
$259,752
$294,676

Total General Fund expenditures were $441,848 (8.1 percent) higher than the previous year. Most of the
increase was in public safety, which was $387,342 higher than last year, due primarily to increased police
and emergency management costs funded through the federal CRF grant.
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ENTERPRISE FUNDS OVERVIEW
The City maintains a number of enterprise funds to account for services the City provides that are
financed primarily through fees charged to those utilizing the service. This section of the report provides
you with an overview of the financial trends and activities of the City’s enterprise funds, which include
the Water, Sewer, Licensing, Liquor, Solid Waste, and Stormwater Funds.
ENTERPRISE FUNDS FINANCIAL POSITION
The following table summarizes the changes in the financial position of the City’s enterprise funds during
the year ended December 31, 2020, presented both by classification and by fund:
Enterprise Funds Change in Financial Position

Net Position
as of December 31,
2020
2019
Net position of enterprise funds
Total by classification
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total enterprise funds
Total by fund
Water
Sewer
Licensing
Liquor
Solid Waste
Stormwater
Total enterprise funds

Change

$ 13,540,628
1,307,471
2,852,654

$ 13,435,091
1,420,296
2,908,736

$

105,537
(112,825)
(56,082)

$ 17,700,753

$ 17,764,123

$

(63,370)

$

$

$

153,003
240,967
(182,945)
1,459
7,874
(283,728)

$

(63,370)

8,030,291
4,065,488
(278,886)
1,576,454
280,644
4,026,762

$ 17,700,753

7,877,288
3,824,521
(95,941)
1,574,995
272,770
4,310,490

$ 17,764,123

In total, the net position of the City’s enterprise funds decreased by $63,370 during the year ended
December 31, 2020. In most cases, the enterprise funds generated positive income before contributions
and transfers. The overall net position decreases in the Licensing and Stormwater Funds shown above,
were mainly the result of transfers made to support governmental fund activities.
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WATER FUND
The following graph presents five years of operating results for the Water Fund:

Water Fund
Year Ended December 31,
$1,000,000
$900,000
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$700,000
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$(100,000)
Oper Rev
Oper Exp
Oper Inc (Loss)

2016
$700,700
$717,299
$(16,599)

2017
$750,334
$710,647
$39,687

2018
$820,062
$904,319
$(84,257)

2019
$785,225
$810,291
$(25,066)

2020
$900,956
$698,751
$202,205

The Water Fund ended 2020 with a total net position of $8,030,291, which was an increase of $153,003
from the prior year. The Water Fund had a net investment in capital assets of $5,808,748, net position
restricted for debt service of $954,227, and unrestricted net position of $1,267,316 at year-end.
Water Fund operating revenues for fiscal 2020 were $900,956, an increase of $115,731 (14.7 percent)
from the prior year, due to increases in both water rates and water consumption in 2020.
Operating expenses for 2020 were $698,751, a decrease of $111,540 (13.8 percent) from the previous
year, mainly in maintenance and supplies.
After nonoperating revenues and expenses (such as interest revenue, tower rental revenue, and interest
expense), the Water Fund had income before contributions and transfers of $142,603.
The Water Fund received capital contributions of $102,100 from special assessments and access charges
to finance the water portion of street improvement projects. The Water Fund also transferred out $25,000
to finance the Panoway on Wayzata Bay Project, $35,700 to finance equipment purchases, and $31,000 to
support the General Fund.
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SEWER FUND
The following graph presents five years of operating results for the Sewer Fund:

Sewer Fund
Year Ended December 31,
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2016
$897,443
$964,112
$(66,669)

2017
$950,007
$963,435
$(13,428)

2018
$1,026,386
$1,055,052
$(28,666)

2019
$1,050,037
$1,214,010
$(163,973)

2020
$1,239,184
$997,027
$242,157

The Sewer Fund ended 2020 with a total net position of $4,065,488, an increase of $240,967 from the
prior year. The Sewer Fund had a net investment in capital assets of $2,937,906, net position restricted for
debt service of $353,244, and unrestricted net position of $774,338 at year-end.
Sewer Fund operating revenue for fiscal 2020 was $1,239,184, an increase of $189,147 (18.0 percent)
from the prior year, mainly due to an increase in rates implemented this year.
Operating expenses for 2020 were $997,027, a decrease of $216,983 (17.9 percent), mainly due to
decreases in Metropolitan Council Environmental Services disposal charges ($96,480), contracted
maintenance services, and supplies.
After nonoperating revenues and expenses, the Sewer Fund had income before contributions and transfers
of $249,163.
The Sewer Fund received $70,604 of contributed capital from special assessments and access charges to
finance the sewer portion of street improvement projects. The Sewer Fund also transferred out $47,800 to
finance equipment purchases and $31,000 to support the General Fund.
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LICENSING FUND
The following graph presents five years of operating results for the Licensing Fund:

Licensing Fund
Year Ended December 31,
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2016
$552,514
$366,121
$186,393

2017
$521,062
$390,442
$130,620

2018
$544,247
$445,935
$98,312

2019
$576,066
$477,605
$98,461

2020
$486,862
$497,307
$(10,445)

The Licensing Fund ended 2020 with an unrestricted deficit net position of ($278,886), a decline of
$182,945 from the prior year.
Licensing Fund operating revenues for 2020 were $486,862, a decrease of $89,204 (15.5 percent) from
the prior year, due primarily to the impact of COVID-19 restrictions.
Operating expenses for 2020 were $497,307, an increase of $19,702 (4.1 percent) from last year, mainly
in salaries and benefits.
After nonoperating revenues, the Licensing Fund had a net loss before transfers of $5,511.
The Licensing Fund transferred out $95,868 to finance the Panoway on Wayzata Bay Project, $25,566 to
finance park and trail improvement projects, $25,000 to finance general construction projects, and
$31,000 to support the General Fund.
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LIQUOR FUND
The following graph presents five years of operating results for the Liquor Fund:

Liquor Fund
Year Ended December 31,
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2016
$5,841,519
$2,987,361
$2,383,344
$2,854,158
$470,814

2017
$6,184,891
$3,127,367
$2,625,555
$3,057,524
$431,969

2018
$6,395,736
$3,198,367
$2,636,737
$3,197,369
$560,632

2019
$6,551,840
$3,241,073
$2,954,045
$3,310,767
$356,722

2020
$5,300,300
$3,064,216
$2,112,067
$2,236,084
$124,017

The Liquor Fund ended 2020 with a total net position of $1,576,454, an increase of $1,459 from the prior
year. The Liquor Fund’s net investment in capital assets was $1,241,232, leaving unrestricted net position
of $335,222 at year-end.
Liquor Fund gross sales for 2020 were $5,300,300, a decrease of $1,251,540 from the prior year, due
primarily to the impact of COVID-19 restrictions on the bar and grill. Gross sales for the liquor store
increased $441,339 (14.8 percent), while decreasing by $1,692,879 (47.3 percent) for the bar and grill.
Gross profits for 2020 decreased $1,074,683 (32.5 percent) overall.
Operating expenses of $2,112,067 represented a decrease of $841,978 (28.5 percent) from the prior year,
with personal service costs down by $701,160, due to the bar and grill being closed or at reduced capacity
for much of the year.
After nonoperating revenues and expenses, the Liquor Fund had income before contributions and
transfers of $42,459.
The Liquor Fund transferred out $41,000 to support the General Fund.
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SOLID WASTE FUND
The following graph presents five years of operating results for the Solid Waste Fund:

Solid Waste Fund
Year Ended December 31,
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$361,003
$374,985
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The Solid Waste Fund ended 2020 with an unrestricted net position of $280,644, an increase of $7,874
from the prior year.
Operating revenues for 2020 were $361,003, an increase of $630 (0.2 percent) from last year.
Operating expenses for 2020 were $374,985, an increase of $18,898 (5.3 percent) from the previous year,
mainly in disposal fees and utilities.
After nonoperating revenues, including a county recycling grant of $16,603, the Solid Waste Fund had an
increase in net position of $7,874.
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STORMWATER FUND
The following graph presents five years of operating results for the Stormwater Fund:

Stormwater Fund
Year Ended December 31,
$700,000
$600,000
$500,000
$400,000
$300,000
$200,000
$100,000
$–
$(100,000)
$(200,000)
$(300,000)
$(400,000)
Oper Rev
Oper Exp
Oper Inc (Loss)

2016
$273,816
$171,774
$102,042

2017
$283,696
$178,786
$104,910

2018
$294,936
$628,207
$(333,271)

2019
$314,307
$231,015
$83,292

2020
$326,762
$254,133
$72,629

The Stormwater Fund ended 2020 with a total net position of $4,026,762, a decrease of $283,728 from
the prior year. The Stormwater Fund’s net investment in capital assets was $3,552,742 at year-end,
leaving an unrestricted net position of $474,020.
Stormwater Fund operating revenue for 2020 was $326,762, an increase of $12,455 (4.0 percent) from
last year, due to a 5.0 percent increase in rates.
Operating expenses for 2020 were $254,133, an increase of $23,118 (10.0 percent) from last year, mainly
in contracted services.
After nonoperating revenues, the Stormwater Fund had income before contributions and transfers of
$87,092.
The Stormwater Fund received $3,500 of contributed capital. The Stormwater Fund transferred out
$309,320 to finance the Panoway on Wayzata Bay Project, $55,000 to finance street improvement
construction projects, and $10,000 to support the General Fund.
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
In addition to fund-based information, the current reporting model for governmental entities also requires
the inclusion of two government-wide financial statements designed to present a clear picture of the City
as a single, unified entity. These government-wide financial statements provide information on the total
cost of delivering services, including capital assets and long-term liabilities.
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
The Statement of Net Position essentially tells you what your city owns and owes at a given point in time,
the last day of the fiscal year. Theoretically, net position represents the resources the City has leftover to
use for providing services after its debts are settled. However, those resources are not always in spendable
form, or there may be restrictions on how some of those resources can be used. Therefore, net position is
divided into three components: net investment in capital assets, restricted, and unrestricted.
The following table presents the City’s components of net position as of December 31, 2020 and 2019:
As of December 31,
2020
2019

Change

Net position – primary government
Governmental activities
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total governmental activities

$ 38,314,544
5,141,057
8,755,748
52,211,349

$ 32,116,987
5,028,305
10,563,817
47,709,109

Business-type activities
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total business-type activities

13,540,628
1,307,471
2,852,654
17,700,753

13,435,091
1,420,296
2,908,736
17,764,123

$ 69,912,102

$ 65,473,232

$

$

2,092,900
62,588
(773,640)

$

2,092,900
743,727
(659,505)

$

–
(681,139)
(114,135)

$

1,381,848

$

2,177,122

$

(795,274)

Total net position – primary government
Net position – HRA component unit
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total net position – HRA component unit

$

6,197,557
112,752
(1,808,069)
4,502,240

105,537
(112,825)
(56,082)
(63,370)
4,438,870

The City (excluding the HRA) ended 2020 with a combined total net position of $69,912,102, an increase
of $4,438,870 from the prior year. The City’s net investment in capital assets increased $6,303,094
between the governmental and business-type activities, due to utilizing available resources and capital
contributions to finance a significant portion of the governmental activity capital assets constructed in
2020, which also caused the reduction in the unrestricted net position of the governmental activities.
The City’s HRA discretely presented component unit ended the year with a total net position of
$1,381,848. The $795,274 decrease in net position was primarily the result of the Bay Center Tax
Increment District contributing $1,071,949 to the City to finance the Panoway on Wayzata Bay Project.
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STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
The Statement of Activities tracks the City’s yearly revenues and expenses, as well as any other
transactions that increase or reduce total net position. These amounts represent the full cost of providing
services. The Statement of Activities provides a more comprehensive measure than just the amount of
cash that changed hands, as reflected in the fund-based financial statements. This statement includes the
cost of supplies used, depreciation of long-lived capital assets, and other accrual-based expenses.
The following table presents the change in net position of the City (primary government) and the HRA
(discretely presented component unit) for the year ended December 31, 2020:

Program
Revenues

Expenses
Primary government
Governmental activities
General government
Public safety
Public works
Culture and recreation
Interest on long-term debt
Business-type activities
Water
Sewer
Licensing
Liquor
Solid Waste
Stormwater

$

2,479,040
3,095,691
1,634,301
1,260,678
517,009

Net Change
Component
Unit – HRA

$

–
–
–
–
–

796,615
1,203,638
1,963,665
2,843,029
–

$ (1,682,425)
(1,892,053)
329,364
1,582,351
(517,009)

797,198
1,006,198
497,307
5,300,652
374,985
254,133

1,003,530
1,310,264
487,625
5,319,191
377,641
330,372

206,332
304,066
(9,682)
18,539
2,656
76,239

–
–
–
–
–
–

Total – primary government

$ 17,217,192

$ 15,635,570

(1,581,622)

–

Component unit – HRA

$

$

4,403,372

$

Net Change
Primary
Government

–

100,000

General revenues
Property taxes and tax increments
Franchise taxes
Unrestricted grants and contributions
Investment earnings
Other revenues
Total general revenues

(4,303,372)

5,025,302
158,017
382,029
367,339
87,805
6,020,492
$

Change in net position

4,438,870

3,479,166
–
–
28,932
–
3,508,098
$

(795,274)

One of the goals of this statement is to provide a side-by-side comparison to illustrate the difference in the
way governmental and business-type operations are financed. The table clearly illustrates the dependence
of the City’s governmental operations and those of the HRA on general revenues, such as property taxes,
tax increments, and unrestricted grants. It also shows that, for the most part, the City’s business-type
activities are generating sufficient program revenues (service charges and program-specific grants) to
cover expenses.
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LEGISLATIVE UPDATES
The 2020 legislative session, coming in the second half of the state’s fiscal biennium, was expected to be
a typical short session focused primarily on making relatively minor modifications to the biennial budget.
Given a projected budget surplus of $1.5 billion going into the session, consideration of a substantial
capital investment and bonding bill was also a potential focus.
The start of the legislative session in February was followed by a series of significant events that changed
the course of the session, including a world-wide health pandemic, the death of George Floyd while in
police custody and the ensuing protests and unrest, and a hotly contested national election. On March 13,
2020, the Governor issued an executive order declaring a peacetime emergency, giving his administration
the ability to quickly impose restrictions and measures aimed at mitigating the COVID-19 outbreak. By
early May, the state’s budget outlook had changed from a robust surplus to a projected deficit of
$2.4 billion. The legislative session ultimately encompassed an unprecedented seven special sessions,
more than double the previous state record of three, with the final special session in mid-December.
In the end, a $1.87 billion omnibus bonding bill was passed that included $1.36 billion in general
obligation state bonding for capital improvements, $31.0 million in supplemental General Fund budget
spending, and provisions for tax relief and economic assistance. The session also yielded a new Police
Accountability Act, and a $217.0 million economic relief package to help businesses negatively impacted
by the pandemic. The following is a brief summary of legislative changes from the 2020 session or
previous legislative sessions potentially impacting Minnesota cities.
Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security (CARES) Act – The CARES Act provided federal
economic relief to protect the American people from the public health and economic impacts of
COVID-19. Minnesota received approximately $2.2 billion in funding under the CARES Act.
When the first legislative special session ended without an agreement on the distribution of approximately
$841.5 million of federal Coronavirus Relief Fund (CRF) funding earmarked for Minnesota local
governments, the Governor distributed the funds by executive order based on the framework of the
legislative agreement debated during the first special session. This resulted in $350.4 million being
distributed directly to Minnesota cities with populations equal to or greater than 200. The funds were
authorized for use for unbudgeted costs related to the COVID-19 pandemic, but not to replace lost
revenues. In accordance with CARES Act provisions, the CRF funding was available to cover costs that;
1) were necessary expenditures incurred due to the public health emergency related to COVID-19;
2) were not accounted for in the entity’s budget most recently approved as of March 27, 2020; and
3) were incurred during the period from March 1, 2020 through December 31, 2020 (the availability
period end date was revised by the state to November 15, 2020 for Minnesota cities).
Emergency Small Business Assistance Program – The Legislature created a program to appropriate
$60.0 million of federal CRF funding to make grants available through the Minnesota Department of
Employment and Economic Development for eligible small businesses impacted by COVID-19. Small
businesses employing up to 50 full-time employees are eligible to receive grants of up to $10,000. The
allocation is split between the metro area and greater Minnesota, with specific allocations for businesses
owned by minorities, veterans, and women. $18.0 million of the allocation is earmarked for businesses
with 6 or less employees.
Workers’ Compensation Claims – COVID-19 Presumption – The Legislature adopted several new
provisions to state unemployment statutes related to COVID-19, including a presumption that an
employee who contracts COVID-19 has an “occupational disease” arising out of, and in the course of,
employment if the employee works in one of the specified occupations and has a confirmed case of
COVID-19. Covered occupations include nurses, healthcare workers, and workers required to provide
childcare for first responders and healthcare workers under Executive Orders 20-02 and 20-19. The
COVID-19 presumption provision sunsets on May 1, 2021.
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Bonding Bill – The 2020 bonding bill provided financing for approximately $1.36 billion of projects.
Some of the more significant appropriations for local infrastructure included: $105 million in
undesignated grants for local road improvement and bridge replacement; $100 million for water
infrastructure and point source implementation grants; $25 million for state match of federal grants for
public facilities improvements, $20 million for natural resource asset preservation, $17 million for flood
control mitigation, $15 million for the Local Government Roads Wetlands Replacement Program;
$5 million for Metropolitan Council inflow and infiltration grants; and $5 million for metropolitan
regional parks and trails. The bill also included funding for a number of state initiatives, including: $300
million in trunk highway bonds for the improvement of the state trunk highway system; $145 million in
appropriation bonds to fund the infrastructure and capital needs of the Minnesota Housing Finance
Agency, Minnesota Pollution Control Agency, and Minnesota Public Television; $30 million for state
agency projects aimed at promoting racial equity, $29.5 million for the state Emergency Operations
Center; and $16 million for the Minnesota Housing Finance Agency.
The bill provides authority for eligible local governments to own and operate childcare facilities, and
permits local governments to enter into management agreements with licensed childcare providers to
operate in publicly-owned facilities. It also makes cities, counties, school districts, and joint powers
boards located outside of the seven-county metro area eligible to apply for grants through the Greater
Minnesota Childcare Facility Capital Grant Program.
The bill also included a provision extending the equal pay certificate of compliance requirement to
contracts by any public entity, including political subdivisions, using state general obligation bond
proceeds for all or part of a capital project. Local governments will be responsible for requiring that bids
include proper certification on applicable projects, which applies to projects for goods or services valued
at more than $1 million utilizing appropriated bond proceeds on or after January 1, 2022.
Elections – A number of measures were passed to help ensure the safe and secure conduct of the 2020
state primary and general elections, including; allowing for the processing of absentee ballots to begin
14 days prior to the date of the election, extending the period during which absentee ballots could be
processed for 2 days following the election, accepting electronic filings for affidavits of candidacy or
nominating petitions, and specifying that municipalities were to use schools as polling places only when
no other public or private location was reasonably available. Funds from the federal Help America Vote
Act were made available for modernizing, securing, and improving election facilities, a portion of which
was made available for grants to local governments to fund activities prescribed by this program.
Minors Operating Lawn Care Equipment – Effective May 28, 2020, Minnesota Statutes lowered the
employment age for operating lawn care equipment to age 16. Minors aged 16 and 17 must be trained in
the safe operation of the equipment and wear appropriate personal protective equipment when operating
the lawn care equipment. The exception under this statute applies only to minors directly employed by
golf courses, resorts, rental property owners, or municipalities to perform lawn care on golf courses,
resort grounds, rental property, or municipal grounds.
Open Meeting Law Exception – The interactive television provision of the Minnesota Open Meeting
Law was amended to allow for participation in meetings by interactive electronic means, such as Skype or
Zoom, without requiring that an elected official be advised to do so by a healthcare professional for
personal or family medical reasons. This allowance is available only when a national security or
peacetime emergency has been declared and may be used up to 60 days after the emergency declaration
has been lifted. Whenever public meetings are held via interactive electronic means of this type, votes
must be conducted by roll call and be recorded in the minutes.
Expanded Authority for Electronic Signatures During COVID-19 – Effective May 17, 2020, cities
are allowed to accept certain documents, signatures, or filings electronically, by mail, or facsimile during
the COVID-19 pandemic, including; planning and zoning applications and permits; land use documents;
documents requiring the signature of licensed architects, engineers, land surveyors, geoscientists, or
interior designers; applications for birth or death certificates; or recording notary commissions. This
accommodation expires January 16, 2021, or 60 days following the termination of the peacetime public
health emergency.
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Solid Waste Recycling Exemption – The requirement that not more than 15 percent of mixed municipal
solid waste received by recycling or composting facilities be disposed of, rather than recycled or
composted, is suspended as long as the need for the exception is triggered by operational changes
implemented to address the COVID-19 pandemic.
Pension Changes – Effective January 1, 2021, the maximum lump-sum pension amount for volunteer
firefighters is increased from $10,000 to $15,000 per year of service. Municipalities are permitted to split
state fire aid received between its career firefighters and its affiliated volunteer firefighters, but only if the
amount allocated to the career firefighters is approved by the membership of the volunteer firefighter
relief association. Any aid allocated to career firefighters must be used to pay the Public Employees
Retirement Association (PERA) employer contributions on their behalf within 18 months of the transfer
or be returned to the relief association.
Police Accountability Act – The Legislature passed the Police Accountability Act, which enacted a
number of changes to laws governing police conduct, training, and oversight. Among the more significant
changes adopted were:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

•

Defined and authorized “public safety peer counseling” and “critical incident stress
management,” and classifies information shared in these settings as private data.
Established an Independent Use of Force Investigations Unit within the Bureau of Criminal
Apprehension to investigate all officer-involved deaths in the state, as well as criminal sexual
assault allegations against peace officers, effective August 1, 2020.
Authorized statutory or home rule charter cities to offer incentives to encourage a person hired as
a peace officer to be a resident of the city.
Limited the use of certain restraint methods by peace officer unless the use of deadly force is
authorized in a given situation.
Established and modified provisions related to law enforcement use of deadly force.
Defined and prohibited “warrior-style” training for peace officers.
Established a 15-member “Ensuring Police Excellence and Improving Community Relations
Advisory Council” under the Police Officer Standards and Training (POST) Board, to assist the
POST Board in maintaining policies and regulating peace officers in a manner that ensures the
protection of civil and human rights.
Established a duty for peace officers to intercede when another officer is using excessive force
and report incidents of excessive force to supervisors.
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ACCOUNTING AND AUDITING UPDATES
The following is a summary of Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) standards expected
to be implemented in the next few years. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, the GASB has delayed the
original implementation dates of these and other standards as described below.
GASB Statement No. 87, Leases
A lease is a contract that transfers control of the right to use another entity’s nonfinancial asset as
specified in the contract for a period of time in an exchange or exchange-like transaction. Examples of
nonfinancial assets include buildings, land, vehicles, and equipment. Any contract that meets this
definition should be accounted for under the leases guidance, unless specifically excluded in this
statement.
Governments enter into leases for many types of assets. Under the previous guidance, leases were
classified as either capital or operating depending on whether the lease met any of the four tests. In many
cases, the previous guidance resulted in reporting lease transactions differently than similar nonlease
financing transactions.
The goal of this statement is to better meet the information needs of users by improving accounting and
financial reporting for leases by governments. It establishes a single model for lease accounting based on
the principle that leases are financings of the right to use an underlying asset. This statement increases the
usefulness of financial statements by requiring recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for leases
that previously were classified as operating leases and recognized as inflows of resources or outflows of
resources based on the payment provisions of the contract.
Under this statement, a lessee is required to recognize a lease liability and an intangible right to use lease
asset, and a lessor is required to recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources, thereby
enhancing the relevance and consistency of information about governments’ leasing activities.
To reduce the cost of implementation, this statement includes an exception for short-term leases, defined
as a lease that, at the commencement of the lease term, has a maximum possible term under the lease
contract of 12 months (or less), including any options to extend, regardless of their probability of being
exercised. Lessees and lessors should recognize short-term lease payments as outflows of resources or
inflows of resources, respectively, based on the payment provisions of the lease contract. The
requirements of this statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2021.
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GASB Statement No. 91, Conduit Debt Obligations
The primary objectives of this statement are to provide a single method of reporting conduit debt
obligations by issuers and eliminate diversity in practice associated with (1) commitments extended by
issuers, (2) arrangements associated with conduit debt obligations, and (3) related note disclosures. This
statement achieves those objectives by clarifying the existing definition of a conduit debt obligation;
establishing that a conduit debt obligation is not a liability of the issuer; establishing standards for
accounting and financial reporting of additional commitments and voluntary commitments extended by
issuers and arrangements associated with conduit debt obligations; and improving required note
disclosures.
A conduit debt obligation is defined as a debt instrument having all of the following characteristics:
•
•
•
•
•

There are at least three parties involved: (1) an issuer, (2) a third party obligor, and (3) a debt
holder or a debt trustee.
The issuer and the third party obligor are not within the same financial reporting entity.
The debt obligation is not a parity bond of the issuer, nor is it cross-collateralized with other debt
of the issuer.
The third party obligor or its agent, not the issuer, ultimately receives the proceeds from the debt
issuance.
The third party obligor, not the issuer, is primarily obligated for the payment of all amounts
associated with the debt obligation (debt service payments).

This statement also addresses arrangements, often characterized as leases, that are associated with conduit
debt obligations. In those arrangements, capital assets are constructed or acquired with the proceeds of a
conduit debt obligation and used by third party obligors in the course of their activities.
This statement requires issuers to disclose general information about their conduit debt obligations,
organized by type of commitment, including the aggregate outstanding principal amount of the issuers’
conduit debt obligations and a description of each type of commitment. Issuers that recognize liabilities
related to supporting the debt service of conduit debt obligations also should disclose information about
the amount recognized and how the liabilities changed during the reporting period.
The requirements of this statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2021.
Earlier application is encouraged.
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GASB Statement No. 92, Omnibus 2020
The objectives of this statement are to enhance comparability in accounting and financial reporting and to
improve the consistency of authoritative literature by addressing practice issues that have been identified
during implementation and application of certain GASB Statements. This statement addresses a variety of
topics and includes specific provisions about the following:
•
•
•

•
•
•
•
•

The effective date of Statement No. 87, Leases, and Implementation Guide No. 2019-3, Leases,
for interim financial reports
Reporting of intra-entity transfers of assets between a primary government employer and a
component unit defined benefit pension plan or defined benefit other post-employment benefit
(OPEB) plan
The applicability of Statements No. 73, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions and
Related Assets That Are Not within the Scope of GASB Statement 68, and Amendments to Certain
Provisions of GASB Statements 67 and 68, as amended, and No. 74, Financial Reporting for
Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than Pension Plans, as amended, to reporting assets
accumulated for post-employment benefits
The applicability of certain requirements of Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities, to
post-employment benefit arrangements
Measurement of liabilities (and assets, if any) related to asset retirement obligations in a
government acquisition
Reporting by public entity risk pools for amounts that are recoverable from reinsurers or excess
insurers
Reference to nonrecurring fair value measurements of assets or liabilities in authoritative
literature
Terminology used to refer to derivative instruments

The requirements of this statement are effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2021. Earlier
application is encouraged.
GASB Statement No. 96, Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements
This statement provides guidance on the accounting and financial reporting for subscription-based
information technology arrangements (SBITAs) for government end users (governments). This statement
(1) defines a SBITA; (2) establishes that a SBITA results in a right-to-use subscription asset—an
intangible asset—and a corresponding subscription liability; (3) provides the capitalization criteria for
outlays other than subscription payments, including implementation costs of a SBITA; and (4) requires
note disclosures regarding a SBITA. To the extent relevant, the standards for SBITAs are based on the
standards established in Statement No. 87, Leases, as amended.
An SBITA is defined as a contract that conveys control of the right to use another party’s (an SBITA
vendor’s) information technology (IT) software, alone or in combination with tangible capital assets (the
underlying IT assets), as specified in the contract for a period of time in an exchange or exchange-like
transaction. Under this statement, a government generally should recognize a right-to-use subscription
asset—an intangible asset—and a corresponding subscription liability.
This statement provides an exception for short-term SBITAs with a maximum possible term under the
SBITA contract of 12 months, including any options to extend, regardless of their probability of being
exercised. Subscription payments for short-term SBITAs should be recognized as outflows of resources.
This statement requires a government to disclose descriptive information about its SBITAs other than
short-term SBITAs, such as the amount of the subscription asset, accumulated amortization, other
payments not included in the measurement of a subscription liability, principal and interest requirements
for the subscription liability, and other essential information.
The requirements of this statement are effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2022, and all
reporting periods thereafter.
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GASB Statement No. 97, Certain Component Unit Criteria, and Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation
Plans—an Amendment of GASB Statement No. 14 and No. 84, and a Supersession of GASB
Statement No. 32
The primary objectives of this statement are to (1) increase consistency and comparability related to the
reporting of fiduciary component units in circumstances in which a potential component unit does not
have a governing board and the primary government performs the duties that a governing board typically
would perform; (2) mitigate costs associated with the reporting of certain defined contribution pension
plans, defined contribution OPEB plans, and employee benefit plans other than pension plans or OPEB
plans (other employee benefit plans) as fiduciary component units in fiduciary fund financial statements;
and (3) enhance the relevance, consistency, and comparability of the accounting and financial reporting
for Internal Revenue Code Section 457 deferred compensation plans (Section 457 plans) that meet the
definition of a pension plan and for benefits provided through those plans.
The requirements of this statement that (1) exempt primary governments that perform the duties that a
government board typically performs from treating the absence of a governing board the same as the
appointment of a voting majority of a governing board in determining whether they are financially
accountable for defined contribution pension plans, defined contribution OPEB plans, or other employee
benefit plans, and (2) limit the applicability of the financial burden criterion in paragraph 7 of
Statement 84 to defined benefit pension plans and defined benefit OPEB plans that are administered
through trusts that meet the criteria in paragraph 3 of Statement 67 or paragraph 3 of Statement 74,
respectively, are effective immediately.
The requirements of this statement that are related to the accounting and financial reporting for
Section 457 plans are effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2021. For purposes of determining
whether a primary government is financially accountable for a potential component unit, the requirements
of this statement that provide that for all other arrangements, the absence of a governing board be treated
the same as the appointment of a voting majority of a governing board if the primary government
performs the duties that a governing board typically would perform, are effective for reporting periods
beginning after June 15, 2021. Earlier application of those requirements is encouraged and permitted by
requirement as specified within this statement.
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C E R T I F I E D PUBLIC
A C C O U N TA N T S

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the City Council and Management
City of Wayzata, Minnesota
We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Wayzata, Minnesota (the City) as of and for the year
ended December 31, 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise
the City’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated May 4, 2021.
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City’s internal control
over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control. Accordingly, we do
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control.
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination
of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
of the City’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies and, therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may
exist that have not been identified. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. We did identify one deficiency
in internal control, described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Responses as item 2020-001,
that we consider to be a significant deficiency.
(continued)
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COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City’s financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests
disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.
CITY’S RESPONSE TO FINDING
The City’s response to the finding identified in our audit is described in the accompanying Schedule of
Findings and Responses. The City’s response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.
PURPOSE OF THIS REPORT
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the City’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Minneapolis, Minnesota
May 4, 2021
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A C C O U N TA N T S

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON
MINNESOTA LEGAL COMPLIANCE

To the City Council and Management
City of Wayzata, Minnesota

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Wayzata, Minnesota (the City) as of and for the year
ended December 31, 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise
the City’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated May 4, 2021.
MINNESOTA LEGAL COMPLIANCE
In connection with our audit, nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe that the City
failed to comply with the provisions of the contracting and bidding, deposits and investments,
conflicts of interest, public indebtedness, claims and disbursements, miscellaneous provisions, and
tax increment financing sections of the Minnesota Legal Compliance Audit Guide for Cities,
promulgated by the State Auditor pursuant to Minnesota Statutes § 6.65, insofar as they relate to
accounting matters. However, our audit was not directed primarily toward obtaining knowledge of
such noncompliance. Accordingly, had we performed additional procedures, other matters may
have come to our attention regarding the City’s noncompliance with the above referenced
provisions, insofar as they relate to accounting matters.
PURPOSE OF THIS REPORT
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of compliance and the results of
that testing, and not to provide an opinion on compliance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any
other purpose.

Minneapolis, Minnesota
May 4, 2021
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CITY OF WAYZATA
Schedule of Findings and Responses
Year Ended December 31, 2020

A. SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCY IN INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
2020-001

SEGREGATION OF DUTIES
Criteria – Internal control over financial reporting.
Condition – The City of Wayzata, Minnesota (the City) has limited segregation of duties in a
number of areas, including controls over cash disbursements, investments, and payroll.
Context – This is a current year and prior year finding.
Cause – The limited segregation of duties is primarily caused by the limited size of the City’s
business office staff.
Effect – One important element of internal accounting controls is an adequate segregation of
duties such that no one individual has responsibility to execute a transaction, have physical
access to the related assets, and have responsibility or authority to record the transaction. A
lack of segregation of duties subjects the City to a higher risk that errors or fraud could occur
and not be detected in a timely manner in the normal course of business.
Recommendation – We recommend that the City continue to segregate duties as best it can
within the limits of what it considers to be cost-beneficial.
Management Response – The City agrees with the finding. The City reviews and makes
improvements to its internal control structure on an ongoing basis, and attempts to maximize
the segregation of duties in all areas within the limits of the staff available. However, the City
does not consider it cost-beneficial at this time to increase the size of its staff in order to
further segregate accounting functions.
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C E R T I F I E D PUBLIC
A C C O U N TA N T S

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the City Council and Management
City of Wayzata, Minnesota

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the City of Wayzata, Minnesota (the City) as of and for the year ended December 31, 2020,
and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents.
MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the City’s preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinions.
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OPINIONS
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to on the previous page present fairly, in all material
respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the
discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the
City as of December 31, 2020, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash
flows thereof, and the budgetary comparison for the General Fund for the year then ended, in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
OTHER MATTERS
Required Supplementary Information
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis and the required supplementary information (RSI), as listed in the table of contents,
be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be
an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the RSI in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of
inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information
for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or
provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.
Other Information
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City’s basic financial statements. The introductory section and supplemental information, as
listed in the table of contents, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not required parts of
the basic financial statements.
The supplemental information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to
the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated,
in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.
The introductory section has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on it.
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OTHER REPORTING REQUIRED BY GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated May 4, 2021 on
our consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements, and other matters. The purpose of
that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the City’s internal control
over financial reporting and compliance.

Minneapolis, Minnesota
May 4, 2021
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CITY OF WAYZATA
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Year Ended December 31, 2020

As management of the City of Wayzata, Minnesota (the City) we have provided readers of the City’s
financial statements with this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City for the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2020. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in
conjunction with additional information provided in this report.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
•

The assets and deferred outflows of resources of the City (primary government) exceeded liabilities
and deferred inflows of resources by $69,912,102 (net position) at the close of the most recent fiscal
year. Of this amount, $11,608,402 (unrestricted net position) may be used to meet the government’s
ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

•

The City’s (primary government) total net position increased by $4,438,870 in 2020, including a
$4,502,240 increase in governmental activities net position and a $63,370 decrease in business-type
net position. The primary reason for the increase was $4,027,975 of contributions received for capital
improvements from special assessments and developers.

•

The City’s total bonded debt increased $2,836,751, or 14.4 percent, in 2020, due to the issuance of
$3,710,000 of General Obligation Tax Increment Bonds, Series 2020A to partially finance the
construction of the City’s Lake Effect Panoway Project, offset by scheduled bond principal payments
made during the year. The City also issued $4,100,000 of General Obligation Refunding Bonds,
Series 2020B, which were used to redeem $4,245,000 of outstanding principal from two previous
bond issues, thereby reducing the City’s future total debt service payments by $870,256 and resulting
in a present value savings of $811,648.

•

The City’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $13,987,123 as of
December 31, 2020, a decrease of $1,230,202 from last year. Of this amount, $3,278,984
(23.4 percent) is unassigned.

•

As of December 31, 2020, the total fund balances of the General Fund equaled $4,316,693, which
represents 73.0 percent of General Fund expenditures for 2020.
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OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The management’s discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City’s basic
financial statements, which are comprised of three components: 1) government-wide financial statements,
2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to basic financial statements. This report also contains other
supplementary information.
Government-Wide Financial Statements – The government-wide financial statements are designed to
provide readers with a broad overview of the City’s finances, in a manner similar to a private sector
business.
The government-wide financial statements include not only the City itself (known as the primary
government), but also the Wayzata Housing and Redevelopment Authority (HRA). The HRA is a legally
separate entity for which the City is financially accountable, which provides community redevelopment
assistance through the administration of various programs. Financial information for this component unit
is presented discretely, separate from the financial information presented for the primary government.
The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of the City’s assets, deferred outflows of
resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources, with the difference reported as net position. Over
time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position
of the City is improving or deteriorating.
The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the City’s net position changed during the
most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise
to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are
reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods
(e.g., uncollected taxes and earned, but unused personal leave time).
Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are principally
supported by property taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions
that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges
(business-type activities). The governmental activities include general government, public safety, public
works, and culture and recreation. The business-type activities of the City include water, sewer, licensing,
liquor, solid waste, and stormwater activities.

REPORTING THE CITY AS A WHOLE
The analysis of the City as a whole begins with the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of
Activities. One of the most important questions asked about the City’s finances is, “is the City as a whole
better or worse off as a result of this year’s activities?” The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of
Activities report information about the City as a whole and about its activities in a way that helps answer
this question. These statements include all assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred
inflows of resources using the accrual basis of accounting, which is similar to the accounting used by most
private sector companies. All of the current year’s revenues and expenses are taken into account regardless
of when cash is received or paid.
These statements report the City’s net position and changes in them. The City’s net position can be used as
a way of measuring the City’s financial health or financial position. Over time, increases or decreases in
the City’s net position are indicators of whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating. You will
need to consider other nonfinancial factors; however, such as changes in the City’s tax base or the condition
of the City’s infrastructure, to assess the overall health of the City.
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REPORTING THE CITY’S MOST SIGNIFICANT FUNDS
The fund financial statements provide detailed information about the most significant funds, not the City
as a whole. Some funds are required to be established by state law or by bond covenants. However, the City
Council establishes many other funds to help it control and manage money for particular purposes or to
show that it is meeting legal responsibilities for using certain taxes, grants, and other revenues. The City’s
two types of funds each use different accounting approaches.
Governmental Funds – Most of the City’s basic services are reported in governmental funds, which focus
on how money flows into and out of these funds and the balances left at year-end that are available for
spending. These funds are reported using an accounting method called modified accrual, which measures
cash and all other financial assets that can be readily converted to cash. The governmental fund financial
statements provide a detailed short-term view of the City’s general government operations and the basic
services it provides. Governmental fund information helps you determine whether there are more or less
financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance city programs. We describe the relationship
(or differences) between governmental activities (reported in the Statement of Net Position and Statement
of Activities) and governmental funds in reconciliation to each of the fund financial statements.
Proprietary Funds – When the City charges customers for the services it provides, whether to outside
customers or units of the City, these services are generally reported in the proprietary funds. These funds
are reported in the same manner that all activities are reported in the Statement of Net Position and
Statement of Activities. In fact, the City’s enterprise funds are the same as the business-type activities
reported in the government-wide financial statements, but provide more detailed and additional
information, such as cash flows, for proprietary funds.
Notes to Basic Financial Statements – The notes to basic financial statements provide additional
information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund
financial statements.
Other Information – Required supplementary information (RSI) on the pension and other
post-employment benefits plans in which city employees participate is presented following the notes to
basic financial statements. Supplemental information, consisting of combining and individual fund
financial statements and schedules and other city information, is presented immediately following the RSI.
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS
Net Position – Net position may over time serve as a useful indicator of a city’s financial position. In the
case of the City, assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows of
resources by $69,912,102 at the close of the most recent fiscal year. The City’s total net position increased
$4,438,870 from the previous year-end. The following is a summary of the City’s net position:
Governmental Activities
2020
2019
Current and other assets
Capital assets
Total assets
Deferred outflows of resources
Pension plan deferments
OPEB plan deferments
Deferred charges on refunding
Total deferred outflows
of resources
Liabilities
Other liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities
Deferred inflows of resources
Pension plan deferments
OPEB plan deferments
Total deferred inflows
of resources
Net position
Net investment in
capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total net position

Business-Type Activities
2020
2019

Total
2020

2019

$ 19,582,601
54,425,426
74,008,027

$ 19,468,825
44,962,478
64,431,303

$ 6,233,911
19,915,316
26,149,227

$ 6,619,530
20,216,273
26,835,803

$ 25,816,512
74,340,742
100,157,254

$ 26,088,355
65,178,751
91,267,106

904,897
32,623
–

1,297,330
16,209
–

200,467
16,293
44,202

215,870
10,599
48,221

1,105,364
48,916
44,202

1,513,200
26,808
48,221

937,520

1,313,539

260,962

274,690

1,198,482

1,588,229

2,108,817
19,489,743
21,598,560

463,919
15,635,404
16,099,323

184,024
8,402,748
8,586,772

202,009
8,823,823
9,025,832

2,292,841
27,892,491
30,185,332

665,928
24,459,227
25,125,155

1,043,293
92,345

1,927,283
9,127

76,538
46,126

314,570
5,968

1,119,831
138,471

2,241,853
15,095

1,135,638

1,936,410

122,664

320,538

1,258,302

2,256,948

38,314,544
5,141,057
8,755,748

32,116,987
5,028,305
10,563,817

13,540,628
1,307,471
2,852,654

13,435,091
1,420,296
2,908,736

51,855,172
6,448,528
11,608,402

45,552,078
6,448,601
13,472,553

$ 52,211,349

$ 47,709,109

$ 17,700,753

$ 17,764,123

$ 69,912,102

$ 65,473,232

A large portion of the City’s net position (74.2 percent) reflects its investment in capital assets (land,
buildings, and machinery and equipment) less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still
outstanding. The City uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are
not available for future spending. Although the City’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of
related debt, the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital
assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. A portion (9.2 percent) of the City’s net
position represents resources that are subject to external restrictions on how they may be used. The
remainder of the City’s net position (16.6 percent) is unrestricted.
At the end of the current fiscal year, the City is able to report positive balances in all categories of net
position, both for the City as a whole, as well as for its separate governmental and business-type activities.
This was also the case at the previous year-end.
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The following is a summary of the City’s changes in net position:
Governmental Activities
2020
2019
Revenues
Program revenues
Charges for services
Operating grants and
contributions
Capital grants and
contributions
General revenues
Property taxes
Franchise fees
Unrestricted grants and
contributions
Other general revenues
Unrestricted investment
earnings
Gain on sale of capital assets
Total revenues
Expenses
General government
Public safety
Public works
Culture and recreation
Interest on long-term debt
Water
Sewer
Licensing
Liquor
Solid waste
Stormwater
Total expenses
Changes in net position
before transfers
Transfers
Change in net position
Net position – beginning
Net position – ending

Business-Type Activities
2020
2019

Total
2020

2019

$ 2,600,549

$ 2,413,593

$ 8,631,060

$ 9,653,543

$ 11,231,609

$ 12,067,136

354,627

344,861

21,359

137,337

375,986

482,198

3,851,771

2,467,596

176,204

284,306

4,027,975

2,751,902

5,025,302
158,017

4,757,020
160,932

–
–

–
–

5,025,302
158,017

4,757,020
160,932

382,029
9,865

77,508
14,787

–
–

–
–

382,029
9,865

77,508
14,787

265,605
77,940
12,725,705

495,629
–
10,731,926

101,734
–
8,930,357

180,310
–
10,255,496

367,339
77,940
21,656,062

675,939
–
20,987,422

2,479,040
3,095,691
1,634,301
1,260,678
517,009
–
–
–
–
–
–
8,986,719

2,279,745
2,724,722
2,344,835
1,405,782
366,146
–
–
–
–
–
–
9,121,230

–
–
–
–
–
797,198
1,006,198
497,307
5,300,652
374,985
254,133
8,230,473

–
–
–
–
–
917,761
1,223,890
477,605
6,308,017
356,087
231,015
9,514,375

2,479,040
3,095,691
1,634,301
1,260,678
517,009
797,198
1,006,198
497,307
5,300,652
374,985
254,133
17,217,192

2,279,745
2,724,722
2,344,835
1,405,782
366,146
917,761
1,223,890
477,605
6,308,017
356,087
231,015
18,635,605

3,738,986

1,610,696

699,884

741,121

4,438,870

2,351,817

763,254

678,012

(763,254)

(678,012)

–

–

4,502,240

2,288,708

(63,370)

63,109

4,438,870

2,351,817

47,709,109

45,420,401

17,764,123

17,701,014

65,473,232

63,121,415

$ 52,211,349

$ 47,709,109

$ 17,700,753

$ 17,764,123

$ 69,912,102

$ 65,473,232

Governmental activities increased the City’s net position by $4,502,240 in 2020, while business-type
activities decreased net position by $63,370.
Charges for services were $835,527 lower than last year, due to Liquor Fund sales decreasing by
$1,251,540, as a result of COVID-19 restrictions on the bar and grill. Capital grants and contributions in
2020 were $1,276,073 higher than last year, mainly due to contributions from the City’s HRA and others
for the Lake Effect Panoway Project. Unrestricted investment earnings were $308,600 lower than last year,
due to a decline in market conditions and available interest rates.
Expenses were $1,418,413 (7.6 percent) lower than last year, with the majority of the decrease in
business-type activities, primarily due to COVID-19 restrictions on bar and grill operations.
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Governmental Activities – The following graphs further depict the revenue and expenses related to the
City’s governmental activities for 2020:
Expenses and Program Revenue – Governmental Activities
$3,250,000
$3,000,000
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Interest on
Long-Term
Debt

Program Revenues

Revenue by Source – Governmental Activities

Governmental activities increased the City’s net position by $4,502,240 in 2020, compared to an increase
of $2,288,708 in 2019. The City received $3,851,771 of capital grants and contributions in 2020, mainly
related to financing the Panoway on Wayzata Bay Project.
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Business-Type Activities – The following graphs further depict the revenue and expenses related to the
City’s business-type activities for 2020:
Expenses and Program Revenue – Governmental Activities
$5,500,000
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Revenue by Source – Business-Type Activities

The City’s business-type net position decreased $63,370 during 2020, as compared to an increase of
$63,109 in 2019. Almost all of the City’s business-type activities generated program revenue in excess of
expenses in 2020. Transfers of $763,254 were made to the governmental activities during the year to support
general city operations and various capital improvement plan initiatives.
HRA Component Unit – At the end of the fiscal year, the HRA reported total net position of $1,381,848,
a decrease of $795,274 from the previous year, which is primarily the result of increased contributions of
tax increment revenue from the Bay Center Tax Increment District to the City for debt service and funding
of the Panoway on Wayzata Bay Project.
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY’S FUNDS
Governmental Funds – At the end of the fiscal year, the City’s governmental funds reported combined
ending fund balances of $13,987,123, a decrease of $1,230,202 in comparison with the prior year. The use
of $1,757,102 of fund balance is restricted by various externally imposed constraints. The use of $127,334
of fund balance is internally committed for particular purposes. An additional $8,069,035 is assigned for
internally imposed spending constraints. Fund balance of $754,668 represents assets, such as long-term
receivables, that are not considered to be in spendable form. Finally, the remaining $3,278,984 of fund
balance is unassigned and may be used for any approved public purpose.
General Fund – The total fund balances of the General Fund increased by $242,238 to $4,316,693 at
December 31, 2020, as compared to a break-even budget. Total fund balances equal 73.0 percent of 2020
General Fund expenditures, which puts the General Fund in an excellent financial position.
Debt Service Fund – Fund balances increased by $439,193 in 2020, as current year collections of taxes
and special assessments exceeded debt service requirements. The City also retired $1,730,000 of
outstanding improvement bonds during the year, using the proceeds of refunding bonds issued in 2020 with
a lower interest rate.
Lakefront Improvement Capital Project Fund – Fund balances decreased by $2,456,011 in 2020, as the
Panoway on Wayzata Bay initiative improvement expenditures exceeded the grants, contributions, and
bond proceeds received during the year to finance the project.
Developer Financed Capital Project Fund – This fund is used to account for deposits received from
developers constructing projects within the City. Any deposits not used to pay for City services are payable
back to the developers, and so this fund does not report any fund balance. The City took in $234,517 to
reimburse development-related services in 2020.
Nonmajor Funds – Total fund balances of the City’s other “nonmajor” governmental funds increased
$544,378, ending the year at $7,833,141.
General Fund Budgetary Highlights
The City Council adopted a balanced budget for the General Fund, which was not amended during the year.
Both revenue and expenditures provided positive budget variances. Some of the more significant variances
are summarized as follows:
Revenue was more than anticipated by $558,506:
•
•
•

Licenses and permits were $107,247 higher than the City’s conservative budget.
Intergovernmental revenue was $398,465 over budget, mainly due to $355,531 in federal funding
for COVID-19-related costs.
Charges for services exceeded budget by $106,365, due to increased development activity.

Expenditures were $194,255 under budget in total:
•
•

Public works expenditures were $71,491 less than anticipated, mainly in salaries and supplies for
street maintenance.
Culture and recreation expenditures were $100,082 under budget, due in part to COVID-19
restrictions on recreation programs.

Positive variances in both revenues and expenditures enabled the City to make unbudgeted transfers of
$404,311 to the Lakefront Improvement Capital Projects Fund for the City’s Panoway on Wayzata Bay
initiative.
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Capital Assets – The City’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities
amounted to $74,240,742 (net of accumulated depreciation) at year-end. The investment in capital assets
includes: land, buildings, park facilities, equipment, streets, storm sewers, and water and sanitary sewer
lines. The total increase in the City’s net capital assets for the current fiscal year was $9,061,991
(a 20.8 percent increase for governmental activities and a 1.5 percent decrease for business-type activities).
•
•

Major governmental activity additions included $9,064,940 of the City’s Panoway on Wayzata
Bay improvements, $461,246 for City Hall remodeling, and various other purchases.
Business-type activity additions consisted of a sanitary sewer rehabilitation project and
completion of a water tower rehabilitation project started in the prior year.
Governmental Activities
2020
2019

Business-Type Activities
2020
2019

Land
Construction in progress
Buildings
Infrastructure
Machinery and equipment
Land improvements

$ 7,663,994
1,315,585
21,592,453
21,077,681
2,548,612
227,101

$ 7,563,994
2,589,728
21,690,802
10,608,728
2,267,910
241,316

$

973,048
788,867
7,081,355
10,725,593
346,453
–

Total capital assets

$ 54,425,426

$ 44,962,478

$ 19,915,316

Total
2020

2019

973,048
1,331,936
7,271,925
10,213,417
425,947
–

$ 8,637,042
2,104,452
28,673,808
31,803,274
2,895,065
227,101

$ 8,537,042
3,921,664
28,962,727
20,822,145
2,693,857
241,316

$ 20,216,273

$ 74,340,742

$ 65,178,751

$

Additional details of the City’s capital asset activity for the year can be found in Note 4 of the notes to basic
financial statements.
Long-Term Debt – The City has $22.5 million in outstanding bonded debt at December 31, 2020,
compared to $19.6 million last year.
•
•

The City sold two bond issues during the year, $3,710,000 of General Obligation Tax Increment
Bonds, Series 2020A, and $4,100,000 of General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2020B.
The City made scheduled debt service principal payments of $1,040,000 on outstanding bonds,
in addition to redeeming $4,245,000 of outstanding principal through refundings.
Governmental Activities
2020
2019

G.O. bonds
G.O. improvement bonds
G.O. tax increment bonds
G.O. revenue bonds
Unamortized bond premium
Total

$

680,000
3,630,000
11,170,000
–
630,882

$ 16,110,882

$

895,000
3,860,000
7,725,000
–
387,637

$ 12,867,637

Business-Type Activities
2020
2019
$

–
1,290,000
–
4,835,000
249,688

$ 6,374,688

$

–
1,400,000
–
5,200,000
181,182

$ 6,781,182

Total
2020
$

680,000
4,920,000
11,170,000
4,835,000
880,570

$ 22,485,570

2019
$

895,000
5,260,000
7,725,000
5,200,000
568,819

$ 19,648,819

Additional information on the City’s long-term liabilities can be found in Note 6 of the notes to basic
financial statements.
In accordance with Minnesota Statutes, the City may not incur or be subject to net debt in excess of
3 percent of the estimated market value of taxable property within the City. Net debt is payable solely from
ad valorem taxes and, therefore, excludes debt financed partially or entirely by special assessments,
enterprise fund revenues, or tax increments. The City’s estimated market value of taxable property in 2020
was $2,221,199,306. The City’s legal debt limit was $66,635,979 and at year-end, $680,000 of the City’s
debt was applicable to the limit.
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ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGET
The City’s elected and appointed officials considered many factors when they developed the 2021 budget
and tax levy and when they set the appropriate fees that will be charged for business-type activities. These
factors include:
•

Preliminary market values for the 2021 tax year continue to be strong and improving over the
prior year despite economic impacts of the COVID-19 global pandemic. Residential valuations
have increased approximately 3.7 percent over 2020. The overall market value increased
2.7 percent over 2020, due to the combination of new development and increase in values.

•

The City will evaluate and continue to enhance the planning for capital-related items. This
includes a more extensive review of anticipated projects and a complete matching of resources to
costs.

•

The City continues to evaluate the impact of COVID-19 on both revenues and expenditures.
Therefore, the 2021 budget reflects decreased revenues in some categories, such as licenses and
permits and increased expenses in contingencies.

•

The City was successful in securing $4 million in state bonding funds for additional phases of the
Panoway on Wayzata Bay Project, which includes the construction of a boardwalk, lakefront
restoration, and two small lakefront parks that bookend the boardwalk. This is an approximately
$10 million project that would be primarily funded through a conservancy (private funds) and
state bonding funds.

•

The City established a new Tax Increment Financing district on the western half of Lake Street in
2018. The new district is helping to stimulate redevelopment, fund private/public parking
facilities, and fund eligible infrastructure improvement related to the Panoway on Wayzata Bay,
Phase I Project. There are 65 residential units and 100,000 square feet of office space that have
either been completed or are under construction.

All of these factors were considered in preparing the City’s budget for the 2021 fiscal year.
The COVID-19 pandemic had a significant impact on city operations in 2020, causing volatility in the
economy and financial markets, presenting numerous operational challenges, and creating additional
personal and supply costs. Significant uncertainty remains about the breadth and duration of the pandemic,
but it is expected to continue to impact city operations through the 2021 fiscal year and beyond. At this
time, the City is unable to determine what effect this may have on its future financial condition and
operations.

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION
This report is designed to provide a general overview of the City’s finances for all those interested in the
government’s finances. If you have any questions about this report or need additional information, contact
the City’s Finance Department at 600 Rice Street, Wayzata, Minnesota 55391; or (952) 473-0234.
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CITY OF WAYZATA
Statement of Net Position
December 31, 2020

Primary Government

Assets
Cash and investments
Receivables
Interest
Taxes and tax increments
Accounts
Notes
Special assessments
Internal balances
Due from component unit
Due from other governmental units
Inventories
Capital assets
Not being depreciated
Depreciated, net of accumulated depreciation
Total assets

Governmental
Activities

Business-Type
Activities

$ 14,287,784

$

48,762
170,767
39,509
–
3,545,466
11,500
814,566
664,247
–

Liabilities
Accounts payable
Due to other governments
Accrued salaries and wages
Accrued interest payable
Due to primary government
Deposits payable
Net pension liability
Total OPEB liability
Bonds, premium and discounts, and compensated absences payable
Due within one year
Due in more than one year
Total liabilities
Deferred inflows of resources
Pension plan deferments
OPEB plan deferments
Total deferred inflows of resources
Net position
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for
Debt service
Economic development
Parks and trails
Public safety police expenses
Unrestricted
Total net position
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, and net position
See notes to basic financial statements

$ 18,956,296

653
–
222,423
–
719,189
(11,500)
39,165
20,843
574,626

$

1,089,026

49,415
170,767
261,932
–
4,264,655
–
853,731
685,090
574,626

9,818
32,641
–
19,250
–
–
–
–
–

8,979,579
45,445,847
74,008,027

1,761,915
18,153,401
26,149,227

10,741,494
63,599,248
100,157,254

2,092,900
–
3,243,635

904,897
32,623
–
937,520

200,467
16,293
44,202
260,962

1,105,364
48,916
44,202
1,198,482

–
–
–
–

$ 74,945,547

$ 26,410,189

$ 101,355,736

$

3,243,635

$

$

$

$

1,001,623
1,890
–
3,840
853,731
703
–
–

Deferred outflows of resources
Pension plan deferments
OPEB plan deferments
Deferred charges on refunding
Total deferred outflows of resources
Total assets and deferred outflows of resources

4,668,512

Total

Component Unit
Housing and
Redevelopment
Authority

488,797
78,450
209,470
161,511
–
1,170,589
2,759,207
228,227

20,822
55,521
61,006
15,883
–
30,792
1,788,282
113,992

509,619
133,971
270,476
177,394
–
1,201,381
4,547,489
342,219

1,047,654
15,454,655
21,598,560

511,250
5,989,224
8,586,772

1,558,904
21,443,879
30,185,332

–
–
1,861,787

1,043,293
92,345
1,135,638

76,538
46,126
122,664

1,119,831
138,471
1,258,302

–
–
–

38,314,544

13,540,628

51,855,172

2,092,900

4,517,682
–
605,186
18,189
8,755,748
52,211,349

1,307,471
–
–
–
2,852,654
17,700,753

5,825,153
–
605,186
18,189
11,608,402
69,912,102

–
62,588
–
–
(773,640)
1,381,848

$ 74,945,547

$ 26,410,189

$ 101,355,736

$

3,243,635
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CITY OF WAYZATA
Statement of Activities
Year Ended December 31, 2020

Functions/Programs
Primary government
Governmental activities
General government
Public safety
Public works
Culture and recreation
Interest on long-term debt
Total governmental activities
Business-type activities
Water
Sewer
Licensing
Liquor
Solid Waste
Stormwater
Total business-type activities
Total primary government
Component unit
Housing and Redevelopment Authority

Charges for
Services

Expenses

$

Program Revenues
Operating
Grants and
Contributions

2,479,040
3,095,691
1,634,301
1,260,678
517,009
8,986,719

$

775,899
914,727
531,124
378,799
–
2,600,549

$

20,716
288,911
45,000
–
–
354,627

Capital
Grants and
Contributions

$

797,198
1,006,198
497,307
5,300,652
374,985
254,133
8,230,473

900,956
1,239,184
486,862
5,316,293
361,003
326,762
8,631,060

$ 17,217,192

$ 11,231,609

$

375,986

$

4,027,975

$

$

–

$

100,000

$

–

4,403,372

474
476
763
2,898
16,638
110
21,359

–
–
1,387,541
2,464,230
–
3,851,771

102,100
70,604
–
–
–
3,500
176,204

General revenues
Property taxes, levied for general purposes
Property taxes, levied for debt service
Tax increment
Franchise fees
Grants and contributions not restricted
to specific programs
Other general revenues
Unrestricted investment earnings
Gain on disposal of capital assets
Transfers
Total general revenues and transfers
Change in net position
Net position – beginning
Net position – ending

See notes to basic financial statements
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Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Position
Primary Government
Component Unit
Housing and
Governmental
Business-Type
Redevelopment
Activities
Activities
Total
Authority

$

(1,682,425)
(1,892,053)
329,364
1,582,351
(517,009)
(2,179,772)

–
–
–
–
–
–
–
(2,179,772)

$

–
–
–
–
–
–

206,332
304,066
(9,682)
18,539
2,656
76,239
598,150
598,150

$

(1,682,425)
(1,892,053)
329,364
1,582,351
(517,009)
(2,179,772)

$

–
–
–
–
–
–

206,332
304,066
(9,682)
18,539
2,656
76,239
598,150

–
–
–
–
–
–
–

(1,581,622)

–

–

–

–

4,770,564
254,738
–
158,017

–
–
–
–

4,770,564
254,738
–
158,017

–
–
3,479,166
–
–
–
28,932
–
–
3,508,098

382,029
9,865
265,605
77,940
763,254
6,682,012

–
–
101,734
–
(763,254)
(661,520)

382,029
9,865
367,339
77,940
–
6,020,492

4,502,240

(63,370)

4,438,870

47,709,109

17,764,123

65,473,232

$ 52,211,349

$ 17,700,753

$ 69,912,102

(4,303,372)

(795,274)
2,177,122
$

1,381,848
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CITY OF WAYZATA
Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
December 31, 2020

Assets
Cash and investments
Receivables
Interest
Taxes
Accounts
Special assessments
Due from component unit
Due from other governments
Advances to other funds
Total assets
Liabilities
Accounts and contracts payable
Due to other governments
Accrued salaries payable
Deposits payable
Total liabilities
Deferred inflows of resources
Unavailable revenue
Property taxes
Special assessments
Total deferred inflows
of resources
Fund balances
Nonspendable
Restricted
Committed
Assigned
Unassigned
Total fund balances
Total liabilities, deferred
inflows of resources,
and fund balances

See notes to basic financial statements

101

300’s

General

Debt
Service

$ 3,770,875

$ 1,137,904

47,763
170,767
21,583
–
754,668
14,247
–

802
Developer
Financed
Capital Projects

Nonmajor
Governmental
Funds

Total
Governmental
Funds

452,849

$ 1,139,798

$ 7,786,358

$ 14,287,784

–
–
–
3,545,466
–
–
–

–
–
–
–
–
650,000
–

–
–
–
–
–
–
–

999
–
17,926
–
59,898
–
11,500

48,762
170,767
39,509
3,545,466
814,566
664,247
11,500

$ 4,779,903

$ 4,683,370

$ 1,102,849

$ 1,139,798

$ 7,876,681

$ 19,582,601

$

$

$

$

$

$

44,927
72,399
209,470
33,708

233
Lakefront
Improvement
Capital Projects

–
4,177
–
–

$

399,287
–
–
–

2,927
–
–
1,136,871

41,656
1,874
–
10

488,797
78,450
209,470
1,170,589

360,504

4,177

399,287

1,139,798

43,540

1,947,306

102,706
–

–
3,545,466

–
–

–
–

–
–

102,706
3,545,466

102,706

3,545,466

–

–

–

3,648,172

754,668
–
–
283,041
3,278,984

–
1,133,727
–
–
–

–
–
–
703,562
–

–
–
–
–
–

–
623,375
127,334
7,082,432
–

754,668
1,757,102
127,334
8,069,035
3,278,984

4,316,693

1,133,727

703,562

–

7,833,141

13,987,123

$ 4,779,903

$ 4,683,370

$ 1,102,849

$ 1,139,798

$ 7,876,681

$ 19,582,601
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CITY OF WAYZATA
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet to the
Statement of Net Position
Governmental Funds
December 31, 2020

Total fund balances – governmental funds

$

13,987,123

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position are different because:
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, therefore, are not
reported as assets in governmental funds.
Cost of capital assets
Less accumulated depreciation

69,607,489
(15,182,063)

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the current period and,
therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds.
Compensated absences payable
Net pension liability
Total OPEB liability
Bonds principal payable
Unamortized bond premiums and discounts
Accrued interest payable

(391,427)
(2,759,207)
(228,227)
(15,480,000)
(630,882)
(161,511)

Due to availability, certain revenues are not recognized under the governmental fund statements
until received; however, under full accrual in the government-wide Statement of Activities,
revenues are recorded when earned regardless of when received.
Delinquent property taxes
Delinquent and deferred special assessments

102,706
3,545,466

Governmental funds do not report certain long-term amounts related to pensions that are
included in governmental activities net position.
Deferred outflows of resources – pension plan deferments
Deferred inflows of resources – pension plan deferments
Deferred outflows of resources – OPEB plan deferments
Deferred inflows of resources – OPEB plan deferments

904,897
(1,043,293)
32,623
(92,345)

Total net position – governmental activities

See notes to basic financial statements

$

52,211,349
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CITY OF WAYZATA
Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Governmental Funds
Year Ended December 31, 2020

Revenue
Taxes
Property taxes
Franchise fees
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines and forfeitures
Special assessments
Investment earnings
Miscellaneous
Contributions and donations
Refunds and reimbursements
Other

101

300’s

General

Debt
Service

$ 4,483,073
86,086
724,557
629,065
924,715
56,402
–
57,678

$

233
Lakefront
Improvement
Capital Project

254,738
–
–
496,348
–
–
488,356
12,006

$

–
–
–
1,071,949
–
–
–
54,442

802
Developer
Financed
Capital Project

$

–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–

Nonmajor
Governmental
Funds

Total
Governmental
Funds

$

222,789
71,931
–
2,175
590,664
–
1,165
141,479

$ 4,960,600
158,017
724,557
2,199,537
1,515,379
56,402
489,521
265,605

–
–
16,553

–
–
146,493

1,290,412
–
100,060

–
234,517
–

535,017
73,479
–

1,825,429
307,996
263,106

6,978,129

1,397,941

2,516,863

234,517

1,638,699

12,766,149

1,580,687
2,730,069
722,549
579,740
294,676

–
–
–
–
–

–
–
–
397,020
–

–
–
234,517
–
–

75,081
31,432
–
110,495
8,535

1,655,768
2,761,501
957,066
1,087,255
303,211

269
1,898
–
–

–
–
–
–

–
–
–
9,031,355

–
–
–
–

541,642
106,568
1,024,384
89,730

541,911
108,466
1,024,384
9,121,085

–
–

630,000
430,274

–
113,357

–
–

–
–

630,000
543,631

Total expenditures

5,909,888

1,060,274

9,541,732

234,517

1,987,867

18,734,278

Excess (deficiency) of
revenue over expenditures

1,068,241

337,667

Total revenue
Expenditures
Current
General government
Public safety
Public works
Culture and recreation
Miscellaneous
Capital outlay
General government
Public safety
Public works
Culture and recreation
Debt service
Principal
Interest and fiscal charges

Other financing sources (uses)
Sale of capital assets
Insurance recovery
Bonds issued
Refunding bonds issued
Premiums on bonds issued
Paid to refunded bond escrow
Transfers in
Transfers (out)
Total other financing
sources (uses)
Net change in fund balances
Fund balances
Beginning of year
End of year

See notes to basic financial statements

14,940
9,865
–
–
–
–
308,983
(1,159,791)

–
–
63,125
1,650,000
118,401
(1,730,000)
–
–

(7,024,869)

–

(349,168)

(5,968,129)

–
–
3,646,875
–
201,467
–
834,499
(113,983)

–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–
–
–
949,546
(56,000)

14,940
9,865
3,710,000
1,650,000
319,868
(1,730,000)
2,093,028
(1,329,774)

(826,003)

101,526

4,568,858

–

893,546

4,737,927

242,238

439,193

(2,456,011)

–

544,378

(1,230,202)

4,074,455

694,534

3,159,573

–

7,288,763

15,217,325

$ 4,316,693

$ 1,133,727

–

$ 7,833,141

$ 13,987,123

$

703,562

$
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CITY OF WAYZATA
Reconciliation of the Statement of
Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
to the Statement of Activities
Governmental Funds
Year Ended December 31, 2020

Total net change in fund balances – governmental funds

$

(1,230,202)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are different because:
Capital outlays are reported in governmental funds as expenditures. However, in the Statement
of Activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over the estimated useful lives as depreciation
expense.
Capital outlays
Capital asset contributions
Depreciation expense

11,504,844
100,000
(2,141,896)

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources to governmental funds,
while the repayment of long-term debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental
funds. Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net position. Other long-term adjustments
are also made between the governmental funds and the Statement of Activities for debt
premiums, compensated absences, pension liabilities, and OPEB obligations.
Principal payments for bonds
Debt premiums
Compensated absences
Net pension liability
Total OPEB liability

2,360,000
76,623
(77,228)
(559,354)
25,488

Bond issuance proceeds and premiums are reported as other financing sources in the
governmental funds, but increase long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net Position.

(5,679,868)

Interest on long-term debt in the Statement of Activities differs from the amount reported in the
governmental funds because interest is recognized as an expenditure in the funds when it is due,
and thus requires the use of current financial resources. In the Statement of Activities, however,
interest expense is recognized as the interest accrues, regardless of when it is due.

(50,001)

Governmental funds do not report additions or deletions to certain long-term amounts related to
pensions that are included in the change in governmental activities net position.
Deferred outflows of resources – pension plan deferments
Deferred inflows of resources – pension plan deferments
Deferred outflows of resources – OPEB plan deferments
Deferred inflows of resources – OPEB plan deferments

(392,433)
883,990
16,414
(83,218)

Certain revenues (including delinquent taxes and special assessments) are included in the change
in net position, but are excluded from the change in fund balances until they are available to
liquidate liabilities of the current period.
Delinquent property taxes
Delinquent and deferred special assessments

64,702
(315,621)

Change in net position – governmental activities

See notes to basic financial statements

$

4,502,240
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CITY OF WAYZATA
Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
General Fund – Budget and Actual
Year Ended December 31, 2020

Original
Budget
Revenues
Taxes
Property taxes
Franchise fees
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines and forfeitures
Investment earnings
Miscellaneous

$

Total revenues
Expenditures
Current
General government
Public safety
Public works
Culture and recreation
Miscellaneous
Capital outlay
General government
Public safety
Total expenditures
Excess of revenue over
expenditures
Other financing sources (uses)
Sale of capital assets
Insurance recovery
Transfers in
Transfers (out)
Total other financing
sources (uses)
Net change in fund balances

$

Final Budget

4,544,363
85,000
617,310
230,600
818,350
91,000
28,000
5,000

$

4,544,363
85,000
617,310
230,600
818,350
91,000
28,000
5,000

Actual

$

$

(61,290)
1,086
107,247
398,465
106,365
(34,598)
29,678
11,553

6,419,623

6,419,623

6,978,129

558,506

1,607,693
2,740,088
794,040
679,822
277,000

1,607,693
2,740,088
794,040
679,822
277,000

1,580,687
2,730,069
722,549
579,740
294,676

(27,006)
(10,019)
(71,491)
(100,082)
17,676

3,000
2,500

3,000
2,500

269
1,898

(2,731)
(602)

6,104,143

6,104,143

5,909,888

(194,255)

315,480

315,480

1,068,241

752,761

–
–
440,000
(755,480)

–
–
440,000
(755,480)

14,940
9,865
308,983
(1,159,791)

14,940
9,865
(131,017)
(404,311)

(315,480)

(315,480)

(826,003)

(510,523)

–

$

–

242,238

Fund balances
Beginning of year

$

242,238

4,074,455

End of year
See notes to basic financial statements

4,483,073
86,086
724,557
629,065
924,715
56,402
57,678
16,553

Over (Under)
Final Budget

$

4,316,693
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CITY OF WAYZATA
Statement of Net Position
Proprietary Funds
December 31, 2020

610
Water
Assets
Current assets
Cash and investments
Receivables
Accrued interest
Accounts
Special assessments
Due from other governments
Inventories
Due from component unit
Total current assets
Noncurrent assets
Special assessments
Capital assets
Land
Buildings
Infrastructure
Machinery and equipment
Construction in progress
Less accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation
Total noncurrent assets
Total assets
Deferred outflows of resources
Pension plan deferments
OPEB plan deferments
Deferred charges on refunding
Total deferred outflows
of resources
Total assets and deferred
outflows of resources

See notes to basic financial statements

$ 1,921,895

620
Sewer

$

877,208

630
Licensing

$

640
Liquor

66,324

$ 1,029,505

650
Solid Waste

670
Stormwater

$

$

274,603

Total

498,977

$ 4,668,512

653
57,068
35,297
14,889
25,016
39,165
2,093,983

–
101,745
62,842
5,954
–
–
1,047,749

–
–
–
–
–
–
66,324

–
–
–
–
549,610
–
1,579,115

–
33,093
–
–
–
–
307,696

–
30,517
–
–
–
–
529,494

653
222,423
98,139
20,843
574,626
39,165
5,624,361

319,662

301,388

–

–

–

–

621,050

3,975
6,077,906
5,021,738
194,878
682,812
(2,659,300)

8,495
30,830
4,096,311
388,886
106,055
(1,391,980)

–
–
–
–
–
–

679,550
3,439,095
110,149
846,323
–
(1,273,149)

–
–
–
–
–
–

281,028
–
5,256,801
–
–
(1,985,087)

973,048
9,547,831
14,484,999
1,430,087
788,867
(7,309,516)

9,322,009

3,238,597

–

3,801,968

–

3,552,742

19,915,316

9,641,671

3,539,985

–

3,801,968

–

3,552,742

20,536,366

11,735,654

4,587,734

66,324

5,381,083

307,696

4,082,236

26,160,727

19,976
2,054
44,202

20,070
2,054
–

32,055
4,221
–

122,251
7,401
–

1,512
137
–

4,603
426
–

200,467
16,293
44,202

66,232

22,124

36,276

129,652

1,649

5,029

260,962

$11,801,886

$ 4,609,858

102,600

$ 5,510,735

309,345

$ 4,087,265

$26,421,689

$
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CITY OF WAYZATA
Statement of Net Position (continued)
Proprietary Funds
December 31, 2020

610
Water
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Accounts payable
Due to other governments
Accrued salaries payable
Accrued interest payable
Deposits payable
Advances from other funds
Compensated absences payable
Bonds payable
Total current liabilities

$

4,034
559
6,827
8,277
3,580
–
15,370
255,000
293,647

620
Sewer

$

47
115
6,827
738
–
–
15,370
40,000
63,097

630
Licensing

$

837
696
15,624
–
–
–
17,347
–
34,504

640
Liquor

$

2,546
40,825
31,728
6,868
27,212
11,500
28,163
140,000
288,842

650
Solid Waste

$

–
13,326
–
–
–
–
–
–
13,326

670
Stormwater

$

13,358
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
13,358

Total

$

20,822
55,521
61,006
15,883
30,792
11,500
76,250
435,000
706,774

.
Noncurrent liabilities
Net pension liability
Total OPEB liability
Compensated absences payable
Unamortized bond premium
Bonds payable
Total noncurrent liabilities

178,230
14,373
13,651
133,261
3,125,000
3,464,515

179,090
14,373
13,651
5,691
255,000
467,805

286,330
29,533
6,981
–
–
322,844

1,089,956
51,778
15,253
110,736
2,310,000
3,577,723

13,449
958
–
–
–
14,407

41,227
2,977
–
–
–
44,204

1,788,282
113,992
49,536
249,688
5,690,000
7,891,498

Total liabilities

3,758,162

530,902

357,348

3,866,565

27,733

57,562

8,598,272

7,617
5,816

7,652
5,816

12,188
11,950

46,765
20,951

580
388

1,736
1,205

76,538
46,126

13,433

13,468

24,138

67,716

968

2,941

122,664

5,808,748
954,227
1,267,316

2,937,906
353,244
774,338

–
–
(278,886)

1,241,232
–
335,222

–
–
280,644

3,552,742
–
474,020

13,540,628
1,307,471
2,852,654

8,030,291

4,065,488

(278,886)

1,576,454

280,644

4,026,762

17,700,753

$11,801,886

$ 4,609,858

309,345

$ 4,087,265

$26,421,689

Deferred inflows of resources
Pension plan deferments
OPEB plan deferments
Total deferred inflows
of resources
Net position
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for debt service
Unrestricted
Total net position
Total liabilities, deferred
inflows of resources,
and fund balances

See notes to basic financial statements

$

102,600

$ 5,510,735

$
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CITY OF WAYZATA
Statement of Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
Proprietary Funds
Year Ended December 31, 2020

610
Water
Operating revenue
Sales
Charges for services
Total operating revenue

$

Cost of goods sold
Gross profit
Operating expenses
Personal services
Supplies
Professional fees
Utilities
Other services and charges
Repairs and maintenance
Depreciation
Total operating expenses
Operating income (loss)
Nonoperating income (expense)
Investment earnings
Intergovernmental
Other income
Interest and fiscal charges
Total nonoperating
income (expense)
Income (loss) before
contributions and transfers

–
900,956
900,956

$

630
Licensing

–
1,239,184
1,239,184

$

640
Liquor

–
486,862
486,862

$ 5,300,300
–
5,300,300

650
Solid Waste

$

–
361,003
361,003

670
Stormwater

$

Total

–
326,762
326,762

$ 5,300,300
3,314,767
8,615,067

–

–

–

3,064,216

–

–

3,064,216

900,956

1,239,184

486,862

2,236,084

361,003

326,762

5,550,851

271,015
36,335
35,832
66,372
31,183
32,183
225,831
698,751

272,429
26,142
37,251
510,616
27,111
5,178
118,300
997,027

479,056
3,101
1,724
–
7,517
5,909
–
497,307

1,378,914
116,507
100,552
77,244
226,147
86,195
126,508
2,112,067

19,443
–
283,072
60,331
12,139
–
–
374,985

64,781
208
59,314
–
1,135
3,405
125,290
254,133

2,485,638
182,293
517,745
714,563
305,232
132,870
595,929
4,934,270

202,205

242,157

(10,445)

124,017

(13,982)

72,629

616,581

38,371
–
474
(98,447)

15,701
–
476
(9,171)

4,171
–
763
–

23,920
–
18,891
(124,369)

5,218
16,603
35
–

14,353
–
110
–

101,734
16,603
20,749
(231,987)

(59,602)

7,006

4,934

(81,558)

21,856

14,463

(92,901)

(5,511)

42,459

7,874

87,092

523,680

–
–

3,500
(374,320)

176,204
(763,254)

(283,728)

(63,370)

142,603

249,163

102,100
(91,700)

70,604
(78,800)

–
(177,434)

–
(41,000)

153,003

240,967

(182,945)

1,459

7,874

7,877,288

3,824,521

(95,941)

1,574,995

272,770

4,310,490

17,764,123

$ 8,030,291

$ 4,065,488

(278,886)

$ 1,576,454

280,644

$ 4,026,762

$ 17,700,753

Capital contributions
Transfers (out)
Changes in net position
Net position
Beginning of year
End of year

620
Sewer

See notes to basic financial statements

$

$
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CITY OF WAYZATA
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds
Year Ended December 31, 2020

610
Water
Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts from customers and users
Other operating receipts
Receipts from (payments to) customer deposits
Payments to vendors
Payments to employees
Net cash flows from operating activities

$

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities
Increase in due from component unit
Transfers to other funds
Net cash flows from noncapital financing
activities
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities
Acquisition of capital assets
Special assessments
Connection fees
Receipt from (payment on) interfund loan
Interest paid on long-term debt
Refunding bond proceeds
Premium on refunding bonds
Principal paid on long-term debt
Net cash flows from capital and related
activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Interest received
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents – beginning
Cash and cash equivalents – ending
Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash
flows from operating activities
Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)
to net cash flows from operating activities
Other income related to operations
Depreciation
Changes in assets, liabilities, and deferred
outflows/inflows of resources
Accounts receivable, net
Special assessments receivable
Due from other governmental units
Inventories
Deferred outflows of pension resources
Deferred outflows of OPEB resources
Accounts and contracts payable
Due to other governments
Accrued salaries payable
Deposits payable
Compensated absences payable
Net pension liability
Total OPEB liability
Deferred inflows of pension resources
Deferred inflows of OPEB resources
Net cash flows from operating activities

620
Sewer

630
Licensing

962,200
474
(900)
(246,667)
(276,149)
438,958

$ 1,277,722
476
–
(606,284)
(276,773)
395,141

74,615
(91,700)

$

650
Solid Waste

670
Stormwater

$

$

486,862
763
–
(40,998)
(449,137)
(2,510)

$ 5,300,300
18,891
1,073
(3,742,265)
(1,564,501)
13,498

–
(78,800)

–
(177,434)

–
(41,000)

(17,085)

(78,800)

(177,434)

(84,078)
26,868
75,232
–
(107,100)
–
–
(250,000)

(210,894)
38,604
32,000
–
(10,149)
–
–
(40,000)

(339,078)

(190,439)

39,614

15,701

$ 8,713,698
37,352
173
(5,033,695)
(2,647,593)
1,069,935

–
–

–
(374,320)

74,615
(763,254)

(41,000)

–

(374,320)

(688,639)

–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–

–
–
–
(17,000)
(157,083)
2,450,000
112,048
(2,635,000)

–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–

–
3,500
–
–
–
–
–
–

(294,972)
68,972
107,232
(17,000)
(274,332)
2,450,000
112,048
(2,925,000)

–

(247,035)

–

3,500

(773,052)

23,920

5,218

14,353

102,977

122,409

141,603

(175,773)

(250,617)

15,872

(142,273)

(288,779)

1,799,486

735,605

242,097

1,280,122

258,731

641,250

4,957,291

$ 1,029,505

$

274,603

$

498,977

$ 4,668,512

$

$

(13,982)

$

72,629

$ 1,921,895

$

877,208

$

66,324

$

$

242,157

$

(10,445)

202,205

474
225,831

476
118,300

(4,308)
61,470
4,082
(8,847)
(296)
(682)
(31,647)
(4,268)
6,827
(900)
(7,150)
19,280
(7,106)
(21,050)
5,043

(9,864)
46,388
2,014
–
(390)
(682)
24
(10)
6,827
–
(7,150)
20,127
(7,106)
(21,013)
5,043

763
–

–
–
–
–
(1,579)
(2,020)
837
(23,584)
15,624
–
4,334
39,995
(4,921)
(32,225)
10,711

438,958

$

395,141

$

Noncash capital financing activities
Amortization of bond premiums

$

12,105

$

912

$

Amortization of deferred charge

$

4,019

$

–

Capital contributions from developers

$

102,100

$

70,604

(2,510)

124,017

361,061
16,638
–
(346,777)
(20,268)
10,654

Total

325,553
110
–
(50,704)
(60,765)
214,194

4,171

$

See notes to basic financial statements

640
Liquor

18,891
126,508

16,638
–

–
–
–
(51,802)
18,211
(2,078)
(2,572)
(17,030)
11,513
1,073
3,850
(45,560)
(31,539)
(157,938)
17,954

58
–
–
–
34
(46)
–
8,765
–
–
–
991
(473)
(1,668)
337

$

110
125,290

616,581

37,352
595,929

(1,209)
–
–
–
(577)
(186)
13,358
–
–
–
–
8,620
(773)
(4,138)
1,070

(15,323)
107,858
6,096
(60,649)
15,403
(5,694)
(20,000)
(36,127)
40,791
173
(6,116)
43,453
(51,918)
(238,032)
40,158

$

13,498

$

10,654

$

214,194

$ 1,069,935

–

$

30,525

$

–

$

–

$

43,542

$

–

$

–

$

–

$

–

$

4,019

$

–

$

–

$

–

$

3,500

$

176,204
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CITY OF WAYZATA
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
December 31, 2020

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
A. Reporting Entity
The City of Wayzata, Minnesota (the City) operates under the “Optional Plan A” form of government as
defined in Minnesota Statutes. Under this plan, the government of the City is directed by a City Council
composed of an elected Mayor and four elected City Council members. The City Council exercises
legislative authority and determines all matters of policy. The City Council appoints personnel responsible
for the proper administration of all affairs relating to the City.
As required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, these financial
statements include all funds, departments, agencies, boards, and commissions of the City (the primary
government) and any component units. The City has considered all potential units for which it is financially
accountable, and other organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the
City are such that exclusion would cause the City’s financial statements to be misleading or incomplete.
The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has set forth criteria to be considered in
determining financial accountability. These criteria include appointing a voting majority of an
organization’s governing body, and (1) the ability of the primary government to impose its will on that
organization or (2) the potential for the organization to provide specific benefits to, or impose specific
financial burdens on the primary government. The City has one component unit.
Discretely Presented Component Unit – The Wayzata Housing and Redevelopment Authority
(HRA) assists the City Council in addressing the City’s housing and redevelopment goals and
objectives in accordance with the Comprehensive Plan. It is a legally separate entity, of which the
governing body consists of a five-member Board of Commissioners approved, but not selected, by
the City Council. With the exception of the City Council approving boardmembers and the HRA’s
budget, the HRA has complete control over its own duties. However, all HRA administrative and
financial functions are performed by city staff, and the HRA is fiscally dependent upon the City. It is
these criterion that result in the HRA being reported as a discretely presented component unit. The
HRA does not prepare separate financial statements. Information on the HRA’s governmental funds
is presented as supplementary schedules elsewhere in this report.
B. Government-Wide Financial Statements
The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of
Activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary government and its
component units. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental
revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees
and charges for support. Likewise, the primary government is reported separately from certain legally
separate component units for which the primary government is financially accountable.
The Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or
segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a
specific function or segment. The City does not allocate indirect expenses. Program revenues
include: 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services,
or privileges provided by a given function or segment, and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted
to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other
items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus
and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when
a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes and special assessments
are recognized as revenues in the fiscal year for which they are certified for levy. Grants and similar items
are recognized when all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.
As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial
statements. However, charges between the City’s enterprise funds and other functions are not eliminated,
as that would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported in those functions. Depreciation
expense is included in the direct expenses of each function. Interest on long-term debt is considered an
indirect expense and is reported separately on the Statement of Activities.
C. Fund Financial Statement Presentation
The accounts of the City are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is considered a separate
accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of self-balancing
accounts that comprise its assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources,
fund balances or net position, revenues, and expenditures or expenses, as appropriate. Government
resources are allocated to, and accounted for in, individual funds based upon the purposes for which they
are to be spent and the means by which spending activities are controlled.
Separate fund financial statements are provided for governmental and proprietary funds. Major individual
governmental and enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements, while
aggregated information for the remaining nonmajor governmental funds is reported in a single column.
Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this basis of accounting, transactions are recorded
in the following manner:
1. Revenue Recognition – Revenue is recognized when it becomes measurable and available.
“Measurable” means the amount of the transaction can be determined and “available” means
collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the
current period. For this purpose, the City considers revenues to be available if they are collected
within 60 days after year-end. Only the portion of special assessments receivable due within the
current fiscal period is considered to be susceptible to accrual as revenue of the current period.
Grants and similar items are recognized when all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider
have been met. Proceeds of long-term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as
other financing sources.
Major revenue sources susceptible to accrual include property taxes, special assessments,
intergovernmental revenue, charges for services, and interest earned on investments. Major revenue
sources not susceptible to accrual include licenses and permits, fees, and miscellaneous revenue,
which are recorded only when received because they are not measurable until collected.
2. Recording of Expenditures – Expenditures are generally recorded when a liability is incurred,
except for principal and interest on long-term debt, claims and judgements, and other long-term
liabilities, which are recognized as expenditures to the extent they have matured. Capital asset
acquisitions are reported as capital outlay expenditures in the governmental funds.

-28Page 158 of 255

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Proprietary fund financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and
accrual basis of accounting, similar to the government-wide financial statements. Proprietary funds
distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues and expenses
generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a
proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations.
The principal operating revenues of the City’s enterprise funds are charges to customers for sales and
services. The operating expenses for the enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services,
administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this
definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.
The City reports the following major governmental funds:
General Fund – This is the City’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the
City, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.
Debt Service Fund – This fund accounts for the resources accumulated and payments made for
principal and interest on long-term general obligation debt of governmental funds.
Lakefront Improvement Capital Projects Fund – This fund accounts for the resources accumulated
and payments made for lakefront improvement capital projects.
Developer Financed Capital Projects Fund – This fund accounts for deposits from private developers
and the reimbursement of city services provided for developer financed capital projects.
The City reports the following major proprietary funds:
Water Fund – This fund is used to account for revenues and expenses to operate the municipal water
utility.
Sewer Fund – This fund is used to account for revenues and expenses to operate the municipal sewer
utility.
Licensing Fund – This fund is used to account for revenues and expenses to operate the licensing
service center.
Liquor Fund – This fund is used to account for revenues and expenses to operate the City’s off-sale
liquor store and on-sale municipal bar and grill operations.
Solid Waste Fund – This fund is used to account for revenues and expenses to operate the City’s solid
waste collection programs.
Stormwater Fund – This fund is used to account for revenues and expenses to operate the City’s
stormwater system.
D. Budgets
An annual budget is legally adopted for the General Fund on a modified accrual basis consistent with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Appropriations are authorized by
the City Council at the fund level, which is the legal level of budgetary control. Appropriations lapse at
year-end; however, the City Council may approve the carryover of specific amounts.
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
E. Cash and Investments
Cash balances from all funds are combined and invested to the extent available in short-term investments.
Earnings from the pooled investments are allocated to the individual funds based on the average monthly
cash and investment balances of the respective funds.
For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, the City considers all highly liquid debt instruments with an
original maturity at the time of purchase of three months or less to be cash equivalents. The proprietary
funds’ portion of the government-wide cash and investment pool is considered to be cash equivalent.
The City generally reports investments at fair value, except for certain investment pools reported at
amortized cost. Fair value measurements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy established by
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The hierarchy is based on the
valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of the asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active
markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; and Level 3 inputs are
significant unobservable inputs. Debt securities classified in Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy are valued
using a matrix pricing technique. Matrix pricing is used to value securities based on the securities’
relationship to benchmark quoted prices. See Note 2 for the City’s recurring fair value measurements at
year-end.
F.

Receivables

Utility and miscellaneous accounts receivable are reported at gross. The City is generally able to certify
delinquent amounts for collection as special assessments; however, an allowance for uncollectible accounts
is recorded for utility receivables that remain delinquent after certification to the county.
G.

Interfund Balances and Transfers

In the fund financial statements, activity between funds that is representative of lending or borrowing
arrangements is reported as “advances to/from other funds.” All other outstanding balances between funds
are reported as “due to/from other funds.” Interfund balances and transfers reported in the fund financial
statements are eliminated to the extent possible in the government-wide financial statements. Any residual
balances outstanding between the governmental activities and the business-type activities are reported in
the government-wide financial statements as “internal balances.”
H. Property Taxes
Property tax levies are set by the City Council prior to December 31 of each year and are certified to
Hennepin County for collection in the following year. In Minnesota, counties act as collection agents for
all property taxes. Property tax levies are based on property values assessed on January 1 of the preceding
year. The county spreads levies over all taxable property in the City.
Such taxes become a lien on January 1 of the current year. Real property taxes may be paid by taxpayers in
two equal installments on May 15 and October 15. Personal property taxes may be paid on February 28 and
June 30. The county provides tax settlements to cities three times a year.
Revenues are accrued and recognized in the government-wide financial statements in the year levied. In the
governmental fund financial statements, taxes that remain unpaid at December 31 are classified as
delinquent taxes and are fully offset by deferred inflows of resources because it is not known when they
will be available to finance current expenditures.
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
I. Special Assessments
Special assessments are levied against the benefited properties for the assessable costs of improvement
projects in accordance with state statutes. The City usually adopts the assessment rolls when the individual
projects are complete or substantially complete. The assessments are collectible over a term of years
generally consistent with the term of years of the related bond issue. Collection of annual installments
(including interest) is handled by the county in the same manner as property taxes. Property owners are
allowed to prepay total future installments without interest or prepayment penalties.
The City recognizes special assessment revenue in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial
statements when the assessment rolls are levied. In the governmental fund financial statements, the City
recognizes special assessment revenue when it becomes both measurable and available. Current
assessments which remain unpaid at December 31 are classified as delinquent receivables and, together
with deferred assessments, are fully offset by deferred inflows of resources because it is not known when
they will be available to finance current expenditures.
J. Inventories
Proprietary fund inventories consist of water meters and liquor, which are valued at the lower of cost using
the first-in, first-out method, or replacement value.
K. Capital Assets
Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, bridges,
sidewalks, and similar items) are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities
columns in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the City as assets with
an estimated useful life of more than one year and an initial individual cost of more than $5,000.
The City reports infrastructure assets on a network and subsystem basis. Accordingly, the amounts spent
for the construction or acquisition of infrastructure assets are capitalized and reported in the
government-wide financial statements regardless of their amount.
In the case of initial capitalization of general infrastructure assets (i.e., those reported by governmental
activities) the City elected to report only those infrastructure assets added since January 1, 2004. As the
City constructs or acquires capital assets each period, including infrastructure assets, they are capitalized
and reported at historical cost. The reported value excludes normal maintenance and repairs, which are
essentially amounts spent in relation to capital assets that do not increase the capacity or efficiency of the
item or extend its useful life beyond the original estimate. In the case of donations, the City values these
capital assets at the acquisition value of the item at the date of its donation.
Property, plant, and equipment of the primary government, as well as the component units, are depreciated
using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives: land improvements 5–30 years;
buildings, 20–50 years; infrastructure 5–50 years; and machinery and equipment 2–20 years. Land and
construction in progress are not depreciated.
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
L. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources
In addition to assets and liabilities, statements of financial position, or balance sheets, will sometimes report
separate financial statement elements called deferred outflows or inflows of resources, which represent a
consumption or acquisition of net position that applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as
an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) or an inflow of financial resources (revenue) until then.
Deferred inflows from unavailable revenue arises only under the modified accrual basis of accounting and,
therefore, is only reported in the governmental fund financial statements. The governmental funds report
unavailable revenue from two sources, property taxes and special assessments. These amounts are deferred
and recognized as inflows of resources in the period they become available.
Deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions or other post-employment benefits (OPEB)
are reported in the government-wide Statement of Net Position. These deferred outflows and inflows result
from differences between expected and actual experience, changes in proportion, changes of assumptions,
differences between projected and actual earnings on pension plan investments, and contributions to the
plans subsequent to the measurement date and before the end of the reporting period. These amounts are
deferred and amortized as required under pension and OPEB standards.
Deferred charges on refunding are reported as a deferred outflow of resources in both the proprietary fund
financial statements and the government-wide financial statements. This item represents the difference
between the carrying value of refunded debt and its reacquisition price, which is deferred and amortized
over the shorter of the life of the refunded or refunding debt.
M. Long-Term Obligations
In the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term
obligations are reported as liabilities. If they are material, bond premiums and discounts are deferred and
amortized over the life of the bonds using the straight-line method.
In the governmental fund financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported
as liabilities when due and payable. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources.
Premiums or discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources or uses, respectively.
N. Compensated Absences
The City policy permits certain employees to accumulate a limited amount of earned, but unused vacation
and sick leave. The accrued compensated absences will be paid upon termination or when used.
Compensated absences are recognized when they mature in the governmental fund financial statements,
and accrued when earned in government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements. The General Fund
is typically used to liquidate governmental compensated absences payable.
O. State-Wide Pension Plans
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows/inflows of resources, and pension
expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the Public Employees Retirement Association
(PERA) and additions to/deductions from the PERA’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the
same basis as they are reported by the PERA. For this purpose, plan contributions are recognized as of
employer payroll paid dates and benefit payments and refunds are recognized when due and payable in
accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
P. Net Position
In the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, net position represents the difference
between assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources. Net position
is displayed in three components:
•

Net Investment in Capital Assets – Consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation,
reduced by any outstanding debt attributable to acquire capital assets.

•

Restricted Net Position – Consists of net position restricted when there are limitations imposed
on its use through external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, or laws or regulations of
other governments.

•

Unrestricted Net Position – All other elements of net position that do not meet the definition of
“restricted” or “net investment in capital assets.”

The City applies restricted resources first when an expense is incurred for which both restricted and
unrestricted resources are available.
Q. Fund Balance Classifications
In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report fund balance in classifications that disclose
constraints for which amounts in those funds can be spent. These classifications are as follows:
•

Nonspendable – Consists of amounts that are not in spendable form, such as prepaid items,
inventory, and other long-term assets.

•

Restricted – Consists of amounts related to externally imposed constraints established by creditors,
grantors, or contributors; or constraints imposed by state statutory provisions.

•

Committed – Consists of internally imposed constraints that are established by resolution of the
City Council. Those committed amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless the City
Council removes or changes the specified use by taking the same type of action it employed to
previously commit those amounts.

•

Assigned – Consists of internally imposed constraints on amounts intended to be used by the City
for specific purposes but do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed. In
governmental funds, assigned amounts represent intended uses established by the governing body
itself or by an official to which the governing body delegates the authority. Pursuant to City Council
resolution, the city manager is authorized to establish assignments of fund balance.

•

Unassigned – The residual classification for the General Fund, which also reflects negative residual
amounts in other funds.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City’s policy to first use
restricted resources, then use unrestricted resources as they are needed. When committed, assigned, or
unassigned resources are available for use, it is the City’s policy to use resources in the following
order: 1) committed, 2) assigned, and 3) unassigned.
The City has formally adopted a fund balance policy for the General Fund. The City’s policy is to maintain
an unassigned fund balance of 40 percent of the next year’s budgeted expenditures.
-33Page 163 of 255

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
R. Risk Management
The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts: theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets;
errors and omissions; and natural disasters. The City participates in the League of Minnesota Cities
Insurance Trust (LMCIT), a public entity risk pool for its general property and casualty, workers’
compensation, and other miscellaneous insurance coverage. The LMCIT operates as a common risk
management and insurance program for a large number of cities in Minnesota. The City pays an annual
premium to the LMCIT for insurance coverage. The LMCIT agreement provides that the trust will be
self-sustaining through member premiums and will reinsure through commercial companies for claims in
excess of certain limits. The City also carries commercial insurance for certain other risks of loss. Settled
claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.
There were no significant reductions in insurance coverage in the current year.
S. Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America, requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain
reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.
NOTE 2 – CASH AND INVESTMENTS
A. Components of Cash and Investments
Cash and investments are presented in the financial statements as follows:
Primary government
Statement of Net Position

$

Component unit – HRA
Statement of Net Position

18,956,296

1,089,026

Total – reporting entity

$

20,045,322

$

6,616,038
13,399,921
29,363

$

20,045,322

Cash and investments at year-end consisted of the following:
Deposits
Investments
Petty cash
Total cash and investments
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NOTE 2 – CASH AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)
B. Deposits
In accordance with applicable Minnesota Statutes, the City maintains deposits at depository banks
authorized by the City Council, including checking accounts and certificates of deposit. The following is
considered the most significant risk associated with deposits:
Custodial Credit Risk – In the case of deposits, this is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the
City’s deposits may be lost.
Minnesota Statutes require that all deposits be protected by federal deposit insurance, corporate surety
bond, or collateral. The market value of collateral pledged must equal 110 percent of the deposits not
covered by federal deposit insurance or corporate surety bonds. Authorized collateral includes treasury
bills, notes, and bonds; issues of U.S. government agencies; general obligations rated “A” or better;
revenue obligations rated “AA” or better; irrevocable standard letters of credit issued by the Federal
Home Loan Bank; and certificates of deposit. Minnesota Statutes require that securities pledged as
collateral be held in safekeeping in a restricted account at the Federal Reserve Bank or in an account at
a trust department of a commercial bank or other financial institution that is not owned or controlled
by the financial institution furnishing the collateral. The City has no additional deposit policies
addressing custodial credit risk.
At year-end, the carrying amount of the City’s deposits was $6,616,038, while the balance on the bank
records was $7,205,252. At December 31, 2020, all deposits were fully covered by federal deposit
insurance, surety bonds, or by collateral held by the City’s agent in the City’s name.
C. Investments
The City had the following investments at year-end:

Investment Type
State and local government securities
State and local government securities
State and local government securities
Negotiable certificates of deposit
UBS Select Prime Institutional Fund
4M Fund
4M Plus Fund

Credit Risk
Rating
Agency

Fair Value
Measurements
Using

A
Moody’s
Aa
Moody’s
AA
S&P
Not Rated
AAA
Moody’s
Not Rated
Not Rated

Level 2
Level 2
Level 2
Level 2
NAV
N/A
N/A

Total investments

Interest Risk –
Maturity Duration in Years
Less Than 1
1 to 5
6 to 10
$
–
$ 2,350,357
$ 1,409,322
$ 897,679
N/A
N/A
N/A

$
–
$
–
$ 719,033
$ 2,313,021
N/A
N/A
N/A

$
$
$

506,085
843,699
–
–
N/A
N/A
N/A

Total
$

506,085
3,194,056
2,128,355
3,210,700
4,355,722
1,573
3,430

$ 13,399,921

N/A – Not Applicable
NAV – Net Asset Value

All mutual funds currently held by the City reported at net asset value, have no unfunded commitments,
and have daily redemption frequencies with no redemption notice required. The Minnesota Municipal
Money Market (4M) Fund and 4M Plus Fund are external investment pools regulated by Minnesota Statutes
that are not registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC), but follow the regulatory rules
of the SEC. The City’s investments in these funds are measured at the value per share provided by the pool,
which is based on an amortized cost method that approximates fair value. There are no limitations or
restrictions on withdrawals for the 4M Fund. The 4M Plus Fund requires an initial 14-day investment
period, subject to a penalty equal to 7 days of interest on funds withdrawn prior to the 14-day restriction
period.
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NOTE 2 – CASH AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)
Investments are subject to various risks, the following of which are considered the most significant:
Custodial Credit Risk – For investments, this is the risk that in the event of a failure of the counterparty
to an investment transaction (typically a broker-dealer) the City would not be able to recover the value
of its investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The City does
not have a formal investment policy addressing this risk, but typically limits its exposure by purchasing
insured or registered investments, or by the control of who holds the securities.
Credit Risk – This is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its
obligations. Minnesota Statutes limit the City’s investments to direct obligations or obligations
guaranteed by the United States or its agencies; shares of investment companies registered under the
Federal Investment Company Act of 1940 that receive the highest credit rating, are rated in one of the
two highest rating categories by a statistical rating agency, and all of the investments have a final
maturity of 13 months or less; general obligations rated “A” or better; revenue obligations rated “AA”
or better; general obligations of the Minnesota Housing Finance Agency rated “A” or better; bankers’
acceptances of United States banks eligible for purchase by the Federal Reserve System; commercial
paper issued by United States corporations or their Canadian subsidiaries, rated of the highest quality
category by at least two nationally recognized rating agencies, and maturing in 270 days or less;
Guaranteed Investment Contracts guaranteed by a United States commercial bank, domestic branch of
a foreign bank, or a United States insurance company, and with a credit quality in one of the top
two highest categories; repurchase or reverse purchase agreements and securities lending agreements
with financial institutions qualified as a “depository” by the government entity, with banks that are
members of the Federal Reserve System with capitalization exceeding $10,000,000; that are a primary
reporting dealer in U.S. government securities to the Federal Reserve Bank of New York; or certain
Minnesota securities broker-dealers. The City’s investment policies do not further address credit risk.
Concentration Risk – This is the risk associated with investing a significant portion of the City’s
investment (considered 5.0 percent or more) in the securities of a single issuer, excluding
U.S. guaranteed investments (such as treasuries), investment pools, and mutual funds. The City’s
investment policies do not limit the concentration of investments. As of December 31, 2020, the City
had 7.5 percent invested in New York, NY City Transit Authority Bonds, 6.8 percent invested in
Milan, MI Area Schools Bonds, and 6.3 percent in University of Hawaii Bonds.
Interest Rate Risk – This is the risk of potential variability in the fair value of fixed rate investments
resulting from changes in interest rates (the longer the period for which an interest rate is fixed, the
greater the risk). The City’s investment policy limits investment maturities to a maximum of 10 years.
NOTE 3 – NOTE RECEIVABLES
The HRA has several loans receivable from local businesses. As of December 31, 2020, the total
outstanding balance of these loans is $19,250. The terms and interest rates vary, and all are secured by the
assets of the business.

-36Page 166 of 255

NOTE 4 – CAPITAL ASSETS
Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2020 was as follows:
A. Changes in Capital Assets Used in Governmental Activities – Primary Government
Beginning
Balance
Capital assets, not being depreciated
Land
Construction in progress
Total capital assets, not being depreciated

$ 7,563,994
2,589,728
10,153,722

Capital assets, being depreciated
Buildings
Infrastructure
Machinery and equipment
Land improvements
Total capital assets, being depreciated

$

Completed
Construction

Deletions

100,000
726,970
826,970

–
–
–

$

$

–
(2,001,113)
(2,001,113)

Ending
Balance
$ 7,663,994
1,315,585
8,979,579

27,492,468
14,376,288
5,903,334
284,307
48,056,397

477,681
9,151,015
734,230
–
10,362,926

–
–
(207,474)
–
(207,474)

(5,801,666)
(3,767,560)
(3,635,424)
(42,991)
(13,247,641)

(576,030)
(683,175)
(453,528)
(14,215)
(1,726,948)

–
–
207,474
–
207,474

–
–
–
–
–

34,808,756

8,635,978

–

2,001,113

45,445,847

$ 44,962,478

$ 9,462,948

–

$ 54,425,426

Less accumulated depreciation on
Buildings
Infrastructure
Machinery and equipment
Land improvements
Total accumulated depreciation
Net capital assets, being depreciated
Net capital assets

Additions

–

$

–
2,001,113
–
–
2,001,113

$

27,970,149
25,528,416
6,845,038
284,307
60,627,910
(6,377,696)
(4,450,735)
(4,296,426)
(57,206)
(15,182,063)

The City’s Peavey Bridge was contributed by the state of Minnesota. By Minnesota Statutes, if the City
were to sell the bridge, any proceeds would first be required to be remitted to the state of Minnesota to retire
any remaining debt outstanding that was issued to finance the project.
B. Changes in Capital Assets Used in Business-Type Activities – Primary Government
Beginning
Balance
Capital assets, not being depreciated
Land
Construction in progress
Total capital assets, not being depreciated

$

Additions

973,048
1,331,936
2,304,984

–
84,078
84,078

$

Completed
Construction

Deletions
–
–
–

$

$

–
(627,147)
(627,147)

Ending
Balance
$

973,048
788,867
1,761,915

Capital assets, being depreciated
Buildings
Infrastructure
Machinery and equipment
Total capital assets, being depreciated

9,547,831
13,646,958
1,430,087
24,624,876

–
210,894
–
210,894

–
–
–
–

–
627,147
–
627,147

Less accumulated depreciation on
Buildings
Infrastructure
Machinery and equipment
Total accumulated depreciation

(2,275,906)
(3,433,541)
(1,004,140)
(6,713,587)

(190,570)
(325,865)
(79,494)
(595,929)

–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–

17,911,289

(385,035)

–

627,147

18,153,401

–

$ 19,915,316

Net capital assets, being depreciated
Net capital assets

$ 20,216,273

$

(300,957)

–

$

$

9,547,831
14,484,999
1,430,087
25,462,917
(2,466,476)
(3,759,406)
(1,083,634)
(7,309,516)

C. Changes in Capital Assets – Component Unit HRA
Beginning
Balance
Capital assets, not being depreciated
Land

Additions

$ 2,092,900

$

Completed
Construction

Deletions
–

$

–

$

–

Ending
Balance

$ 2,092,900
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NOTE 4 – CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)
D. Depreciation Expense by Function – Primary Government
Depreciation expense was charged to the following functions:
Governmental activities
General government
Public safety
Public works
Culture and recreation
Total depreciation expense – governmental activities
Business-type activities
Water
Sewer
Liquor
Stormwater
Total depreciation expense – business-type activities

$

229,803
244,403
1,160,277
92,465

$

1,726,948

$

225,831
118,300
126,508
125,290

$

595,929

NOTE 5 – INTERFUND BALANCES AND TRANSFERS
A. Advances To/From Other Funds
In 2011, various funds loaned an accumulated balance of $600,000 to the Liquor Enterprise Fund for the
municipal liquor store project. The interfund loans will be paid back over 10 years and have an interest rate
of 3 percent. Several of the funds were paid off in advance. The balance at year-end is as follows:
Receivable Fund
Governmental
Street Improvement
Capital Projects

Payable Fund

Beginning
Balance

Additions

Deletions

Ending
Balance

$ 28,500

$

–

$ 17,000

$ 11,500

Business-Type
Liquor Enterprise

B. Due To/From Component Unit
The HRA component unit borrowed $1,760,500 from the primary government to assist in financing the
downtown ramp project in 2017. The loan will be repaid over a four-year period ending in 2021 at 4 percent
interest. The HRA component unit also borrowed $159,186 from the primary government to cover a
temporary cash flow deficit. The balances at year-end are as follows:

Due From Component Unit
Governmental
General
Nonmajor
Proprietary
Water
Total

Due To Primary Government
Governmental
Downtown TIF 6
Widsten TIF

$

623,352
–

$

–
$

623,352

131,316
59,898

$

39,165
$

230,379

Total

754,668
59,898
39,165

$

853,731
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NOTE 5 – INTERFUND BALANCES AND TRANSFERS (CONTINUED)
C. Interfund Transfers
The composition of interfund transfers for the year ended December 31, 2020 is as follows:
Lakefront
Improvement

Transfers In
Street
Improvement

Transfers Out
Fund
General
Lakefront Improvement
Nonmajor Governmental
Water Enterprise
Sewer Enterprise
Licensing Enterprise
Liquor Enterprise
Stormwater Enterprise

General

Nonmajor
Governmental

Total

$

–
113,983
51,000
31,000
31,000
31,000
41,000
10,000

$

404,311
–
–
25,000
–
95,868
–
309,320

$

–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–

$

755,480
–
5,000
35,700
47,800
50,566
–
55,000

$ 1,159,791
113,983
56,000
91,700
78,800
177,434
41,000
374,320

$

308,983

$

834,499

$

–

$

949,546

$ 2,093,028

The City annually budgets transfers for specific purposes. Annual transfers include transfers made to cover
costs of operation, and transfers made as part of capital improvement plans.
NOTE 6 – LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
A. Changes in Long-Term Liabilities
Changes in the City’s long-term liabilities during the year were as follows:
Beginning
Balance
Governmental activities
General obligation bonds
G.O. improvement bonds
G.O. tax increment bonds
Premium
Total bonds
Compensated absences payable
Total governmental activities
Business-type activities
G.O. revenue bonds
G.O. improvement bonds
Premium
Total bonds
Compensated absences payable
Total business-type activities
Total government-wide

$

895,000
3,860,000
7,725,000
387,637
12,867,637

Additions

$

–
1,650,000
3,710,000
319,868
5,679,868

Ending
Balance

Reductions

$

215,000
1,880,000
265,000
76,623
2,436,623

$

680,000
3,630,000
11,170,000
630,882
16,110,882

Due Within
One Year

$

225,000
170,000
420,000
–
815,000

314,199

347,576

270,348

391,427

232,654

13,181,836

6,027,444

2,706,971

16,502,309

1,047,654

5,200,000
1,400,000
181,182
6,781,182

2,450,000
–
112,048
2,562,048

2,815,000
110,000
43,542
2,968,542

4,835,000
1,290,000
249,688
6,374,688

325,000
110,000
–
435,000

131,902

115,113

121,229

125,786

76,250

6,913,084

2,677,161

3,089,771

6,500,474

511,250

$ 20,094,920

$ 8,704,605

$ 5,796,742

$ 23,002,783

$ 1,558,904
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NOTE 6 – LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)
B. Bonds Payable
The components of the City’s outstanding bonded debt at year-end were as follows:
Authorized
and Issued

Interest Rate

Original
Issue

Maturity

$
370,000
$ 1,885,000

3.00–3.88%
2.00–3.00%

05/19/2009
09/15/2012

12/01/2023
12/01/2023

General obligation improvement bonds
G.O. Improvement Bonds, Series 2019A
G.O. Improvement Refunding Bonds, Series 2020B
Total general obligation improvement bonds

$ 1,980,000
$ 1,650,000

1.75–2.10%
1.15–2.00%

05/30/2019
11/10/2020

02/01/2030
12/01/2030

1,980,000
1,650,000
3,630,000

General obligation tax increment bonds
G.O. Tax Increment Bonds, Series 2016A
G.O. Tax Increment Bonds, Series 2020A
Total general obligation tax increment bonds

$ 7,725,000
$ 3,710,000

1.10–4.00%
2.00–3.00%

12/29/2016
05/28/2020

02/01/2041
02/01/2040

7,460,000
3,710,000
11,170,000

Description
Governmental activities
General obligation bonds
G.O. Street Reconstruction Bonds, Series 2009B
G.O. Refunding Bonds, Series 2012A
Total general obligation bonds

Balance
at Year-End

Total governmental activities

$

90,000
590,000
680,000

15,480,000

Business-type activities
General obligation revenue bonds
G.O. Water Revenue Bonds, Series 2017A
G.O. Liquor and Restaurant Refunding Bonds, Series 2020B
Total general obligation bonds
General obligation improvement bonds
G.O. Improvement Bonds, Series 2012B
G.O. Improvement Bonds, Series 2012C
Total general obligation improvement bonds

$ 2,775,000
$ 2,450,000

3.00%
1.15–2.00%

12/28/2017
11/10/2020

12/01/2031
12/01/2035

2,385,000
2,450,000
4,835,000

$ 1,520,000
$
545,000

2.00–3.00%
2.00–3.00%

09/05/2012
09/05/2012

12/01/2032
12/01/2027

995,000
295,000
1,290,000

Total business-type activities

6,125,000

Total government-wide

$ 21,605,000

C. Minimum Debt Payments
Minimum annual payments required to retire bonds are as follows:
Governmental Activities
Principal
Interest

Year Ending
December 31,
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026–2030
2031–2035
2036–2040
2041

Business-Type Activities
Principal
Interest

$

815,000
965,000
1,080,000
875,000
900,000
4,860,000
2,635,000
2,870,000
480,000

$

449,044
408,189
381,704
352,416
328,929
1,260,408
750,426
345,491
9,600

$

435,000
445,000
460,000
470,000
485,000
2,495,000
1,335,000
–
–

$

153,742
140,105
128,768
116,655
104,243
324,950
53,703
–
–

$

15,480,000

$

4,286,207

$

6,125,000

$

1,022,166
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NOTE 6 – LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)
D. Descriptions of Long-Term Liabilities
•

General Obligation (G.O.) Bonds – The City issues G.O. bonds to provide funds for the
acquisition and construction of major capital facilities and projects, or to refund previous bond
issues. These bonds will be repaid primarily with ad valorem tax levies. G.O. bonds are backed by
the full faith and credit of the City.

•

G.O. Improvement (Special Assessment) Bonds – G.O. improvement bonds are issued to finance
various improvements to be repaid primarily from special assessments levied on the properties
benefitting from the improvements and net revenues pledged by the enterprise funds.
G.O. improvement bonds are backed by the full faith and credit of the City.

•

G. O. Tax Increment Bonds – The City issues G.O. tax increment bonds to provide funding for
projects within a tax increment financing district that will be repaid primarily with tax increment
financing. G.O. tax increment bonds are backed by the full faith and credit of the City.
The City has pledged tax increment revenues generated by Tax Increment District No. 5 to the debt
service requirements related to the G.O. Tax Increment Bonds, Series 2016A, through maturity of
the bond. There was $496,348 of pledged revenue from tax increments and $496,698 of debt service
principal and interest requirements for the year ended December 31, 2020. It is anticipated tax
increment revenues will be sufficient to provide not less than 105 percent of principal and interest
on the bonds as required by Minnesota state law.

•

General Obligation Revenue Bonds – The City issues general obligation revenue bonds to finance
capital improvements in the enterprise funds. Along with G.O. special assessment bonds, they will
be repaid from future net operating revenues pledged from enterprise funds and are backed by the
taxing power of the City. Annual net operating revenues, principal and interest payments, and
percentage of revenue required to cover the principal and interest payments is disclosed below:

Net operating revenues
Principal and interest
Percentage of revenues

Water

Sewer

Liquor

$ 900,956
$ 357,100
40%

$ 1,239,184
$
50,149
4%

$ 2,236,084
$ 228,680
10%

•

Bond Refundings – In November 2020, the City issued $4,100,000 of G.O. Refunding Bonds,
Series 2020B, the proceeds of which were used to redeem the 2021 through 2030 maturities
(totaling $1,730,000) of the City’s G.O. Improvement Bonds, Series 2010A, and the 2021 through
2035 maturities (totaling $2,515,000) of the City’s G.O. Liquor and Restaurant Revenue Bonds,
Series 2011A, on their December 1, 2020 call dates. These refundings reduced the City’s future
total debt service payments by $870,256 and resulted in a present value savings of $811,648.

•

Compensated Absences – This liability represents vested benefits earned by employees through
the end of the year, which will be paid or used in future periods. The General, Water, Sewer,
Licensing, and Liquor Funds will be used to liquidate this liability.

•

Total OPEB and Net Pension Liabilities – The City also provides OPEB and pension benefits to
employees as described later in these notes. The General Fund and enterprise funds will be used to
liquidate these liabilities.
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NOTE 7 – FUND EQUITY
A. Components of Fund Balances
The components of the City’s fund balances at year-end were as follows:

General
Nonspendable
Due from component unit – long-term

$

Debt Service

754,668

–

$

Lakefront
Improvement
Capital Projects

$

–

Nonmajor
Funds

$

Total
–

$

754,668

Restricted
Debt service
Parks and trails
Public safety police expenditures
Total restricted

–
–
–
–

1,133,727
–
–
1,133,727

–
–
–
–

–
605,186
18,189
623,375

1,133,727
605,186
18,189
1,757,102

Committed
Cemetery
Cable TV
Comprehensive plan
Total committed

–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–

26,491
48,538
52,305
127,334

26,491
48,538
52,305
127,334

283,041
–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–
–

–
703,562
–
–
–

–
–
1,314,935
2,236,258
1,326,819

283,041
703,562
1,314,935
2,236,258
1,326,819

–
–
283,041

–
–
–

–
–
703,562

370,384
1,834,036
7,082,432

370,384
1,834,036
8,069,035

3,278,984

–

–

–

3,278,984

7,833,141

$ 13,987,123

Assigned
Insurance
Lakefront improvement
Street improvements
Capital equipment
Parks and trails
Community room/
library improvement
Other capital projects
Total assigned
Unassigned
General Fund
Total

$

4,316,693

$

1,133,727

$

703,562

$

B. Deficit Fund Equity
The City’s Licensing Enterprise Fund had a deficit net position of $278,886 at year-end, which is expected
to be eliminated through future charges for services.
The HRA component unit’s Widsten Tax Increment Debt Service Fund and Downtown TIF 6 Capital
Projects Fund had fund balance deficits at year-end of $99,366 and $674,274, respectively. These deficits
are expected to be eliminated with future tax increments.
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NOTE 8 – DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN – STATE-WIDE
A. Plan Descriptions
The City participates in the following cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit pension plans
administered by the PERA of Minnesota. The PERA’s defined benefit pension plans are established and
administered in accordance with Minnesota Statutes, Chapters 353 and 356. The PERA’s defined benefit
pension plans are tax qualified plans under Section 401(a) of the Internal Revenue Code.
1. General Employees Retirement Fund (GERF)
All full-time and certain part-time employees of the City are covered by the GERF. The GERF
members belong to the Coordinated Plan and are covered by Social Security.
2. Public Employees Police and Fire Fund (PEPFF)
The Public Employees Police and Fire Fund (PEPFF), originally established for police officers and
firefighters not covered by a local relief association, now covers all police officers and firefighters
hired since 1980. Effective July 1, 1999, the PEPFF also covers police officers and firefighters
belonging to local relief associations that elected to merge with and transfer assets and
administration to the PERA.
The following table summarizes the net pension liabilities, deferred outflows and inflows of resources, and
pension expense related to these plans as of and for the City’s fiscal year ended December 31, 2020:

Pension Plans
PERA – GERF
PERA – PEPFF
Total

Deferred
Outflows
of Resources

Net Pension
Liabilities

Deferred
Inflows
of Resources

Pension
Expense

$

3,213,565
1,333,924

$

356,230
749,134

$

130,865
988,966

$

241,392
218,358

$

4,547,489

$

1,105,364

$

1,119,831

$

459,750

B. Benefits Provided
The PERA provides retirement, disability, and death benefits. Benefit provisions are established by state
statutes and can only be modified by the State Legislature. Vested, terminated employees who are entitled
to benefits, but are not receiving them yet, are bound by the provisions in effect at the time they last
terminated their public service.
1. GERF Benefits
Benefits are based on a member’s highest average salary for any five successive years of allowable
service, age, and years of credit at termination of service. Two methods are used to compute
benefits for the PERA’s Coordinated Plan members. Members hired prior to July 1, 1989, receive
the higher of Method 1 or Method 2 formulas. Only Method 2 is used for members hired after
June 30, 1989. Under Method 1, the accrual rate for Coordinated Plan members is 1.2 percent of
average salary for each of the first 10 years of service, and 1.7 percent of average salary for each
additional year. Under Method 2, the accrual rate for Coordinated Plan members is 1.7 percent of
average salary for all years of service. For members hired prior to July 1, 1989, a full annuity is
available when age plus years of service equal 90, and normal retirement age is 65. For members
hired on or after July 1, 1989, normal retirement age is the age for unreduced Social Security
benefits capped at age 66.
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NOTE 8 – DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN – STATE-WIDE (CONTINUED)
Annuities, disability benefits, and survivor benefits are increased effective every January 1.
Beginning January 1, 2019, the post-retirement increase will be equal to 50.0 percent of the cost of
living adjustment (COLA) announced by the Social Security Administration, with a minimum
increase of at least 1.0 percent and a maximum of 1.5 percent. Recipients that have been receiving
the annuity or benefit for at least a full year as of the June 30 before the effective date of the
increase, will receive the full increase. For recipients receiving the annuity or benefit for at least
one month, but less than a full year as of the June 30 before the effective date of the increase, will
receive a reduced prorated increase. For members retiring on January 1, 2024 or later, the increase
will be delayed until normal retirement age (age 65 if hired prior to July 1, 1989, or age 66 for
individuals hired on or after July 1, 1989). Members retiring under Rule of 90 are exempt from the
delay to normal retirement.
2. PEPFF Benefits
Benefits for the PEPFF members first hired after June 30, 2010 but before July 1, 2014, vest on a
prorated basis from 50.0 percent after five years, up to 100.0 percent after 10 years of credited
service. Benefits for the PEPFF members first hired after June 30, 2014 vest on a prorated basis
from 50.0 percent after 10 years, up to 100.0 percent after 20 years of credited service. The annuity
accrual rate is 3.0 percent of average salary for each year of service. For Police and Fire Plan
members who were first hired prior to July 1, 1989, a full annuity is available when age plus years
of service equal at least 90.
Benefit increases are provided to benefit recipients each January. Beginning in 2019, the
post-retirement increase will be fixed at 1.0 percent. Recipients that have been receiving the annuity
or benefit for at least 36 months as of the June 30 before the effective date of the increase, will
receive the full increase. For recipients receiving the annuity or benefit for at least 25 months, but
less than 36 months as of the June 30 before the effective date of the increase, will receive a reduced
prorated increase.
C. Contributions
Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 353 sets the rates for employer and employee contributions. Contribution rates
can only be modified by the State Legislature.
1. GERF Contributions
Coordinated Plan members were required to contribute 6.50 percent of their annual covered salary
in fiscal year 2020, and the City was required to contribute 7.50 percent for Coordinated Plan
members. The City’s contributions to the GERF for the year ended December 31, 2020, were
$271,112. The City’s contributions were equal to the required contributions as set by state statutes.
2. PEPFF Contributions
Police and fire member’s contribution rates increased from 11.30 percent of pay to 11.80 percent
and employer rates increased from 16.95 percent to 17.70 percent on January 1, 2020. The City’s
contributions to the PEPFF for the year ended December 31, 2020, were $208,688. The City’s
contributions were equal to the required contributions as set by state statutes.
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NOTE 8 – DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN – STATE-WIDE (CONTINUED)
D. Pension Costs
1. GERF Pension Costs
At December 31, 2020, the City reported a liability of $3,213,565 for its proportionate share of the
GERF’s net pension liability. The City’s net pension liability reflected a reduction, due to the state
of Minnesota’s contribution of $16.0 million. The state of Minnesota is considered a nonemployer
contributing entity and the state’s contribution meets the definition of a special funding situation.
The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2020, and the total pension liability used to
calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The
City’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on the City’s contributions received by the
PERA during the measurement period for employer payroll paid dates from July 1, 2019 through
June 30, 2020, relative to the total employer contributions received from all of the PERA’s
participating employers. The City’s proportionate share was 0.0536 percent at the end of the
measurement period and 0.0519 percent for the beginning of the period.
The amount recognized by the City as its proportionate share of the net pension liability, the direct
aid, and total portion of the net pension liability that was associated with the City were as follows:
City’s proportionate share of the net pension liability
State’s proportionate share of the net pension liability
associated with the City

$

3,213,565

$

99,179

For the year ended December 31, 2020, the City recognized pension expense of $232,760 for its
proportionate share of the GERF’s pension expense. In addition, the City recognized an additional
$8,632 as pension expense (and grant revenue) for its proportionate share of the state of
Minnesota’s contribution of $16.0 million to the GERF.
At December 31, 2020, the City reported its proportionate share of the GERF’s deferred outflows
of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Differences between expected and actual economic experience
Changes in actuarial assumptions
Differences between projected and actual investment earnings
Changes in proportion
Contributions paid to the PERA subsequent to the
measurement date
Total

Deferred
Outflows
of Resources

Deferred
Inflows
of Resources

$

$

28,511
530
74,926
120,638

–

131,625
$

356,230

13,435
117,430
–
–

$

130,865

A total of $131,625 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from
city contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net
pension liability in the year ending December 31, 2021. Other amounts reported as deferred
outflows and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension
expense as follows:
Year Ending
December 31,
2021
2022
2023
2024

Pension Expense
Amount
$
$
$
$

(101,884)
30,670
87,313
77,641
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2. PEPFF Pension Costs
At December 31, 2020, the City reported a liability of $1,333,924 for its proportionate share of the
PEPFF’s net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2020, and the
total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial
valuation as of that date. The City’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on the City’s
contributions received by the PERA during the measurement period for employer payroll paid dates
from July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2020, relative to the total employer contributions received from
all of the PERA’s participating employers. The City’s proportionate share was 0.1012 percent at
the end of the measurement period and 0.1010 percent for the beginning of the period.
The state of Minnesota also contributed $13.5 million to the Police and Fire Fund in the plan fiscal
year ended June 30, 2020. The contribution consisted of $4.5 million in direct state aid that does
meet the definition of a special funding situation and $9.0 million in fire state aid that does not meet
the definition of a special funding situation. The $4.5 million direct state was paid on October 1,
2019. Thereafter, by October 1 of each year, the state will pay $9.0 million to the Police and Fire
Fund until full funding is reached or July 1, 2048, whichever is earlier. The $9.0 million in fire state
aid will continue until the fund is 90.0 percent funded, or until the State Patrol Plan (administered
by the Minnesota State Retirement System) is 90.0 percent funded, whichever occurs later.
As a result, the state of Minnesota is included as a nonemployer contributing entity in the Police
and Fire Retirement Plan Schedule of Employer Allocations and Schedule of Pension Amounts by
Employer, Current Reporting Period Only (pension allocation schedules) for the $4.5 million in
direct state aid. Police and Fire Plan employers need to recognize their proportionate share of the
state of Minnesota’s pension expense (and grant revenue) under GASB Statement No. 68 special
funding situation accounting and financial reporting requirements. For the year ended
December 31, 2020, the City recognized pension expense of $208,688 for its proportionate share
of the Police and Fire Plan’s pension expense. In addition, the City recognized an additional $9,670
as pension expense (and grant revenue) for its proportionate share of the state of Minnesota’s
contribution of $4.5 million to the Police and Fire Fund.
The amount recognized by the City as its proportionate share of the net pension liability, the direct
aid, and total portion of the net pension liability that was associated with the City were as follows:
City’s proportionate share of the net pension liability
State’s proportionate share of the net pension liability
associated with the City

$

1,333,924

$

31,430

The state of Minnesota is not included as a nonemployer contributing entity in the Police and Fire
Pension Plan pension allocation schedules for the $9.0 million in fire state aid. The City also
recognized $9,108 for the year ended December 31, 2020, as revenue and an offsetting reduction
of net pension liability for its proportionate share of the state of Minnesota’s on-behalf
contributions to the Police and Fire Fund.
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NOTE 8 – DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN – STATE-WIDE (CONTINUED)
At December 31, 2020, the City reported its proportionate share of the PEPFF’s deferred outflows
of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Differences between expected and actual economic experience
Changes in actuarial assumptions
Differences between projected and actual investment earnings
Changes in proportion
Contributions paid to the PERA subsequent to the measurement
date
Total

Deferred
Outflows
of Resources

Deferred
Inflows
of Resources

$

$

66,361
496,792
43,221
37,140

–

105,620
$

749,134

72,999
883,491
–
32,476

$

988,966

A total of $105,620 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from
city contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net
pension liability in the year ending December 31, 2021. Other amounts reported as deferred
outflows and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension
expense as follows:
Year Ending
December 31,

Pension
Expense
Amount

2021
2022
2023
2024
2025

$ (96,160)
$ (371,363)
$ 54,008
$ 66,560
$
1,503

E. Actuarial Assumptions
The total pension liability in the June 30, 2020 actuarial valuation was determined using an individual
entry-age normal actuarial cost method and the following actuarial assumptions:
Inflation
Active member payroll growth
Investment rate of return

2.50% per year
3.25% per year
7.50%

Salary increases were based on a service-related table. Mortality rates for active members, retirees,
survivors, and disabilitants for all plans were based on RP-2014 tables for males and females, as
appropriate, with slight adjustments to fit the PERA’s experience. Cost of living benefit increases after
retirement for retirees are assumed to be 1.25 percent per year for the GERF, and 1.00 percent per year for
the PEPFF.
Actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2020 valuation were based on the results of actuarial experience
studies. The most recent four-year experience study in the GERF was completed in 2019. The assumption
changes were adopted by the Board and become effective with the July 1, 2020 actuarial valuation. The
most recent four-year experience study for the PEPFF was completed in 2020. The recommended
assumptions for those plans were adopted by the Board and will be effective with the July 1, 2021 actuarial
valuations if approved by the State Legislature.
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NOTE 8 – DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN – STATE-WIDE (CONTINUED)
The following changes in actuarial assumptions and plan provisions occurred in 2020:
1. GERF
CHANGES IN ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS
•

The price inflation assumption was decreased from 2.50 percent to 2.25 percent.

•

The payroll growth assumption was decreased from 3.25 percent to 3.00 percent.

•

Assumed salary increase rates were changed as recommended in the June 30, 2019 experience
study. The net effect is assumed rates that average 0.25 percent less than previous rates.

•

Assumed rates of retirement were changed as recommended in the June 30, 2019 experience
study. The changes result in more unreduced (normal) retirements and slightly fewer Rule of 90
and early retirements.

•

Assumed rates of termination were changed as recommended in the June 30, 2019 experience
study. The new rates are based on service and are generally lower than the previous rates for
years two through five, and slightly higher thereafter.

•

Assumed rates of disability were changed as recommended in the June 30, 2019 experience
study. The change results in fewer predicted disability retirements for males and females.

•

The base mortality table for healthy annuitants and employees was changed from the
RP-2014 Table to the Pub-2010 General Mortality Table, with adjustments. The base mortality
table for disabled annuitants was changed from the RP-2014 Disabled Annuitant Mortality
Table to the Pub-2010 General/Teacher Disabled Annuitant Mortality Table, with adjustments.

•

The mortality improvement scale was changed from MP-2018 to MP-2019.

•

The assumed spouse age difference was changed from two years older for females to one year
older.

•

The assumed number of married male new retirees electing the 100.00 percent joint and
survivor option changed from 35.00 percent to 45.00 percent. The assumed number of married
female new retirees electing the 100.00 percent joint and survivor option changed from
15.00 percent to 30.00 percent. The corresponding number of married new retirees electing the
life annuity option was adjusted accordingly.

CHANGES IN PLAN PROVISIONS
•

Augmentation for current privatized members was reduced to 2.00 percent for the period July 1,
2020 through December 31, 2023, and zero percent thereafter. Augmentation was eliminated
for privatizations occurring after June 30, 2020.

2. PEPFF
CHANGES IN ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS
•

The mortality projection scale was changed from MP-2018 to MP-2019.
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NOTE 8 – DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN – STATE-WIDE (CONTINUED)
The Minnesota State Board of Investment, which manages the investments of the PERA, prepares an
analysis of the reasonableness on a regular basis of the long-term expected rate of return using a
building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future rates of return are developed for
each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce an expected long-term rate of return by
weighting the expected future rates of return by the target asset allocation percentages. The target allocation
and best-estimates of geometric real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the
following table:
Target
Allocation

Asset Class
Domestic stocks
International stocks
Bonds (fixed income)
Alternative assets (private market)
Cash

Long-Term Expected
Real Rate of Return

35.50 %
17.50
20.00
25.00
2.00

Total

5.10
5.30
0.75
5.90
–

%
%
%
%
%

100.00 %

F. Discount Rate
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability in 2020 was 7.50 percent. The projection of
cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members and
employers will be made at rates set in Minnesota Statutes. Based on these assumptions, the fiduciary net
positions of the GERF and the PEPFF were projected to be available to make all projected future benefit
payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan
investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.
G. Pension Liability Sensitivity
The following table presents the City’s proportionate share of the net pension liability for all plans it
participates in, calculated using the discount rate disclosed in the preceding paragraph, as well as what the
City’s proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate
1 percentage point lower or 1 percentage point higher than the current discount rate:
1% Decrease in
Discount Rate
6.50%

1% Increase in
Discount Rate
8.50%

Discount Rate
7.50%

City’s proportionate share of the
GERF net pension liability

$

5,150,230

$

3,213,565

$

1,615,972

City’s proportionate share of the
PEPFF net pension liability

$

2,658,703

$

1,333,924

$

237,902

H. Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Detailed information about each pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in a separately issued
PERA financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information. That
report may be obtained on the PERA website at www.mnpera.org; by writing to the PERA at
60 Empire Drive, Suite 200, St. Paul, Minnesota 55103; or by calling (651) 296-7460 or (800) 652-9026.
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NOTE 9 – DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PENSION PLAN – FIRE RELIEF ASSOCIATION
The City contributes to the Wayzata Fire Department Relief Association (the Association), a
single-employer defined contribution lump sum service pension plan. Volunteer firefighters of the City are
members of the Association and its pension plan. Partial vesting of retirement benefits occurs at year 10
and continues based on years of service up to 20 years of service, at which time participants are 100 percent
vested for retirement benefit purposes. On termination of service, a vested participant receives a single,
lump sum distribution.
The City passes through state aids allocated to the plan in accordance with Minnesota Statutes. The City’s
payroll for members of the Association for the year ended December 31, 2020 was $80,199, compared to a
total city payroll of $5,209,825. The Association issues a publicly available financial report, which may be
obtained at Wayzata City Hall.
Minnesota Statutes, Chapters 424 and 424A, authorize pension benefits for volunteer fire relief
associations. A firefighter who completes as least 20 years as an active member of the fire department and
the Association, after age 50, is entitled to a full service pension upon retirement.
Total contributions to the Association’s Pension Fund for 2020 amounted to $122,413, of which $75,413
was state aid passed through the City for the Association. The contributions are apportioned to the accounts
of active members in equal shares.
NOTE 10 – OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) PLAN
A. Plan Description
The City provides post-employment insurance benefits to certain eligible employees through its OPEB
Plan, a single-employer defined benefit plan administered by the City. All post-employment benefits are
based on contractual agreements with employee groups. Eligibility for these benefits is based on years of
service and/or minimum age requirements. These contractual agreements do not include any specific
contribution or funding requirements. The Plan does not issue a publicly available financial report. No plan
assets are accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB Statement No. 75.
B. Benefits Provided
All retirees of the City upon retirement have the option under state law to continue their medical insurance
coverage through the City. For police or firefighters disabled in the line-of-duty, Minnesota Statutes require
the City to continue to pay the employer contribution toward health insurance coverage for the police officer
or firefighter and their spouse, if the spouse was covered at the time of disability, until age 65. Retirees not
eligible for these city-paid premium benefits must pay the full city premium rate for their coverage.
The City is legally required to include any retirees for whom it provides health insurance coverage in the
same insurance pool as its active employees until the retiree reaches Medicare eligibility, whether the
premiums are paid by the City or the retiree. Consequently, participating retirees are considered to receive
a secondary benefit known as an “implicit rate subsidy.” This benefit relates to the assumption that the
retiree is receiving a more favorable premium rate than they would otherwise be able to obtain if purchasing
insurance on their own, due to being included in the same pool with the City’s younger and statistically
healthier active employees.
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NOTE 10 – OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) PLAN (CONTINUED)
C. Contributions
The required contribution is based on projected pay-as-you-go financing requirements, with additional
amounts to prefund benefits as determined periodically by the City. The City’s current year required
pay-as-you-go contributions to finance the benefits described in the previous section totaled $18,227.
D. Membership
Membership in the Plan consisted of the following as of the latest actuarial valuation:
Retirees and beneficiaries receiving benefits
Active plan members
Total members

5
50
55

E. Total OPEB Liability of the City
The City’s total OPEB liability of $342,219 was measured as of December 31, 2019 and was determined
by an actuarial valuation as of January 1, 2020.
F. Actuarial Methods and Assumptions
The total OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of January 1, 2020, using the entry-age
normal level percent of pay method, and the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included
in the measurement, unless otherwise specified:
Discount rate
Inflation rate
Payroll growth rate

2.74%
2.50%
3.25%

The discount rate used was decreased to 2.74 percent from 4.09 percent used in the previous valuation. The
payroll growth rate was decreased to 3.25 percent from 3.50 percent used in the previous valuation.
Mortality rates used in the valuation, as listed below, are based on the PERA plan of which the employee,
retiree, or beneficiary is a participant. All mortality rates in the current valuation were updated to use
RP-2014 mortality tables adjusted for white collar and/or mortality improvements using projection
Scale MP-2018 from a base year of 2014, from the RP-2014 mortality tables adjusted for white collar and/or
mortality improvements using projection Scale MP-2016 from a base year of 2014 used in the previous
valuation.
Coordinated
Healthy Pre-Retirementt
RP-2014 Employee Mortality Table adjusted for white collar and mortality improvements using
projection Scale MP-2018, from a base year of 2014. Rates are set forward one year for males and set
back one year for females.
Healthy Post-Retirement
RP-2014 Healthy Annuitant Mortality Table, adjusted for white collar and mortality improvements
using projection Scale MP-2018, from a base year of 2014. Rates are set forward two years for males.
Female rates are multiplied by a factor of 0.90.
Disabled
RP-2014 Disabled Mortality Table, adjusted for mortality improvements using projection
Scale MP-2018, from a base year of 2014. Rates are set forward one year for males and set forward
six years for females.
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NOTE 10 – OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) PLAN (CONTINUED)
Police and Fire, Correctional
Healthy Pre-Retirement
RP-2014 Employee Generational Mortality Table projected with Mortality Improvement
Scale MP-2018, from a base year of 2006.
Healthy Post-Retirement
RP-2014 Annuitant Generational Mortality Table projected with Mortality Improvement
Scale MP-2018, from a base year of 2006. Male rates are adjusted by a factor of 0.96.
Disabled
RP-2014 Annuitant Generational Mortality Table projected Mortality Improvement Scale MP-2018,
from a base year of 2006. Male rates are adjusted by a factor of 0.96.
G. Changes in the Total OPEB Liability
Total OPEB
Liability
Beginning balance – January 1, 2020

$ 419,626

Changes for the year
Service cost
Interest
Differences between expected and actual experience
Changes in assumptions
Benefit payments – employer-financed
Total net changes

30,537
18,187
(144,604)
29,464
(10,991)
(77,407)

Ending balance – December 31, 2020

$ 342,219

H. Total OPEB Liability Sensitivity to Discount and Healthcare Cost Trend Rate Changes
The following presents the total OPEB liability of the City, as well as what the City’s total OPEB liability
would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower or 1 percentage point
higher than the current discount rate:
1% Decrease in
Discount Rate

Discount Rate

1.74%

OPEB discount rate
Total OPEB liability

$

1% Increase in
Discount Rate
3.74%

2.74%

365,229

$

342,219

$

320,198

The following presents the total OPEB liability of the City, as well as what the City’s total OPEB liability
would be if it were calculated using medical healthcare cost trend rates that are 1 percentage point lower or
1 percentage point higher than the current medical healthcare cost trend rates:
1% Decrease in
Medical Trend Rate
6.67% decreasing to
4.00% over 8 years

OPEB medical trend rate

Total OPEB liability

Medical Trend Rate

$

308,541

1% Increase in
Medical Trend Rate

7.67% decreasing to
5.00% over 8 years
$

342,219

8.67% decreasing to
6.00% over 8 years
$

381,155
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NOTE 10 – OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) PLAN (CONTINUED)
I. OPEB Expense and Related Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
For 2020, the City recognized OPEB expense of $42,089. As of year-end, the City reported deferred
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB from the following sources:
Deferred
Outflows
of Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience
Changes in actuarial assumptions
Contributions subsequent to the
measurement date

$

–
30,689

Deferred
Inflows
of Resources
$

–

18,227
$

48,916

125,590
12,881

$

138,471

Deferred outflows of resources totaling $18,227 related to OPEB resulting from the City’s contributions to
the plan subsequent to the measurement date and will be recognized as a reduction of the total OPEB
liability in the year ending December 31, 2021. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources
related to OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows:
Year Ending
June 30,

OPEB Expense
Amount

2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
Thereafter

$
$
$
$
$
$

(16,296)
(16,296)
(16,296)
(16,296)
(16,492)
(26,106)

NOTE 11 – OPERATING LEASES
A. Antenna and Ground Space Lease
The City leases space on its new monopole and the ground surface located under the pole to three companies
that use the space for their antennas and equipment. The leases are five-year leases with three additional
five-year renewal periods and are cancellable by either party by giving 60 days’ written notice. In 2019,
new agreements were negotiated with each of the tenants using a base dollar amount. The lease amount is
adjusted each January 1 by the greatest of 5 percent, or the percentage increase of the Consumer Price
Index. Antenna and ground space rent received in 2020 totaled $281,930. The monopole is located on
Wayzata School District property, which the City leases for an annual amount of $24,000.
B. Library Lease
The City leases space to Hennepin County, which expired and was renegotiated on April 30, 2018, with an
automatic renewal for the next 10 years. The initial negotiated base rate is $65,915 with a 2.5 percent
increase each year for four years, and a 3.0 percent increase for the last five years. The lease is cancelable
by either party by giving 180 days’ written notice. The cost of the building being leased is $4,253,125, and
the accumulated depreciation is $1,531,125 as of December 31, 2020. A portion of the base rent
(25.0 percent) reimburses the City for building and grounds operating costs. The library pays for its own
utility service. Library rent of $68,689 was received in 2020.
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NOTE 12 – TAX ABATEMENT AGREEMENTS
A. Primary Government
Boulevard Apartments
The City entered into a tax abatement agreement on December 7, 2010, with a developer in which the
developer incurs costs for property improvements. In return, the City will reimburse the developer for some
costs as the City collects future taxes paid by said developer for the increased property value and tax
capacity related to the economic development. The agreement has a maximum return to the developer of
$11,040 over the life of the agreement (15 years). The agreement was negotiated under state law (Minnesota
Statutes § 469.1813). The taxes abated during the fiscal year are noted below.
Village Apartments
The City entered into a tax abatement agreement on June 20, 2006, with a developer in which the developer
incurs costs for property improvements. In return, the City will reimburse the developer for some costs as
the City collects future taxes paid by said developer for the increased property value and tax capacity related
to the economic development. The agreement has a maximum return to the developer of $14,400 over the
life of the agreement (15 years), and $736 per year. The agreement was negotiated under state law
(Minnesota Statutes § 469.1813). The taxes abated during the fiscal year are:
Amount of
Taxes Abated
During the
Fiscal Year
Boulevard Apartments
Village Apartments

$
$

1,026
462

B. Component Unit
The HRA entered into a tax increment financing agreement with a developer in which the developer incurs
costs for property improvements. In return, the City will reimburse the developer for some costs as the City
collects future tax increment for the increased property value and tax capacity related to the economic
development. The agreement has a maximum return to the developer of $22,910,879 over the life of the
agreement (maximum 25 years). The agreement was negotiated under state law (Minnesota Statutes
§ 469.175). The calculation of taxes abated during the fiscal year is noted below:
Original
Tax Capacity
Rate
Tax Increment District 5 (Bay Center)

20.308%

Captured
Tax
Capacity
$

3,193,708

Amount of
Taxes Abated
During the
Fiscal Year
$

648,578

NOTE 13 – TRANSACTIONS BETWEEN PRIMARY GOVERNMENT AND COMPONENT UNIT
The City conducts routine transactions with its component unit for services provided. The City provides
administrative and financial services for the HRA’s activities. The HRA contributed $45,000 to the City
during 2020 for these administrative services, $496,348 for debt service costs, and $1,071,949 for lakefront
improvement projects.
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NOTE 14 – COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
A. Legal Claims
The City generally follows the practice of recording liabilities resulting from claims and legal actions only
when they become fixed or determinable in amount. Management does not anticipate any significant losses
that would not be covered by insurance.
B. Federal and State Receivables
Amounts recorded or receivable from federal and state agencies are subject to agency audit and adjustment.
Any disallowed claims, including amounts already collected, may constitute a liability of the applicable
funds. The amount, if any, of claims which may be disallowed by the grantor agencies cannot be determined
at this time, although the City expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.
C. Tax Increment Districts
The City’s tax increment districts are subject to review by the Office of the State Auditor. Any disallowed
claims or misuse of tax increments could become a liability of the applicable fund. Management has
indicated that it is not aware of any instances of noncompliance, which would have a material effect on the
financial statements.
D. Construction Commitments
The City is committed to various construction contracts for improvement of city property. The City’s
remaining commitment under these contracts was approximately $1,436,400 at year-end.
E. Conduit Debt Obligations
The City entered into a Cooperative Agreement with the City of Minnetonka to issue a Housing Revenue
Note for $6,250,000. Conduit debt obligations are certain limited-obligation revenue bonds or similar debt
instruments issued for the express purpose of providing capital financing for a specific third party. The City
of Minnetonka has issued revenue bonds to provide financial assistance to private-sector entities for projects
deemed to be in the public interest. Although these bonds bear the name of the City of Minnetonka, the
City, the state, nor any political subdivision thereof is obligated in any manner for repayment of the bonds.
Accordingly, the bonds are not reported as liabilities in the accompanying financial statements.
In addition, the City entered into a Cooperative Agreement with Hammer Residence to issue a Housing
Revenue Note for $5,500,000. The outstanding balance at December 31, 2020 is $1,240,455. The City, the
state, nor any political subdivision thereof is obligated in any manner for repayment of the bonds.
Accordingly, the bonds are not reported as liabilities in the accompanying financial statements.
F. COVID-19
The COVID-19 pandemic had a significant impact on city operations in 2020, causing volatility in the
economy and financial markets, presenting numerous operational challenges, and creating additional
personal and supply costs. Significant uncertainty remains about the breadth and duration of the pandemic,
but it is expected to continue to impact city operations through the 2021 fiscal year and beyond. At this
time, the City is unable to determine what effect this may have on its future financial condition and
operations.
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CITY OF WAYZATA
PERA – General Employees Retirement Fund
Schedule of City’s and Nonemployer Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability
Year Ended December 31, 2020

City Fiscal
Year-End Date

PERA Fiscal
Year-End Date
(Measurement
Date)

12/31/2015
12/31/2016
12/31/2017
12/31/2018
12/31/2019
12/31/2020

06/30/2015
06/30/2016
06/30/2017
06/30/2018
06/30/2019
06/30/2020

City’s
Proportion
of the Net
Pension
Liability
0.0492%
0.0471%
0.0496%
0.0516%
0.0519%
0.0536%

City’s
Proportionate
Share of the
Net Pension
Liability

City’s
Proportionate
Share of the
State of
Minnesota’s
Proportionate
Share of the
Net Pension
Liability

$
$
$
$
$
$

$
$
$
$
$
$

2,549,799
3,824,286
3,166,431
2,862,556
2,869,435
3,213,565

–
49,931
39,785
93,910
89,329
99,179

Proportionate
Share of the
Net Pension
Liability and
the City’s
Share of the
State of
Minnesota’s
Share of the
Net Pension
Liability
$
$
$
$
$
$

2,549,799
3,874,217
3,206,216
2,956,466
2,958,764
3,312,744

City’s
Covered
Payroll
$
$
$
$
$
$

2,889,952
2,907,012
3,192,942
3,413,642
3,668,748
3,820,117

City’s
Proportionate
Share of the
Net Pension
Liability as a
Percentage of
Covered
Payroll

Plan Fiduciary
Net Position
as a
Percentage
of the Total
Pension
Liability

88.23%
131.55%
99.17%
83.86%
78.21%
84.12%

78.20%
68.90%
75.90%
79.50%
80.20%
79.10%

PERA – General Employees Retirement Fund
Schedule of City Contributions
Year Ended December 31, 2020

City Fiscal
Year-End Date
12/31/2015
12/31/2016
12/31/2017
12/31/2018
12/31/2019
12/31/2020

Statutorily
Required
Contributions

Contributions
in Relation to
the Statutorily
Required
Contributions

Contribution
Deficiency
(Excess)

$
$
$
$
$
$

$
$
$
$
$
$

$
$
$
$
$
$

221,233
226,098
245,260
267,307
288,235
271,112

221,233
226,098
245,260
267,307
288,235
271,112

–
–
–
–
–
–

Covered
Payroll
$
$
$
$
$
$

2,949,778
3,014,640
3,270,133
3,564,093
3,842,870
3,609,248

Contributions
as a
Percentage
of Covered
Payroll
7.50%
7.50%
7.50%
7.50%
7.50%
7.51%

Note: The City implemented GASB Statement No. 68 in fiscal 2015 (using a June 30, 2015 measurement date). This schedule is intended to present
10-year trend information. Additional years will be added as they become available.
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CITY OF WAYZATA
PERA – Public Employees Police and Fire Fund
Schedule of City’s and Nonemployer Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability
Year Ended December 31, 2020

City Fiscal
Year-End
Date

PERA Fiscal
Year-End Date
(Measurement
Date)

12/31/2015
12/31/2016
12/31/2017
12/31/2018
12/31/2019
12/31/2020

06/30/2015
06/30/2016
06/30/2017
06/30/2018
06/30/2019
06/30/2020

City’s
Proportion
of the Net
Pension
Liability
0.1020%
0.1020%
0.1010%
0.0981%
0.1010%
0.1012%

City’s
Proportionate
Share of the
Net Pension
Liability

City’s
Proportionate
Share of the
State of
Minnesota’s
Proportionate
Share of the
Net Pension
Liability

$
$
$
$
$
$

$
$
$
$
$
$

1,158,959
4,093,437
1,363,620
1,045,645
1,075,247
1,333,924

–
–
–
–
–
31,430

Proportionate
Share of the
Net Pension
Liability and
the City’s
Share of the
State of
Minnesota’s
Share of the
Net Pension
Liability
$
$
$
$
$
$

1,158,959
4,093,437
1,363,620
1,045,645
1,075,247
1,365,354

City’s
Covered
Payroll
$
$
$
$
$
$

936,215
982,601
1,033,368
1,033,534
1,065,638
1,143,195

City’s
Proportionate
Share of the
Net Pension
Liability as a
Percentage of
Covered
Payroll

Plan Fiduciary
Net Position
as a
Percentage
of the Total
Pension
Liability

123.79%
416.59%
131.96%
101.17%
100.90%
116.68%

86.60%
63.90%
85.40%
88.80%
89.30%
87.20%

PERA – Public Employees Police and Fire Fund
Schedule of City Contributions
Year Ended December 31, 2020

City Fiscal
Year-End
Date

Statutorily
Required
Contributions

Contributions
in Relation to
the Statutorily
Required
Contributions

12/31/2015
12/31/2016
12/31/2017
12/31/2018
12/31/2019
12/31/2020

$
$
$
$
$
$

$
$
$
$
$
$

153,685
164,719
164,989
173,672
183,640
208,688

153,685
164,719
164,989
173,672
183,640
208,688

Contribution
Deficiency
(Excess)
$
$
$
$
$
$

–
–
–
–
–
–

Covered
Payroll
$
$
$
$
$
$

948,675
1,016,784
1,018,451
1,072,049
1,085,584
1,179,002

Contributions
as a
Percentage
of Covered
Payroll
16.20%
16.20%
16.20%
16.20%
16.92%
17.70%

Note: The City implemented GASB Statement No. 68 in fiscal 2015 (using a June 30, 2015 measurement date). This schedule is intended to present
10-year trend information. Additional years will be added as they become available.
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CITY OF WAYZATA
Other Post-Employment Benefits Plan
Schedule of Changes in the City’s Total
OPEB Liability and Related Ratios
Year Ended December 31, 2020

2018
Total OPEB liability
Service cost
Interest
Differences between expected
and actual experience
Changes of assumptions
Benefit payments
Net change in total OPEB liability

$

Total OPEB liability – beginning of year

33,826
15,107

37,028
14,958

$

30,537
18,187

–
(17,311)
(25,706)
8,969

(144,604)
29,464
(10,991)
(77,407)

378,218

410,657

419,626

$

Covered-employee payroll

$ 3,300,000

Note:

$

2020

–
8,276
(24,770)
32,439

Total OPEB liability – end of year

Total OPEB liability as a percentage
of covered-employee payroll

2019

410,657

12.44%

$

419,626

$ 3,400,000

12.34%

$

342,219

$ 3,800,000

9.01%

The City implemented GASB Statement No. 75 in fiscal 2018. This schedule is intended to present 10-year trend
information. Additional years will be added as they become available.
-58-

Page 190 of 255

CITY OF WAYZATA
Notes to Required Supplementary Information
December 31, 2020

PERA – GENERAL EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT FUND
2020

CHANGES IN ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

•
•
•

2020

CHANGES IN PLAN PROVISIONS
•

2019

Augmentation for current privatized members was reduced to 2.00 percent for the period July 1,
2020 through December 31, 2023, and zero percent thereafter. Augmentation was eliminated
for privatizations occurring after June 30, 2020.

CHANGES IN ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS
•

2019

The price inflation assumption was decreased from 2.50 percent to 2.25 percent.
The payroll growth assumption was decreased from 3.25 percent to 3.00 percent.
Assumed salary increase rates were changed as recommended in the June 30, 2019 experience
study. The net effect is assumed rates that average 0.25 percent less than previous rates.
Assumed rates of retirement were changed as recommended in the June 30, 2019 experience
study. The changes result in more unreduced (normal) retirements and slightly fewer
Rule of 90 and early retirements.
Assumed rates of termination were changed as recommended in the June 30, 2019 experience
study. The new rates are based on service and are generally lower than the previous rates for
years two through five, and slightly higher thereafter.
Assumed rates of disability were changed as recommended in the June 30, 2019 experience
study. The change results in fewer predicted disability retirements for males and females.
The base mortality table for healthy annuitants and employees was changed from the RP-2014
Table to the Pub-2010 General Mortality Table, with adjustments. The base mortality table for
disabled annuitants was changed from the RP-2014 Disabled Annuitant Mortality Table to the
Pub-2010 General/Teacher Disabled Annuitant Mortality Table, with adjustments.
The mortality improvement scale was changed from MP-2018 to MP-2019.
The assumed spouse age difference was changed from two years older for females to one year
older.
The assumed number of married male new retirees electing the 100.00 percent joint and
survivor option changed from 35.00 percent to 45.00 percent. The assumed number of married
female new retirees electing the 100.00 percent joint and survivor option changed from
15.00 percent to 30.00 percent. The corresponding number of married new retirees electing the
life annuity option was adjusted accordingly.

The mortality projection scale was changed from MP-2017 to MP-2018.

CHANGES IN PLAN PROVISIONS
•

The employer supplemental contribution was changed prospectively, decreasing from
$31.0 million to $21.0 million per year. The state’s special funding contribution was changed
prospectively, requiring $16.0 million due per year through 2031.
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CITY OF WAYZATA
Notes to Required Supplementary Information (continued)
December 31, 2020

PERA – GENERAL EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT FUND (CONTINUED)
2018

CHANGES IN ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS
•
•

2018

CHANGES IN PLAN PROVISIONS
•
•
•
•
•

•
•
2017

The augmentation adjustment in early retirement factors is eliminated over a five-year period
starting July 1, 2019, resulting in actuarial equivalence after June 30, 2024.
Interest credited on member contributions decreased from 4.00 percent to 3.00 percent,
beginning July 1, 2018.
Deferred augmentation was changed to zero percent, effective January 1, 2019. Augmentation
that has already accrued for deferred members will still apply.
Contribution stabilizer provisions were repealed.
Post-retirement benefit increases were changed from 1.00 percent per year with a provision to
increase to 2.50 percent upon attainment of 90.00 percent funding ratio to 50.00 percent of the
Social Security Cost of Living Adjustment, not less than 1.00 percent and not more than
1.50 percent, beginning January 1, 2019.
For retirements on or after January 1, 2024, the first benefit increase is delayed until the retiree
reaches normal retirement age; does not apply to Rule of 90 retirees, disability benefit
recipients, or survivors.
Actuarial equivalent factors were updated to reflect revised mortality and interest assumptions.

CHANGES IN ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS
•

•
2017

The mortality projection scale was changed from MP-2015 to MP-2017.
The assumed benefit increase was changed from 1.00 percent per year through 2044, and
2.50 percent per year thereafter, to 1.25 percent per year.

The Combined Service Annuity (CSA) loads were changed from 0.80 percent for active
members and 60.00 percent for vested and nonvested deferred members. The revised CSA
loads are now zero percent for active member liability, 15.00 percent for vested deferred
member liability, and 3.00 percent for nonvested deferred member liability.
The assumed post-retirement benefit increase rate was changed from 1.00 percent per year for
all years, to 1.00 percent per year through 2044, and 2.50 percent per year thereafter.

CHANGES IN PLAN PROVISIONS
•
•

The state’s contribution for the Minneapolis Employees Retirement Fund equals $16.0 million
in 2017 and 2018, and $6.0 million thereafter.
The Employer Supplemental Contribution for the Minneapolis Employees Retirement Fund
changed from $21.0 million to $31.0 million in calendar years 2019 to 2031. The state’s
contribution changed from $16.0 million to $6.0 million in calendar years 2019 to 2031.
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CITY OF WAYZATA
Notes to Required Supplementary Information (continued)
December 31, 2020

PERA – GENERAL EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT FUND (CONTINUED)
2016

CHANGES IN ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS
•
•
•

2015

CHANGES IN ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS
•

2015

The assumed post-retirement benefit increase rate was changed from 1.00 percent per year
through 2035 and 2.50 percent per year thereafter, to 1.00 percent per year for all years.
The assumed investment return was changed from 7.90 percent to 7.50 percent. The single
discount rate changed from 7.90 percent to 7.50 percent.
Other assumptions were changed pursuant to the experience study June 30, 2015. The assumed
future salary increases, payroll growth, and inflation were decreased by 0.25 percent to
3.25 percent for payroll growth, and 2.50 percent for inflation.

The assumed post-retirement benefit increase rate was changed from 1.00 percent per year
through 2030 and 2.50 percent per year thereafter, to 1.00 percent per year through 2035, and
2.50 percent per year thereafter.

CHANGES IN PLAN PROVISIONS
•

On January 1, 2015, the Minneapolis Employees Retirement Fund was merged into the General
Employees Fund, which increased the total pension liability by $1.1 billion and increased the
fiduciary plan net position by $892.0 million. Upon consolidation, state and employer
contributions were revised; the state’s contribution of $6.0 million, which meets the special
funding situation definition, was due September 2015.

PERA – PUBLIC EMPLOYEES POLICE AND FIRE FUND
2020

CHANGES IN ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS
•

2019

CHANGES IN ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS
•

2018

The mortality projection scale was changed from MP-2018 to MP-2019.

The mortality projection scale was changed from MP-2017 to MP-2018.

CHANGES IN ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS
•

The mortality projection scale was changed from MP-2016 to MP-2017.
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CITY OF WAYZATA
Notes to Required Supplementary Information (continued)
December 31, 2020

PERA – PUBLIC EMPLOYEES POLICE AND FIRE FUND (CONTINUED)
2018

CHANGES IN PLAN PROVISIONS
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

2017

Post-retirement benefit increases were changed to 1.00 percent for all years, with no trigger.
An end date of July 1, 2048 was added to the existing $9.0 million state contribution.
New annual state aid will equal $4.5 million in fiscal years 2019 and 2020, and $9.0 million
thereafter, until the plan reaches 100.00 percent funding, or July 1, 2048, if earlier.
Member contributions were changed from 10.80 percent to 11.30 percent of pay, effective
January 1, 2019, and 11.80 percent of pay, effective January 1, 2020.
Employer contributions were changed from 16.20 percent to 16.95 percent of pay, effective
January 1, 2019, and 17.70 percent of pay, effective January 1, 2020.
Interest credited on member contributions decreased from 4.00 percent to 3.00 percent,
beginning July 1, 2018.
Deferred augmentation was changed to zero percent, effective January 1, 2019. Augmentation
that has already accrued for deferred members will still apply.
Actuarial equivalent factors were updated to reflect revised mortality and interest assumptions.

CHANGES IN ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS
•
•
•
•

•
•
•
•
•
•

Assumed salary increases were changed as recommended in the June 30, 2016 experience
study. The net effect is proposed rates that average 0.34 percent lower than the previous rates.
Assumed rates of retirement were changed, resulting in fewer retirements.
The CSA load was 30.00 percent for vested and nonvested deferred members. The CSA has
been changed to 33.00 percent for vested members, and 2.00 percent for nonvested members.
The base mortality table for healthy annuitants was changed from the RP-2000 Fully
Generational Table to the RP-2014 Fully Generational Table (with a base year of 2006), with
male rates adjusted by a factor of 0.96. The mortality improvement scale was changed from
Scale AA to Scale MP-2016. The base mortality table for disabled annuitants was changed
from the RP-2000 Disabled Mortality Table to the mortality tables assumed for healthy retirees.
Assumed termination rates were decreased to 3.00 percent for the first three years of service.
Rates beyond the select period of three years were adjusted, resulting in more expected
terminations overall.
Assumed percentage of married female members was decreased from 65.00 percent to
60.00 percent.
Assumed age difference was changed from separate assumptions for male members (wives
assumed to be three years younger) and female members (husbands assumed to be four years
older) to the assumption that males are two years older than females.
The assumed percentage of female members electing joint and survivor annuities was
increased.
The assumed post-retirement benefit increase rate was changed from 1.00 percent for all years,
to 1.00 percent per year through 2064, and 2.50 percent thereafter.
The single discount rate was changed from 5.60 percent per annum to 7.50 percent per annum.
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CITY OF WAYZATA
Notes to Required Supplementary Information (continued)
December 31, 2020

PERA – PUBLIC EMPLOYEES POLICE AND FIRE FUND (CONTINUED)
2016

CHANGES IN ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS
•
•
•
•

2015

CHANGES IN ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS
•

2015

The assumed post-retirement benefit increase rate was changed from 1.00 percent per year
through 2037, and 2.50 percent per year thereafter, to 1.00 percent per year for all future years.
The assumed investment return was changed from 7.90 percent to 7.50 percent.
The single discount rate changed from 7.90 percent to 5.60 percent.
The assumed future salary increases, payroll growth, and inflation were decreased by
0.25 percent to 3.25 percent for payroll growth, and 2.50 percent for inflation.

The assumed post-retirement benefit increase rate was changed from 1.00 percent per year
through 2030, and 2.50 percent per year thereafter, to 1.00 percent per year through 2037, and
2.50 percent per year thereafter.

CHANGES IN PLAN PROVISIONS
•

The post-retirement benefit increase to be paid after attainment of the 90.00 percent funding
threshold was changed from inflation up to 2.50 percent, to a fixed rate of 2.50 percent.

OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS PLAN
2020

CHANGES IN ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS
•
•
•

2019

CHANGES IN ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS
•

2018

The discount rate was changed from 4.09 percent to 2.74 percent.
The payroll growth rate was changed from 3.50 percent to 3.25 percent.
The mortality projection scale was changed from MP-2016 to MP-2018.

The discount rate was changed from 3.44 percent to 4.09 percent.

CHANGES IN ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS
•

The discount rate was changed from 4.50 percent to 3.44 percent.
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CITY OF WAYZATA
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
Combining Balance Sheet
December 31, 2020

Assets
Cash and investments
Receivables
Interest
Accounts
Due from component unit
Advances to other funds
Total assets
Liabilities
Accounts and contracts payable
Due to other governments
Deposits payable

Special Revenue

Capital Projects

$

$

–
17,852
–
–

7,658,363

$

999
74
59,898
11,500

7,786,358
999
17,926
59,898
11,500

$

145,847

$

7,730,834

$

7,876,681

$

324
–
–

$

41,332
1,874
10

$

41,656
1,874
10

Total liabilities
Fund balances
Restricted
Committed
Assigned
Total fund balances
Total liabilities and fund balances

127,995

Total

$

324

43,216

43,540

18,189
127,334
–

605,186
–
7,082,432

623,375
127,334
7,082,432

145,523

7,687,618

7,833,141

145,847

$

7,730,834

$

7,876,681
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CITY OF WAYZATA
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
Combining Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Year Ended December 31, 2020

Special Revenue
Revenue
Taxes
Property taxes
Franchise fees
Charges for services
Special assessments
Investment earnings
Intergovernmental
Miscellaneous
Contributions and donations
Refunds and reimbursements

$

Total revenue
Expenditures
Current
General government
Public safety
Culture and recreation
Miscellaneous
Capital outlay
General government
Public safety
Public works
Culture and recreation
Total expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenue
over expenditures
Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in
Transfers (out)
Total other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balances
Fund balances
Beginning of year
End of year

–
71,931
9,871
–
3,001
–

Capital Projects

$

$

222,789
71,931
590,664
1,165
141,479
2,175

20,716
–

514,301
73,479

535,017
73,479

105,519

1,533,180

1,638,699

75,081
31,432
–
8,535

–
–
110,495
–

75,081
31,432
110,495
8,535

–
–
–
–

541,642
106,568
1,024,384
89,730

541,642
106,568
1,024,384
89,730

115,048

1,872,819

1,987,867

(9,529)

(339,639)

(349,168)

–
(5,000)

949,546
(51,000)

949,546
(56,000)

(5,000)

898,546

893,546

(14,529)

558,907

544,378

7,128,711

7,288,763

160,052
$

222,789
–
580,793
1,165
138,478
2,175

Total

145,523

$

7,687,618

$

7,833,141
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CITY OF WAYZATA
Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds
Combining Balance Sheet
December 31, 2020

Assets
Cash and investments
Receivables
Accounts
Total assets
Liabilities
Accounts and contracts payable

$

235

Cemetery

Cable TV

26,491

$

–

31,010

236/240
Police
Forfeiture

$

239
Comprehensive
Plan

18,189

$

–

17,852

52,305

Totals

$

–

127,995
17,852

$

26,491

$

48,862

$

18,189

$

52,305

$

145,847

$

–

$

324

$

–

$

–

$

324

Fund balances
Restricted
Committed
Total fund balances
Total liabilities and
fund balances

232

$

–
26,491

–
48,538

18,189
–

–
52,305

18,189
127,334

26,491

48,538

18,189

52,305

145,523

26,491

$

48,862

$

18,189

$

52,305

$

145,847
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CITY OF WAYZATA
Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds
Combining Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Year Ended December 31, 2020

Revenue
Taxes
Franchise fees
Charges for services
Investment earnings
Miscellaneous
Contributions and donations

$

Total revenue
Expenditures
Current
General government
Public safety
Miscellaneous
Total expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of
revenue over expenditures
Other financing (uses)
Transfers (out)

235

Cemetery

Cable TV

–
8,435
502

$

Fund balances
Beginning of year
$

236/240
Police
Forfeiture

71,931
–
851

$

239
Comprehensive
Plan

–
1,436
859

$

–
–
789

Totals

$

71,931
9,871
3,001

–

–

–

20,716

20,716

8,937

72,782

2,295

21,505

105,519

8,539
–
–

66,542
–
–

–
31,432
–

–
–
8,535

75,081
31,432
8,535

8,539

66,542

31,432

8,535

115,048

398

6,240

(29,137)

12,970

(9,529)

–

(5,000)

–

Net change in fund balances

End of year

232

–

(5,000)

398

1,240

(29,137)

12,970

(14,529)

26,093

47,298

47,326

39,335

160,052

26,491

$

48,538

$

18,189

$

52,305

$

145,523
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CITY OF WAYZATA
Nonmajor Capital Projects Funds
Combining Balance Sheet
December 31, 2020

237
Fire
Department
Pull Tabs
Assets
Cash and investments
Receivables
Interest
Accounts
Due from component unit
Advances to other funds
Total assets
Liabilities
Accounts and contracts payable
Due to other governments
Deposits payable

$

290,038
–
–
–
–

404

408

Internally
Financed

Parks
and Trails

General
Improvement

440,473

$ 1,932,015

$ 1,373,733

–
74
–
–

–
–
–
–

653
–
39,164
–

$ 1,932,015

$ 1,413,550

$

290,038

$

440,547

$

–
–
–

$

–
–
–

Fund balances
Restricted
Assigned
Total fund balances
$

$

–
–
10

$

20,061
–
–

–

–

10

20,061

–
290,038

–
440,547

605,186
1,326,819

–
1,393,489

290,038

440,547

1,932,005

1,393,489

440,547

$ 1,932,015

$ 1,413,550

Total liabilities

Total liabilities and fund balances

$

401

290,038

$
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409

430

437

Equipment
Revolving

Street
Improvement

Community
Room/Library

$ 1,968,687

$ 1,303,435

$

–
–
–
–

–
–
–
11,500

$ 1,968,687

$ 1,314,935

$

$

–
–
–

20,593
1,874
–

Totals

349,982

$ 7,658,363

346
–
20,734
–

999
74
59,898
11,500

$

371,062

$ 7,730,834

$

678
–
–

$

41,332
1,874
10

22,467

–

678

43,216

–
1,946,220

–
1,314,935

–
370,384

605,186
7,082,432

1,946,220

1,314,935

370,384

7,687,618

$ 1,968,687

$ 1,314,935

371,062

$ 7,730,834

$
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CITY OF WAYZATA
Nonmajor Capital Projects Funds
Combining Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Year Ended December 31, 2020

237
Fire
Department
Pull Tabs
Revenue
Taxes
Property taxes
Charges for services
Special assessments
Investment earnings
Intergovernmental
Miscellaneous
Contributions and donations
Refunds and reimbursements

$

Total revenue

–
–
–
5,123
2,175

$

401

404

408

Internally
Financed

Parks
and Trails

General
Improvement

–
–
1,165
1,625
–

$

–
306,660
–
37,908
–

$

–
14,677
–
30,604
–

44,501
–

469,800
–

–
1,809

–
71,670

51,799

472,590

346,377

116,951

Expenditures
Current
Culture and recreation
Capital outlay
General government
Public safety
Public works
Culture and recreation

–

–

73,257

–

–
12,535
–
–

–
–
72,609
–

–
–
–
89,730

–
–
577,416
–

Total expenditures

12,535

72,609

162,987

577,416

Excess (deficiency) of revenue
over expenditures

39,264

399,981

183,390

(460,465)

–
–

–
–

35,566
(51,000)

200,000
–

–

–

(15,434)

200,000

39,264

399,981

167,956

(260,465)

250,774

40,566

1,764,049

1,653,954

440,547

$ 1,932,005

$ 1,393,489

Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in
Transfers (out)
Total other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balances
Fund balances
Beginning of year
End of year

$

290,038

$
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$

409

430

437

Equipment
Revolving

Street
Improvement

Community
Room/Library

$

$

–
–
–
33,177
–

222,789
211,260
–
22,123
–

–
48,196
–
7,918
–

Totals

$

222,789
580,793
1,165
138,478
2,175

–
–

–
–

–
–

514,301
73,479

33,177

456,172

56,114

1,533,180

–

–

37,238

110,495

541,642
94,033
165,171
–

–
–
209,188
–

–
–
–
–

541,642
106,568
1,024,384
89,730

800,846

209,188

37,238

1,872,819

(767,669)

246,984

18,876

(339,639)

560,980
–

153,000
–

–
–

949,546
(51,000)

560,980

153,000

–

898,546

(206,689)

399,984

18,876

558,907

2,152,909

914,951

351,508

7,128,711

$ 1,946,220

$ 1,314,935

370,384

$ 7,687,618

$

-71-

Page 205 of 255

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

Page 206 of 255

CITY OF WAYZATA
General Fund
Schedule of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances – Budget and Actual
Year Ended December 31, 2020
(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended December 31, 2019)

2020

2019

Budget
Original

Final

Actual

$ 4,544,363
85,000
4,629,363

$ 4,544,363
85,000
4,629,363

$ 4,483,073
86,086
4,569,159

Licenses and permits
Business
Nonbusiness
Total licenses and permits

237,810
379,500
617,310

237,810
379,500
617,310

Intergovernmental
State
Federal
Component unit
Total intergovernmental

230,600
–
–
230,600

Charges for services
General government
Public safety
Culture and recreation
Total charges for services

Revenue
Taxes
Property taxes
Franchise fees
Total taxes

Over (Under)
Budget

(61,290)
1,086
(60,204)

$ 4,300,610
85,108
4,385,718

203,080
521,477
724,557

(34,730)
141,977
107,247

239,301
437,125
676,426

230,600
–
–
230,600

228,534
355,531
45,000
629,065

(2,066)
355,531
45,000
398,465

230,846
–
30,000
260,846

356,000
438,750
23,600
818,350

356,000
438,750
23,600
818,350

496,529
404,243
23,943
924,715

140,529
(34,507)
343
106,365

374,790
419,674
23,407
817,871

Fines and forfeitures

91,000

91,000

56,402

(34,598)

77,810

Investment earnings

28,000

28,000

57,678

29,678

111,405

5,000

5,000

16,553

11,553

60,585

6,419,623

6,419,623

6,978,129

558,506

6,390,661

25,836
200
20,800
46,836

25,836
200
20,800
46,836

25,836
196
16,108
42,140

–
(4)
(4,692)
(4,696)

25,836
171
43,235
69,242

632,248
10,000
314,100
956,348

632,248
10,000
314,100
956,348

616,655
10,353
305,522
932,530

(15,593)
353
(8,578)
(23,818)

512,146
8,815
323,950
844,911

3,850
68,250
72,100

3,850
68,250
72,100

4,120
69,732
73,852

270
1,482
1,752

4,085
75,187
79,272

Miscellaneous
Total revenue
Expenditures
Current
General government
Mayor and council
Personnel services
Supplies
Other current expenditures
Total mayor and council
Administration and finance
Personnel services
Supplies
Other current expenditures
Total administration and finance
Assessing
Supplies
Other current expenditures
Total assessing
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CITY OF WAYZATA
General Fund
Schedule of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances – Budget and Actual (continued)
Year Ended December 31, 2020
(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended December 31, 2019)

2020

2019

Budget
Original
Expenditures (continued)
Current (continued)
General government (continued)
Planning and zoning
Personnel services
Supplies
Other current expenditures
Total planning and zoning

Final

Actual

Over (Under)
Budget

Actual

249,196
100
14,500
263,796

249,196
100
14,500
263,796

235,520
1
45,915
281,436

(13,676)
(99)
31,415
17,640

203,538
81
88,442
292,061

41,113
8,000
219,500
268,613

41,113
8,000
219,500
268,613

46,696
8,195
195,838
250,729

5,583
195
(23,662)
(17,884)

44,537
7,643
210,372
262,552

1,607,693

1,607,693

1,580,687

(27,006)

1,548,038

1,892,641
43,900
127,100
2,063,641

1,892,641
43,900
127,100
2,063,641

1,871,831
39,812
127,573
2,039,216

(20,810)
(4,088)
473
(24,425)

1,635,494
51,499
106,239
1,793,232

Fire protection
Personnel services
Supplies
Other current expenditures
Total fire protection

111,033
42,000
201,500
354,533

111,033
42,000
201,500
354,533

83,084
42,024
205,551
330,659

(27,949)
24
4,051
(23,874)

96,567
41,561
192,357
330,485

Building inspections
Personnel services
Supplies
Other current expenditures
Total building inspections

176,164
900
98,500
275,564

176,164
900
98,500
275,564

154,030
612
36,736
191,378

(22,134)
(288)
(61,764)
(84,186)

131,155
691
52,170
184,016

–
–
5,350
5,350

–
–
5,350
5,350

71,247
63,221
3,421
137,889

71,247
63,221
(1,929)
132,539

–
–
1,807
1,807

41,000

41,000

30,927

(10,073)

35,085

2,740,088

2,740,088

2,730,069

(10,019)

2,344,625

483,345
79,180
26,650
589,175

483,345
79,180
26,650
589,175

427,765
57,972
29,512
515,249

(55,580)
(21,208)
2,862
(73,926)

438,295
77,963
28,228
544,486

General government buildings
Personnel services
Supplies
Other current expenditures
Total general government buildings
Total general government
Public safety
Police protection
Personnel services
Supplies
Other current expenditures
Total police protection

Emergency management
Personnel services
Supplies
Other current expenditures
Total emergency management
Health inspections
Other current expenditures
Total public safety
Public works
Streets
Personnel services
Supplies
Other current expenditures
Total streets
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CITY OF WAYZATA
General Fund
Schedule of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances – Budget and Actual (continued)
Year Ended December 31, 2020
(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended December 31, 2019)

2020

2019

Budget
Original

Final

Actual

Over (Under)
Budget

Actual

Expenditures (continued)
Current (continued)
Public works (continued)
Street lighting
Supplies
Other current expenditures
Total street lighting

14,000
65,000
79,000

14,000
65,000
79,000

13,319
58,824
72,143

(681)
(6,176)
(6,857)

14,807
55,283
70,090

Engineering
Personnel services
Supplies
Other current expenditures
Total engineering

118,045
1,420
6,400
125,865

118,045
1,420
6,400
125,865

130,049
958
4,150
135,157

12,004
(462)
(2,250)
9,292

119,071
682
3,683
123,436

Total public works

794,040

794,040

722,549

(71,491)

738,012

Culture and recreation
Parks, recreation, and forestry
Personnel services
Supplies
Other current expenditures
Total culture and recreation

546,692
53,600
79,530
679,822

546,692
53,600
79,530
679,822

502,885
40,254
36,601
579,740

(43,807)
(13,346)
(42,929)
(100,082)

465,835
49,203
62,575
577,613

Miscellaneous
Unallocated
Supplies
Other current expenditures
Total miscellaneous

–
277,000
277,000

–
277,000
277,000

1,576
293,100
294,676

1,576
16,100
17,676

–
257,011
257,011

6,098,643

6,098,643

5,907,721

(190,922)

5,465,299

3,000
2,500
5,500

3,000
2,500
5,500

269
1,898
2,167

(2,731)
(602)
(3,333)

1,013
1,728
2,741

6,104,143

6,104,143

5,909,888

(194,255)

5,468,040

315,480

315,480

1,068,241

752,761

–
–
440,000
(755,480)

–
–
440,000
(755,480)

14,940
9,865
308,983
(1,159,791)

14,940
9,865
(131,017)
(404,311)

300
14,487
390,000
(1,348,362)

(315,480)

(315,480)

(826,003)

(510,523)

(943,575)

242,238

(20,954)

Total current expenditures
Capital outlay
General government
Public safety
Total capital outlay
Total expenditures
Excess of revenues over expenditures
Other financing sources (uses)
Sale of capital assets
Insurance recovery
Transfers in
Transfers (out)
Total other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balances

$

–

Fund balances
Beginning of year
End of year

$

–

242,238

$

922,621

4,074,455

4,095,409

$ 4,316,693

$ 4,074,455
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CITY OF WAYZATA
Debt Service Fund
Balance Sheet by Account
December 31, 2020

Assets
Cash and investments
Receivables
Special assessments
Total assets
Liabilities
Due to other governments
Deferred inflows of resources
Unavailable revenue –
special assessments
Fund balances (deficits)
Restricted
Total liabilities, deferred inflows
of resources, and fund balances

307
Wayzata Blvd
Superior

310
Superior/Lake
Realignment

311
2009 Street
Improvements

$

$

$

381,025

422,125

26,039

315

Parking Ramp
Big Woods

$

–

246,415
–

1,815,466

1,730,000

$ 2,196,491

$ 2,152,125

$

26,039

$

246,415

–

$

4,177

$

–

–

$

$

1,815,466

1,730,000

–

–

381,025

422,125

21,862

246,415

$ 2,196,491

$ 2,152,125

$

26,039

$

246,415
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317
Parking Ramp
Tax Increment

$

(825)

318
Panoway

$

63,125

$ 1,137,904

–

3,545,466

$

63,125

$ 4,683,370

$

–

–
$

$

(825)

–

–

(825)

$

(825)

Totals

$

$

4,177

–

3,545,466

63,125

1,133,727

63,125

$ 4,683,370
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CITY OF WAYZATA
Debt Service Fund
Schedule of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances by Account
Year Ended December 31, 2020

307
Wayzata Blvd
Superior
Revenue
Taxes
Property taxes
Intergovernmental
Special assessments
Investment earnings
Miscellaneous
Total revenue

$

Expenditures
Debt service
Principal
Interest and fiscal charges
Total expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of
revenue over expenditures

–
–
244,727
667
146,493
391,887

$

150,000
95,766
245,766

321,947

4,520

–
–
–
–

Fund balances (deficits)
Beginning of year
$

311
2009 Street
Improvements

$

–
1,650,000
118,401
(1,730,000)

36,075
–
–
418
–
36,493

315

Parking Ramp
Big Woods

$

218,663
–
–
4,264
–
222,927

30,000
8,645
38,645

185,000
23,750
208,750

(2,152)

14,177

–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–

–

–

–

38,401

321,947

42,921

(2,152)

14,177

59,078

379,204

24,014

232,238

Total other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balances

–
–
243,629
6,657
–
250,286

–
69,940
69,940

Other financing sources (uses)
Bonds issued
Refunding bonds issued
Premiums on bonds issued
Paid to refunded bond escrow

End of year

310
Superior/Lake
Realignment

381,025

$

422,125

$

21,862

$

246,415
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317
Parking Ramp
Tax Increment

$

–
496,348
–
–
–
496,348

318
Panoway

$

265,000
232,173
497,173

(825)

–
–
–
–
–
–

$

254,738
496,348
488,356
12,006
146,493
1,397,941

–
–
–

630,000
430,274
1,060,274

–

337,667

–
–
–
–

63,125
–
–
–

–

63,125

101,526

63,125

439,193

–

694,534

63,125

$ 1,133,727

(825)

–
$

Totals

(825)

$

63,125
1,650,000
118,401
(1,730,000)
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CITY OF WAYZATA
Housing and Redevelopment Authority
(Discretely Presented Component Unit)
Combining Balance Sheet
December 31, 2020

Special
Revenue
440

Debt
Service
Capital Projects
314
316
305
Widsten
Bay Center
Downtown
Tax Increment Tax Increment
TIF 6

Housing
Assets
Cash and temporary investments
Receivables
Interest
Tax increments
Notes
Receivables
Due from other funds
Total assets
Liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued interest
Due to primary government
Due to other governments
Deposits payable
Due to other funds

$

$

9,818
–
19,250
–

97,304

$

991,722

–
11,253
–
27,439

–
20,588
–
–

$

–

$ 1,089,026

–
800
–
–

9,818
32,641
19,250
27,439

$

29,068

$

135,996

$ 1,012,310

$

800

$ 1,178,174

$

–
–
–
–
703
–

$

–
3,840
230,379
1,143
–
–

$

$

23,536
–
623,352
747
–
27,439

$ 1,001,623
3,840
853,731
1,890
703
27,439
1,889,226

Total liabilities

703

Fund balances (deficits)
Restricted for economic
development
Unassigned
Total fund balances (deficits)
Total liabilities and
fund balances

–

Total

$

978,087
–
–
–
–
–

235,362

978,087

675,074

28,365
–

–
(99,366)

34,223
–

–
(674,274)

62,588
(773,640)

28,365

(99,366)

34,223

(674,274)

(711,052)

29,068

$

Total fund balances reported above

135,996

$ 1,012,310

$

800

$ 1,178,174
$ (711,052)

Amounts reported for the Housing and Redevelopment Authority in the Statement of Net Position are different because:
Capital assets used in the Housing and Redevelopment Authority are not financial resources and, therefore, are not
reported as assets in the funds.
Cost of capital assets
2,092,900
Total net position – Housing and Redevelopment Authority

$ 1,381,848
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CITY OF WAYZATA
Housing and Redevelopment Authority
(Discretely Presented Component Unit)
Combining Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Year Ended December 31, 2020

Special
Revenue
440

Debt
Service
314
Widsten
Tax Increment

Housing
Revenue
Tax increment
Investment earnings
Miscellaneous

$

Total revenue
Expenditures
Current
Housing and economic development
Debt service
Interest and fiscal fees
Total expenditures
Net change in fund balances
Fund balances (deficits)
Beginning of year
End of year

$

–
622
–

439,414
3,432
–

$ 2,928,223
24,721
–

622

442,846

32,093

$ 3,479,166
28,932
100,000

2,952,944

211,686

3,608,098

19,610

3,597,479

726,774

4,375,956

–

22,283

5,133

–

27,416

32,093

41,893

3,602,612

726,774

4,403,372

(31,471)

400,953

(649,668)

(515,088)

(795,274)

59,836

(500,319)

683,891

(159,186)

84,222

34,223

$ (674,274)

$

(99,366)

$

$

Total

111,529
157
100,000

28,365

$

Capital Projects
316
305
Bay Center
Downtown
Tax Increment
TIF 6

$ (711,052)
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City of Wayzata
Audit Report
Year Ended December 31, 2020
Malloy Montague, Karnowski,
Radosevich, & Co., P.A.
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Auditor’s Role
Opinion on Financial Statements
– Financial Statements are Fairly Presented In
Accordance with U.S. GAAP

Test Internal Controls and Compliance
– Financial Statement Audit
– State Statutes
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Audit Summary
Basic Financial Statements
– Unmodified “Clean” Opinion

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
– Limited Segregation of Duties

Compliance – Financial Statement Audit
– No Findings for 2020

Minnesota Legal Compliance
– No Findings for 2020
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Audit Summary – Other
Recommendations
Electronic Funds Transfers (EFTs)
– Importance of internal controls and cybersecurity
– Adoption of formal EFT policy

Federal Awards Expenditures
– Written “Uniform Guidance” controls required
– Micro-purchase threshold potentially increasing
– Subrecipient monitoring controls

Payroll Claims
– Change in outsourced payroll vendor
– Required declarations for payroll claims

Page 220 of 255

Governmental Funds
Change in Fund Balances
Fund Balance as of December 31,
2020
2019
Fund balances of governmental funds
Total by classification
Nonspendable
Restricted
Committed
Assigned
Unassigned
Total governmental funds
Total by fund
General
Debt Service
Lakefront Improvement Capital Projects
Developer Financed Capital Projects
Nonmajor funds
Total governmental funds

Change

$

754,668
1,757,102
127,334
8,069,035
3,278,984

$

540,681
1,300,874
112,726
10,001,324
3,261,720

$

213,987
456,228
14,608
(1,932,289)
17,264

$

13,987,123

$

15,217,325

$

(1,230,202)

$

4,316,693
1,133,727
703,562
–
7,833,141

$

4,074,455
694,534
3,159,573
–
7,288,763

$

242,238
439,193
(2,456,011)
–
544,378

$

13,987,123

$

15,217,325

$

(1,230,202)
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General Fund Financial
Position
General Fund Financial Position
Year Ended December 31,
$8,000,000
$7,000,000
$6,000,000
$5,000,000
$4,000,000
$3,000,000
$2,000,000
$1,000,000
$–
Fund Balance
Cash Balance
Exp & Trans Out

2016
$2,835,183
$2,792,940
$6,056,578

2017
$4,258,409
$3,306,531
$5,902,131

2018
$4,095,409
$3,308,723
$6,843,803

2019
$4,074,455
$3,482,533
$6,816,402

2020
$4,316,693
$3,770,875
$7,069,679
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General Fund Revenues –
Budget to Actual
Taxes

Intergovernmental

Fines and Forfeits

Charges for Services

Licenses and Permits

All Other

Budget

Actual
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General Fund Expenditures
– Budget to Actual
General Government

Public Safety

Public Works

Culture and Recreation

All Other

Budget

Actual
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Enterprise Funds Change
in Net Position
Net Position as of December 31,
2020
2019
Net position of enterprise funds
Total by classification
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total enterprise funds
Total by fund
Water
Sewer
Licensing
Liquor
Solid Waste
Stormwater
Total enterprise funds

Change

$

13,540,628
1,307,471
2,852,654

$

13,435,091
1,420,296
2,908,736

$

105,537
(112,825)
(56,082)

$

17,700,753

$

17,764,123

$

(63,370)

$

8,030,291
4,065,488
(278,886)
1,576,454
280,644
4,026,762

$

7,877,288
3,824,521
(95,941)
1,574,995
272,770
4,310,490

$

153,003
240,967
(182,945)
1,459
7,874
(283,728)

$

17,700,753

$

17,764,123

$

(63,370)
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Water Fund
Water Fund
Year Ended December 31,
$1,000,000
$900,000
$800,000
$700,000
$600,000
$500,000
$400,000
$300,000
$200,000
$100,000
$–
$(100,000)
Oper Rev
Oper Exp
Oper Inc (Loss)

2016
$700,700
$717,299
$(16,599)

2017
$750,334
$710,647
$39,687

2018
$820,062
$904,319
$(84,257)

2019
$785,225
$810,291
$(25,066)

2020
$900,956
$698,751
$202,205
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Sewer Fund
Sewer Fund
Year Ended December 31,
$1,300,000
$1,200,000
$1,100,000
$1,000,000
$900,000
$800,000
$700,000
$600,000
$500,000
$400,000
$300,000
$200,000
$100,000
$–
$(100,000)
$(200,000)
$(300,000)
Oper Rev
Oper Exp
Oper Inc (Loss)

2016
$897,443
$964,112
$(66,669)

2017
$950,007
$963,435
$(13,428)

2018
$1,026,386
$1,055,052
$(28,666)

2019
$1,050,037
$1,214,010
$(163,973)

2020
$1,239,184
$997,027
$242,157
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Solid Waste Fund
Solid Waste Fund
Year Ended December 31,
$400,000
$350,000
$300,000
$250,000
$200,000
$150,000
$100,000
$50,000
$–
$(50,000)
Oper Rev
Oper Exp
Oper Inc (Loss)

2016
$321,208
$357,902
$(36,694)

2017
$351,457
$359,495
$(8,038)

2018
$347,048
$358,758
$(11,710)

2019
$360,373
$356,087
$4,286

2020
$361,003
$374,985
$(13,982)
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Stormwater Fund
Stormwater Fund
Year Ended December 31,
$700,000
$600,000
$500,000
$400,000
$300,000
$200,000
$100,000
$–
$(100,000)
$(200,000)
$(300,000)
$(400,000)
Oper Rev
Oper Exp
Oper Inc (Loss)

2016
$273,816
$171,774
$102,042

2017
$283,696
$178,786
$104,910

2018
$294,936
$628,207
$(333,271)

2019
$314,307
$231,015
$83,292

2020
$326,762
$254,133
$72,629
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Liquor Fund
Liquor Fund
Year Ended December 31,
$7,000,000
$6,000,000
$5,000,000
$4,000,000
$3,000,000
$2,000,000
$1,000,000
$–
Sales
Cost of Sales
Oper Exp
Gross Profit
Oper Inc (Loss)

2016
$5,841,519
$2,987,361
$2,383,344
$2,854,158
$470,814

2017
$6,184,891
$3,127,367
$2,625,555
$3,057,524
$431,969

2018
$6,395,736
$3,198,367
$2,636,737
$3,197,369
$560,632

2019
$6,551,840
$3,241,073
$2,954,045
$3,310,767
$356,722

2020
$5,300,300
$3,064,216
$2,112,067
$2,236,084
$124,017
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Licensing Fund
Licensing Fund
Year Ended December 31,
$600,000
$550,000
$500,000
$450,000
$400,000
$350,000
$300,000
$250,000
$200,000
$150,000
$100,000
$50,000
$–
$(50,000)
Oper Rev
Oper Exp
Oper Inc (Loss)

2016
$552,514
$366,121
$186,393

2017
$521,062
$390,442
$130,620

2018
$544,247
$445,935
$98,312

2019
$576,066
$477,605
$98,461

2020
$486,862
$497,307
$(10,445)
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Government-Wide Net
Position
As of December 31,
2020
2019
Net position – primary government
Governmental activities
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total governmental activities

$

Business-type activities
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total business-type activities
Total – primary government
Net position – HRA component unit
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total – HRA component unit

38,314,544
5,141,057
8,755,748
52,211,349

$

13,540,628
1,307,471
2,852,654
17,700,753

32,116,987
5,028,305
10,563,817
47,709,109

Change

$

13,435,091
1,420,296
2,908,736
17,764,123

6,197,557
112,752
(1,808,069)
4,502,240
105,537
(112,825)
(56,082)
(63,370)

$

69,912,102

$

65,473,232

$

4,438,870

$

2,092,900
62,588
(773,640)

$

2,092,900
743,727
(659,505)

$

–
(681,139)
(114,135)

$

1,381,848

$

2,177,122

$

(795,274)
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City of Wayzata
City Council Agenda Report

MEETING DATE: May 18, 2021
AGENDA ITEM: 8.b
TITLE: Consider Approval of Cooperative Agreement for a Police Mental Health Program with Hennepin
County Human Services Department
PROPOSED MOTION: To Approve the Cooperative Agreement for a Police Mental Health Program with
Hennepin County Human Services Department
PREPARED BY: Marc Schultz, Interim Police Chief
REVIEWED BY: Jeff Dahl, City Manager
ACTION REQUESTED:
Staff recommends approval of the Cooperative Agreement between the City and the Hennepin County Human
Services Department to fund an embedded social worker position supporting the Police Mental Health
Program.
FINANCIAL OR BUDGET CONSIDERATION:
The social workers' salary is $100,000 annually. The cost would be split 60/40 between the seven participating
Lakes Region agencies and Hennepin County. The cost of this program for the City is $8,571.00 per year,
based upon a 2-year contract. This program would then need to be incorporated into the 2022 and 2023
budget. Staff is also pursuing possible grant funding opportunities for this position.
BACKGROUND:
The Embedded Social Worker Program is a mental health case management initiative intended to improve
access to mental health services for our community. The program – a partnership between Wayzata Police,
South Lake Minnetonka Police, Corcoran Police, Minnetrista Police, Medina Police, Orono Police, Deephaven
Police and Hennepin County – pairs a Hennepin County licensed social worker with police departments to
provide both assistance and resources to mental health crisis calls. All other aforementioned cities have
approved this measure to date.
The goal of the program is to assist the Police Department with providing real, long-term solutions to those
suffering from mental health crisis or dependency issues, rather than simply responding to calls for service.
Additionally, another long term goal would be to minimize repeat calls for service for these types of
incidences. The hope is that the program results in a win-win situation for residents and police – that it will get
help to those who need it, and less time and resources will be dedicated to repeat service calls. Additionally,
the City will be able to provide a more suitable resource to those in need of specialized care and services that
the police department is not equipped or trained to provide.
Program Functionality:
1. Wayzata officers respond to initial mental health crisis calls in Wayzata or Long Lake.
2. Cases are referred to the embedded social worker housed at one or more of the participating police
departments.
3. Follow-up is conducted by the dedicated Hennepin County Social Worker. A Wayzata Officer/Detective
will be assigned the case and work directly with the embedded social worker.
4. Those in need of further assistance are referred to partner organizations Relate Counseling Center,
Vail Place or Headway Emotional Health for therapy, counseling or long-term case management.
ATTACHMENTS:
1.
Blank Contract Between HSPH and Police Departments
Page 233 of 255

Page 234 of 255

HC# AXXXXXX

COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT FOR POLICE MENTAL HEALTH PROGRAM
This agreement (the “Agreement”) is between the COUNTY OF HENNEPIN, STATE
OF MINNESOTA, A-2300 Government Center, Minneapolis, Minnesota 55487
(“COUNTY”), on behalf of the Hennepin County Human Services Department
(“HSPHD”), and City of XX (“XX” or “CITY”), address. The parties to this Agreement
may also be referred to individually as “Party” and collectively as “Parties”.
WHEREAS, in 2018 the XX Department (“XXPD”) completed extensive research on
the increase in mental health calls and traditional officer response to mental health
emergencies. The research included an overview of best practices used to improve
officer interactions with individuals experiencing mental health emergencies. This
research specifically found opportunity to provide follow up care to prevent
reoccurrences of emergency crises. Based on the research of other jurisdictions, a
licensed clinician embedded with the police department is recommended, and
WHEREAS, the Parties desire to implement the above-stated recommendations>
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual undertakings and agreements
hereinafter set forth, the Parties agree as follows:
1.

TERM OF THE AGREEMENT

The term of the Agreement shall be from January 1, 20XX, through December 31,
20XX, unless terminated earlier in accordance with the Cancellation provision of
this Agreement.
2.

FUNDING / PAYMENT

A.

Funding provided via the City’s approved budget provides for a 60% funded
mental health professional (Senior Social Worker) not to exceed $60,000 per
year.

B.

The Senior Social Worker (SSW) will be hired, employed, and equipped by
HSPHD and participate in supervision and training by HSPHD in accordance
with local, state, federal, and professional licensure requirements.

C.

HSPHD shall within thirty (30) calendar days following the last day of each
quarter submit an invoice to CITY for 60% of the cost of one position assigned
to the program.

D.

CITY will make payment within thirty-five (35) days from receipt of the invoice. If the
invoice is incorrect, defective, or otherwise improper, CITY will notify HSPHD within
ten (10) days of receiving the incorrect invoice. Upon receiving the corrected invoice
from HSPHD, CITY will make payment within thirty-five (35) days.

1
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3.

DUTIES OF HSPHD

A.

HSPHD shall assign one Senior Social Worker who, along with a Social Work
Unit Supervisor, will work with officers to develop and implement a Police-Mental
Health Unit. The Senior Social Worker will remain the responsibility of and
provided supervision by HSPHD. The HSPHD staff will participate with CITY in
service delivery and program development as part of a team and will meet all
standards for delivery of service according to professional licensure.

B.

HSPHD shall participate with CITY in program design, management of
resources, program evaluation, and data collection as collectively approved by
supervisors of HSPHD and CITY.

C.

A Planning Group comprised of representatives of each Party will develop and
operationalize the pilot program and will be managed by police administration. Integration
of mental health program design and service delivery elements with police response will
be directed by HSPHD Adult Behavioral Health Program Manager. Social Work Unit
Supervisor will provide direct supervision of the mental health professional/Senior Social
Worker under this Agreement.

D.

A service description is outlined in EXHIBIT A: Description of Services, which is
incorporated into and made part of this Agreement.

4.

LIABILITY / INDEMNIFICATION / DUTY TO NOTIFY

A.

Each Party shall be liable for its own acts and the results thereof to the extent
provided by law, and shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the other Parties
(including their present and former officials, officers, agents, employees,
volunteers, and subcontractors), from any liability, claims, causes of action,
judgments, damages, losses, costs, or expenses, including reasonable attorneys’
fees, resulting directly or indirectly from any act or omission of the indemnifying
Party, anyone directly or indirectly employed by it and/or anyone for whose acts
and/or omissions it may be liable, in the performance or failure to perform its
obligations under this Agreement. Each Party’s liability shall be governed by the
provisions of Minnesota Statutes, chapter 466 and other applicable law.

B.

Under no circumstances shall a Party be required to pay on behalf of itself and
other Parties, any amounts in excess of the limits on liability established in
Minnesota Statutes Chapter 466 applicable to any one Party. The limits of liability
for some or all of the Parties may not be added together to determine the
maximum amount of liability for any Party.

C.

Duty to Notify: Each Party shall promptly notify the other Parties of any claim,
action, cause of action or litigation brought against the notifying Party, its present
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and former officials, officers, agents, employees, volunteers, and subcontractors
which arises out of the services described in this Agreement and shall also notify
the other Parties whenever there is a reasonable basis for believing that the
notifying Party, its present and former officials, officers, agents, employees,
volunteers or subcontractors, and one or more of the other Parties, might become
the subject of a claim, action, cause of action, administrative action, criminal
arrest, criminal charge or litigation arising out of/or related to the services
described in this Agreement.
5.

INSURANCE

Each Party warrants that it has purchased insurance or has established and
funded a self- insurance program.
6.

WORKERS’ COMPENSATION

Each Party shall be responsible for injuries or death of its own personnel. Each
Party will maintain workers’ compensation insurance or self-insurance coverage,
covering its own personnel while they are performing activities pursuant to this
Agreement. Each Party waives the right to sue any other Party for any workers’
compensation benefits paid to its own employees or volunteer or their
dependents, even if the injuries were caused wholly or partially by the negligence
of any other Party or its officers, employees, or volunteers.
7.

INDEPENDENT PARTY

A.

It is understood that the relationship between all Parties constitutes only the
understandings set forth in this Agreement

B.

It is further agreed that, notwithstanding any other formal, written agreements or
contracts which may exist between COUNTY and CITY, nothing is intended or
should be construed in any manner as creating or establishing the relationship of
partners between the Parties hereto or as constituting CITY as the agent,
representative, or employee of COUNTY for any purpose or in any manner
whatsoever. CITY is to be and shall remain an independent contractor with
respect to all services performed under this Agreement. CITY will secure at its
own expense all personnel required in performing services under this Agreement.
Any personnel of CITY or other persons while engaged in the performance of any
work or services required by CITY shall have no contractual relationship with
COUNTY and will not be considered employees of COUNTY. COUNTY shall not
be responsible for any claims related to or on behalf of any of CITY’s personnel,
including without limitation, claims that arise out of employment or alleged
employment under the Minnesota Unemployment Insurance Law (Minnesota
Statutes Chapter 268) or the Minnesota Workers' Compensation Act (Minnesota
Statutes Chapter 176), or claims of discrimination arising out of state, local, or
federal law, against a CITY, its officers, agents, contractors, or employees. Such
3
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personnel or other persons shall neither require nor be entitled to any
compensation, rights, or benefits of any kind from COUNTY, including, without
limitation, tenure rights, medical and hospital care, sick and vacation leave,
workers' compensation, unemployment compensation, disability, severance pay,
and retirement benefits.
8.

NONDISCRIMINATION

Each Party agrees agree that it shall not exclude any person from full employment rights
or participation in, or the benefits of, any program, service or activity on the grounds of
any protected status or class including but not limited to race, color, creed, religion, age,
sex, disability, marital status, sexual orientation, public assistance status, or national
origin; and no person who is protected by applicable federal or state laws against
discrimination shall be otherwise subjected to discrimination.
9.

NO THIRD PARTY

Except as herein specifically provided, no other person, customer, employee, or
invitee of COUNTY or CITY or any other third party shall be deemed to be a thirdparty beneficiary of any of the provisions herein.
10. DATA PRIVACY
Each Party and their respective officers, agents, owners, partners, employees,
volunteers and subcontractors, shall abide by the provisions of the Minnesota
Government Data Practices Act, Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 13, and all other
applicable state and federal laws, rules, regulations and orders relating to data
privacy, confidentiality, disclosure of medical records or other health and enrollment
information, and as any of the same may be amended. The terms of this paragraph
shall survive the cancellation or termination of this Agreement.
11. PROGRAM STATISTICAL INFORMATION
Each Party agrees to maintain such statistical records relating to services as
shall be necessary, appropriate, and convenient for the proper administration
of this Agreement.
12. MERGER, MODIFICATION, AND SEVERABILITY
A.

The entire Agreement is contained herein and supersedes all oral agreements
and negotiations between the Parties relating to the subject matter. All items that
are referenced or that are attached are incorporated and made a part of this
Agreement. If there is any conflict between the terms of this Agreement and
referenced or attached items, the terms of this Agreement shall prevail.
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B.

Any alterations, variations, or modifications of this Agreement shall only be valid
when they have been reduced to writing as an amendment to this Agreement
signed by the Parties. Except as expressly provided, the substantive legal terms
contained in the Agreement including but not limited to Liability / Indemnification /
Duty to Notify; Insurance; Workers’ Compensation; Merger, Modification and
Severability; Cancellation or Minnesota Law Governs may not be altered, varied,
modified or waived by any change order, implementation plan, scope of work,
development specification or other development process or document.

C.

If any provision of this Agreement is held invalid, illegal or unenforceable, the
remaining provisions will not be affected.

13. CANCELLATION
A.

This Agreement may be canceled with or without cause by either Party upon
thirty (30) days written notice.

B.

If HSPHD has reason to believe that the safety or well-being of Senior Social
Worker may be endangered by actions of a CITY, its agents, and/or
employees, HSPHD may terminate the Agreement immediately.

14. SURVIVAL OF PROVISIONS
Provisions that by their nature are intended to survive the term, cancellation or termination of
this Agreement do survive such term, cancellation or termination. Such provisions include but
are not limited to: INDEPENDENT PARTIES; LIABILITY / INDEMNIFICATION / DUTY TO
NOTIFY; INSURANCE; WORKERS’ COMPENSATION; DATA PRIVACY; MARKETING AND
PROMOTIONAL LITERATURE; and MINNESOTA LAW GOVERNS.

15. NOTICES
Any notice or demand which must be given or made by a Party hereto under the terms
of this Agreement or any statute, rule, regulation or ordinance shall be in writing, and
shall be sent via registered or certified mail. Notice to HSPHD shall be sent to COUNTY
Administration at the address listed in the opening paragraph of this Agreement, with a
copy to HSPHD as described below. Notice to CITY shall be sent to one of the
following addresses:
XX
XX
XX
XX
XX
XX
HSPHD
XX
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XX
Hennepin County
th
300 South 6 Street
Minneapolis, MN 55487
16.

MARKETING AND PROMOTIONAL LITERATURE

CITY agrees that the term, “Hennepin County”, “Human Services and Public Health
Department”, or any derivative thereof, shall not be utilized in any promotional literature
or advertisements of any type without the express prior written consent of COUNTY.
17. MINNESOTA LAWS GOVERN
The laws of the State of Minnesota shall govern all questions and interpretations
concerning the validity and construction of this Agreement and the legal relations
between the Parties and their performance. The appropriate venue and jurisdiction for
any litigation will be those courts located within the County of Hennepin, State of
Minnesota. Litigation, however, in the federal courts involving the Parties will be in the
appropriate federal court within the State of Minnesota.

(The remainder of this page intentionally left blank.)
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HENNEPIN COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR APPROVAL
RECEIVABLE AGREEMENT
The Parties hereto agree to be bound by the provisions set forth in this Agreement.

Reviewed for COUNTY by the
County Attorney’s Office

COUNTY OF HENNEPIN
STATE OF MINNESOTA
By:
County Administrator

Date:

Date:

Reviewed by
By: ______________________________________
Deputy/Assistant County Administrator
Date: _____________________________________

Reviewed for CITY by the City Attorney XX
By: ________________________________
______________________________
Title: _______________________________
Date: _________________________
Date: ______________________________
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Exhibit A: Description of Services

The CITY and HSPHD staff will comprise a Police-Mental Health Unit.
Roles and Responsibilities of Parties


CITY will provide office space and a desk for the Senior Social Worker (SSW).



CITY will work with the Social Work Unit Supervisor (SWUS) to establish criteria
for referrals.



CITY will work with the SWUS to develop a referral process.



CITY will track referrals and repeat calls.



CITY will accompany the SSW to home visits as needed.



HSPHD will be responsible for providing the SSW with equipment that is
necessary for completing their work. This includes but is not limited to laptop
computer, cell phone, and office supplies.



The SSW will report directly to the HSPHD SWUS.



HSPHD will be responsible for transportation/mileage expenses for the SSW.
The SSW will be responsible following the HSPHD transportation/mileage
reimbursement policies.



The SSW will provide short-term assistance to clients in order to connect the
individuals with internal and/or community resources to help meet their needs.
Services will be provided in an ethical and culturally sensitive manner.



After being assigned a case, the SSW will complete a file clearance of the
various systems to determine if the individual is open to social services, county
of financial responsibility, and public assistance programs.



The SSW will meet the client, assess the client’s needs, note formal and informal
supports, and determine where gaps exist.



The SSW will request or complete updated diagnostic assessments as needed.



The initial assessment should include the risks to the safety and stability of the
client as well as the client’s ability to address such concerns. The SSW will also
evaluate the need for emergency services and if needed will assist in making
those connections.
1
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Exhibit A: Description of Services



The SSW will work with the client to develop an initial plan that addresses gaps
that exist in the client’s support system, and will work with the client to identify
and connect with community resources. This plan will be signed by both the
client and the SSW.



The SSW will ensure that release of information forms are signed and that other
paperwork is completed in a timely manner. No information will be shared with
CITY without a signed release.



If community and/or county resources are needed, the SSW will collect
information needed to determine eligibility for those services. The SSW will
facilitate referrals to appropriate resources.



The SSW will collaborate with other involved parties as indicated.



If eligible for county operated or contracted case management services, the
SSW will complete the necessary paperwork to transfer the client to case
management.



The SSW will document all activities and data as requested for tracking
purposes.



Client participation is voluntary and the client has a right to refuse services.

Goals of the Police-Mental Health Unit include, but are not limited to:


More timely engagement of SSW with individuals;



Increased use of community resources to support individuals;



Increased use of public assistance programs;



Increased use of non-urgent health care systems;



Improved engagement of current service providers;




Ongoing collaboration and learning between HSPHD and Police Department;
Improving the quality of life for those who suffer from mental illness and have
encounters with law enforcement;



Reducing use of force, injury or death to officers and community members;
2
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Exhibit A: Description of Services



Reducing rate of arrests/prosecution of persons in mental health crisis and
increase the number of persons who remain in community settings with services
and supports;



Creating cost-savings through reduction of (incarceration and hospitalization) 911
calls regarding mental health crisis;



Reducing repeat calls and visits for the same issue;



Improving efficacy of law enforcement response to emergency and non-emergency
mental health issues; and



Increasing public satisfaction with the response to mental health emergencies and
other metrics developed during the pilot utilizing key stakeholder and community
input.
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City of Wayzata
City Council Agenda Report

MEETING DATE: May 18, 2021
AGENDA ITEM: 8.c
TITLE: Consider Approval of First Reading of Amendments to Ordinance 805 (Chapter 203) Fire Department
PROPOSED MOTION: To Approve the First Reading of Amendments to Ordinance 805 (Chapter 203)
PREPARED BY: Aurora Yager, Administrative Services Director, Kevin Klapprich, Fire Chief
REVIEWED BY: Jeff Dahl, City Manager
ACTION REQUESTED:
Staff recommends approval of the first reading of the amendments to City Ordinance 805 (Chapter 203) as
presented.
FINANCIAL OR BUDGET CONSIDERATION:
N/A
BACKGROUND:
In 2018 the City Council held a workshop with Chief Klapprich and members of the Fire Department to discuss
concerns with the existing structure, review best practices and possible changes to the structure, discuss the
need for additional resources, and outline next steps and engagement.
The next steps from this meeting were to transition away from the Fire Department's bylaws to personnel
policies that align with other City policies and best practices. This would allow for, among other things, a meritbased appointment process for leadership positions instead of holding internal elections.
Since 2018, staff has been meeting with a committee from the Fire Department to review potential new
personnel policies. The new Policies and Procedures were approved by the Fire Department and then
administratively approved by the City Manager in March of 2021.
With new Policies and Procedures in place, the City's Ordinance Chapter 203 - Fire Department needs to be
updated as it currently references the bylaws and elections process and needs to be updated to officially
repeal the bylaws. The attached amendments remove all mentions of the bylaws and elections and clarify the
City Manager's role in overseeing this department.
Next Steps
Updating this Ordinance is just one important step of many related to the Fire Department. Other steps
include:
1. Make the merit-based appointments. Staff will review and update job descriptions for all Fire Officer
positions and outline a timeline to fill these positions.
2. Refine the scope for a Fire Department study. Based on previous discussions about the need to
ensure the department remains sustainable long into the future, a study is planned for later this year
that may cover topics such as structure and compensation.
ATTACHMENTS:
1.
Ordinance 805 (Chapter 203) Fire Department
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CITY OF WAYZATA
HENNEPIN COUNTY, MINNESOTA
ORDINANCE NO. 805
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING WAYZATA CITY CODE CH. 203
(FIRE DEPARTMENT)
THE CITY OF WAYZATA ORDAINS:
Section 1.
Amendments to Chapter 203. Chapter 203 of the Wayzata City Code
(Fire Department) is hereby amended as follows (struck text deleted, underlined text added):
CHAPTER 203 - FIRE DEPARTMENT
203.01 - Organization.
For the health, safety, and welfare, and the proper protection of the lives and property, of the
citizens of Wayzata and others the Department may serve, there is hereby organized a
Volunteer Wayzata Fire Department, which shall be referred to herein this Chapter as the Fire
Department or Department. The City is committed to maintaining the Fire Department as
primarily a paid, on-call volunteer organization, but some regular City employees may be
assigned to the Department when appropriate. The volunteer organization, operation, and
members of the Fire Department are governed by this Section Chapter, City personnel policies,
Department by-laws policies, and directives adopted by the Fire Chief ("Chief"). Any
amendment to the by-laws is subject to approval by the City Council before becoming effective.
If not approved, the amendment is null and void.
(7-21-81 Code; Ord. 656 [3-15-2005])
203.02 – Personnel Composition.
The Fire Department shall consist of not less than twenty members, sometimes referred to
herein as firefighters, to which may be added as many members, sometimes referred to in this
Chapter as firefighters, as from time to time may be deemed necessary for proper functioning of
the Department. Each member of the Fire Department and each officer, including the Fire Chief,
shall be appointed by the City Manager, may be removed by the City Manager and is subordinate
to the authority of the City Manager. All appointments must be made on the basis of merit and
ability. Personnel of the Fire Department shall receive such compensation as shall be determined
by the City Manager, in accordance with applicable ordinances, resolutions and other actions of
the City Council. The selection of new members, the qualifications required, and other
regulations relative thereto shall be prescribed in the by-laws of the Department. The
designated human resource director for the City of Wayzata shall serve on all Fire Department
membership selection committees and ensure that recommendations for new members are
based solely upon merit and ability. The Department is within the direction and control of the
Fire Chief.
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(7-21-81 Code; Ord. 656 [3-15-2005])
203.03 - Officers.
The officers of the Department shall be a Chief, an Assistant Chiefs, a Captains and a
Lieutenants, whose duties shall be as hereinafter stated. The civil officers of the Department
shall be a President, a Vice-President, a Secretary and a Treasurer, whose duties shall be
prescribed in the by-laws of the Department.
203.04 - Election of Officers.
Subject to Section 203.06 and 203.07, the Chief, Assistant Chief and all other officers of the
Department shall be elected by the members of the Department at its annual meeting. The
method of election and the terms of the offices shall be as the by-laws provide. The Secretary of
the Department, as soon as practical after the election of officers, shall submit a list of the
officers so elected to the City Manager. The Chief has the right to reject an elected officer. The
City Manager has the right to reject an elected Chief. The names of the Chief, Assistant Chief,
and Officers shall be submitted for approval to the City Council. If the City Council or City
Manager rejects or disapproves of an elected Chief or Assistant Chief, such person(s) shall not
run for such position again for a period of at least two years. All elections must be based solely
on merit and ability. If for any reason the City Manager or City Council rejects or removes an
elected candidate, a new election must be promptly scheduled.
(7-21-81 Code; Ord. 656 [3-15-2005])
203.05 – Meetings, and Drills, and Community Events.
All officers and members of the Department shall meet at least once each month as needed,
and it shall have conduct at least one regular drill per month. Members may participate in
community service, community events, teambuilding and family events throughout the year.
(7-21-81 Code; Ord. 656 [3-15-2005])
203.06 – Government.
The Fire Chief shall promulgate, subject to approval of the City Manager, rules and regulations
for the operation of the Department and for the duties, discipline, equipment, and uniforms of
members. The City Manager shall be responsible for maintain and enforcing those departmental
rules and regulations. Department shall adopt by-laws and such other regulations as the
members deem necessary for the proper and efficient functioning of the Department.
(7-21-81 Code; Ord. 656 [3-15-2005])
203.07 - Duties of the Chief.
The Chief shall exercise complete supervision and control over the Fire Department and all
Departmental apparatus, and shall be responsible for the lawful exercise of the duties of said
personnel subject to the laws of the State of Minnesota, the ordinances of the City of Wayzata
and orders of the City Manager. Except as provided for in this Chapter, the Fire Chief has final
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authority over all matters involving the Fire Department. The Chief shall examine the apparatus
equipment as often as may be necessary and see that it is properly kept, cared for and always
ready for service. The Chief shall order drills of the Department as often as the Chief may deem
necessary, and the Chief shall see to it that all members of the Department are fully trained for
their work. The Chief, or the person exercising the powers and duties of his/her office, in case of
fire shall have the power to direct that any building or structure be pulled down or removed in
such a manner as the Chief may see fit, if such action is deemed by the Chief to be necessary
to arrest the progress of any fire. The Chief, or the person in command at any fire, shall have
the same power to suppress all tumults or disorders as police officers of the City, and the Chief
shall have the power to prescribe limits within which no person shall come, and the Chief shall
have the further power to order any person away from the neighborhood of said fire. The Chief
may command assistance from inhabitants of the City, not members of the Fire Department, for
the extinguishment of fires and for the preservation of property exposed to fires such as he may
require. Any person who shall refuse or neglect to obey any lawful order of the officers in
command at a fire, or who shall refuse or neglect to depart from a fire when ordered to do so as
aforesaid shall for such offense be subject to the applicable penalties therefor. The Chief shall,
in January of each year, report to the City Council the number of fire calls responded to during
the preceding year, giving the value of buildings and contents concerned and the losses
sustained, reporting both calls responded to in the City limits and those outside of the City limits.
In the absence of the Chief an the Assistant Chief, and in his/her absence the next ranking
officer, shall carry out the duties of the Chief.
The Chief is elected by the members pursuant to Section 203.04, and is approved and removed
by, and works under the authority and direction of, the City Manager.
(7-21-81 Code; Ord. 656 [3-15-2005])
203.08 - Education, Physical Testing, and Training.
The Chief, together with other officers of the Department, shall be responsible for preparing and
carrying out a proper education, physical testing and training program for all members of the
Department.
(7-21-81 Code; Ord. 656 [3-15-2005])
203.09 - Police Officer Assistance.
It shall be the duty of all police officers of the City to keep all idlers and suspicious persons from
any fire and its vicinity, and to use all proper methods to preserve goods and other property
endangered at fires.
203.10 - False Alarms—Repealed.
(7-21-81 Code; repealed by Ord. 656 [3-15-2005])
203.11 - Police Powers of Firefighters.
All members of the Fire Department are hereby given special police powers for the purpose of
enforcing the terms of this Chapter and other provisions of the City Code pertaining to fires.
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(7-21-81 Code; Ord. 656 [3-15-2005])
203.12 - Calls Outside the City.
The Fire Department is hereby authorized to answer fire calls outside of the City limits, and
when so doing the members shall be considered on duty as firefighters of the City.
(7-21-81 Code; Ord. 656 [3-15-2005])
203.13 - Retirement Policy—Repealed.
(Ord. 499 [4-19-1988]; Repealed by Ord.770[4-13-2017])

Section 2.
publication.

Effective Date. This Ordinance will become effective upon passage and

Adopted by the City Council this ___ day of _______________, 2021.

______________________________
Johanna Mouton
Mayor
ATTEST:
______________________________
Jeffrey Dahl
City Manager
First Reading:
Second Reading:
Publication:
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City of Wayzata
City Council Agenda Report

MEETING DATE: May 18, 2021
AGENDA ITEM: 8.d
TITLE: Consider Adoption of Resolution 19-2021 Establishing Ad-Hoc Downtown Advisory Committee and
Appointments
PROPOSED MOTION: To Adopt Resolution 19-2021 Establishing Ad-Hoc Downtown Advisory Committee
and Appointments
PREPARED BY: Emily Goellner, Community Development Director
REVIEWED BY: Jeff Dahl, City Manager
ACTION REQUESTED:
Staff recommends adoption of Resolution 19-2021 as attached.
FINANCIAL OR BUDGET CONSIDERATION:
There is no direct budget impacts with the proposed action. The City continues to budget maintenance,
operations, and capital improvements for the downtown area through its annual budget and capital
improvement planning processes.
Since there will be staff needed to help facilitate this committee, staff will track the amount of labor spent on
the committee and report back to the Council next year.
BACKGROUND:
Since last year, downtown Wayzata has seen a significant increase in activity due to the completion of Phase I
of Panoway AND the societal impacts of the COVID-19 Pandemic. As a result, staff is proactively moving
forward with many initiatives to manage downtown appropriately such as: increased trash pickup, hiring of
additional staff, PD bike patrol, updated study on maintenance and operations, etc.
At the April 6 Council Workshop, staff discussed the benefits of taking a proactive and collaborative approach
to management of this space by establishing an advisory committee to provide input and perspective on four
key areas of interest: Public Safety, Operations & Maintenance, Events & Programming, and Planning,
Community Engagement, & Communications. A description of the specific topics within the four key areas is
attached. Since then, staff has met internally and spoken with key community stakeholders in developing the
following parameters of the committee:
Purpose
To vet ideas, provide diverse perspectives on the management of Downtown Wayzata, and offer guidance to
the City Council on safety, maintenance, operations, regulations, events and programming, communications,
economic development, and volunteerism in order to ensure that the heart of the City is thoughtfully managed
and consistent with the vision of the Community.
Goals of the Committee





Provide a “landing pad” and discussion forum for issues brought forward to City Council and City staff
about suggestions, concerns, and hopes for Downtown Wayzata.
As very involved stakeholders, the Committee’s discussions can help the Council and staff decide how
to prioritize the large range of ideas and issues that arise.
Foster a group of local champions for Downtown Wayzata’s vitality and functionality.
Provide a forum to invite other stakeholders to specific discussions within the four key areas of interest:
Public Safety, Operations & Maintenance, Events & Programming, and Planning, Community

Page 250 of 255



Engagement, & Communications.
Advise Council on both immediate responses to issues and strategic direction for the future of
Downtown Wayzata.

Structure








Resolution establishing Ad-hoc Committee by City Council with one year term. Staff would return to
Council with bylaws and a more long-term plan, if needed, after one year.
Monthly Meetings – held remotely or in person. Open to the public and advertised via City
communications.
Minutes taken.
Chair runs the meeting, develops meeting agendas with staff liaisons.
Chair, Vice Chair, and Secretary elected by the Committee.
Most items will be a round table discussion in order for City staff to get feedback on City’s Maintenance
and Operations of downtown.
Items that have any policy or financial implications will need to be approved via a motion, second,
discussion, and vote.

Suggested Community Members/Representatives












Two Council Member/s (Council Member Iverson, MacDonald)
Chamber Staff (Becky Pierson, Brooke Beyer)
Business Owner/s (Terri Huml, Jim or Robin McWethy, Jodi McKee, Lindsay Pohlad)
Commercial Property Owner/s (Stacy Carisch, Jim Beltz)
Nearby Residential Property Owners (Mary Dolan, George Halvorson)
Parks and Trails Board Members (To be determined by staff)
Wayzata Conservancy Member (Blake Sandvold)
Volunteer Committee Members (To be determined by staff)
Three Rivers Park District (To be determined by staff)
Primary City Liaisons (Liv Laskey, Mike Kelly, Parks Planner, Police Department)
Secondary City Liaisons (Jeff Dahl, Emily Goellner)

Please note that some of these community members have shown interest in participating but not all have been
contacted yet. Approving the appointments as is and also allowing staff the flexibility to administratively
approve any additional appointments from the listed community groups is preferred so that the first Committee
meeting can take place as soon as possible without additional action by the Council.
Staff has developed the attached draft resolution for consideration by the Council that establishes this Ad-hoc
Committee for a one year term to start, but expects that the scope and structure will evolve to meet the needs
of the community and Council.
ATTACHMENTS:
1.
Resolution 19-2021
2.
Downtown Topics

Page 251 of 255

DRAFT – 5/13/21
CITY OF WAYZATA
RESOLUTION NO. 19-2021
RESOLUTION CREATING DOWNTOWN ADVISORY COMMITTEE
WHEREAS, under Section 18 of the City Charter, the City Council may create and appoint a
such permanent or temporary commissions as it so desires with advisory powers to investigate
any subject of interest to the City;
WHEREAS, the downtown area of Wayzata has been recently transformed as a result of the
completion of Phase I of Panoway and the impacts of the COVID-19 Pandemic, making it an
even more vital, important, and popular area of the City for the foreseeable future; and
WHEREAS, the City has been moving forward with initiatives to manage downtown
appropriately but sees the benefit of gathering wider community input, ideas, and feedback in
key areas that affect downtown Wayzata;
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of Wayzata, Minnesota, pursuant
to Section 18 of the City Charter, a Downtown Advisory Committee is hereby created and
empowered to carry out the purposes and objectives outlined in Exhibit A, Council Report from
May 18, 2021, compromised with the membership proposed therein.
BE IT FURTHER RESOVLED, the Committee shall meet as regularly as it deems fit and report
back to Council its progress and findings periodically until such time as Council deems the
Committee’s work is complete.
Adopted by the Wayzata City Council this 18th day of May 2021.

_____________________________________
Mayor Johanna Mouton
ATTEST:
_________________________
City Manager Jeff Dahl

Page 252 of 255

CITY OF W AYZATA

Resolution No. __19-2021

Page 2

ACTION ON THIS RESOLUTION:
Motion for adoption:
Seconded by:
Voted in favor of:
Voted against:
Abstained:
Absent:
Resolution:
I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of Resolution No. 19-2021 adopted
by the City Council of the City of Wayzata, Minnesota, at a duly authorized meeting held on May
18, 2021.
_________________________________
Kathy Leervig, City Clerk
SEAL
Attachment A
Staff Memo
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Potential Discussion Topics of Interest for Downtown Advisory Committee
1.
2.
3.
4.

Public Safety
Operations & Maintenance
Events & Programming
Planning & Community Engagement

Public Safety












Bicycle and pedestrian conflicts
o Safety plan (Three Rivers, Park Police, Hopkins, Scott Jordan)
Alcohol use, open bottle violations
Street congestion
Pedicabs and E-bikes
COVID-19 (masking, distancing)
Skateboarders
Graffiti
Security cameras
Loud cars
Parking enforcement

Operations & Maintenance














Trash removal
Performers
Special Events
o How many to approve
o Fees
Plaza tables and chairs stay orderly
Private owner maintenance responsibilities (only some have agreements)
Trash from boats/docks
Bathroom cleanliness
Kiosks
Signage – clutter, effectiveness, wayfinding
Bathroom signage
Uber/Lyft drop-off areas
Planters, landscaping

Events & Programming





Street closure requests for special events
o Broadway to Manitoba/Barry could be okay, but Walker one-way makes detour harder
Emergency vehicle access at regular times and during street closures or special events
Farmers Market

Planning, Community Engagement, and Communication









Parking shortage
Valet parking coordination (host stand, drop-off areas, signs)
Outdoor cafes – trash removal required
Volunteer management
Phase II Information
City staffing levels
Downtown kiosks/advertising/wayfinding signs
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